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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

FISCAL YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 27,2014 SEPTEMBER 28,2013 % INCREASE
Net Sales $4,958 $4,647 7%
Adjusted EBITDA 830 790 5%
Adjusted Free Cash Flow 302 238 27%
NET SALES (IN MILLIONS) ADJUSTED EBITDA (IN MILLIONS)
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2014 LETTER TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS

Dear Fellow Shareholders,

| am pleased to report that fiscal 2014 was a very solid year here at

Berry Plastics — we achieved record net sales, adjusted EBITDA and
adjusted free cash for any fiscal year in the Company’s history. Specifically,
in fiscal 2014 we achieved net sales of approximately $5 billion, adjusted
EBITDA of $830 million, and adjusted free cash flow in excess of $300
million. Most notable, was the fact that we achieved these records, in spite
of weak consumer demand and persistent increases in raw material costs.

Also during fiscal 2014, the remaining stock that had been held by private
equity investors was sold, marking the completion of our transition to an independent publicly
traded company.

I am confident in the future success of Berry Plastics and our ability to continue to strategically grow and
further strengthen our Company — this will be accomplished through the unwavering dedication of our
employees who maintain focus on our key strategies.

In addition to the financial records set during the year, we also achieved progress in many areas to

enhance our Company and overall shareholder value. Throughout our Company’s history, we have always
had a relentless focus on creating unique and innovative products in strong, stable consumer-centric end
markets. With one of the most comprehensive portfolios of technological capabilities in the industry we have
the ability to be a “one-stop shop” for our customers. As we have grown over the past several decades, we
have strengthened our portfolio and suite of product offerings allowing Berry to create innovation through the

interface of rigid and flexible plastic technologies. These capabilities can be seen in many of our new

™ ™

and innovative product offerings such as Versalite™ and NuSeal/Barricade™.
During the fiscal year, we also acquired Graphic Flexible Packaging, LLC's flexible plastics and film business,
the controlling interest of Qingdao P&B Co., LTD, and the Healthcare Containers and Closures business from
Rexam. Our successful integration of these businesses has gone according to plan. We recognized typical
synergies from these acquisitions during the fiscal year and are pleased with the overall seamless fit of these
businesses into the Berry Plastics culture. Now, as we enter fiscal 2015, we believe we are well positioned to
benefit from our executed strategies.

Finally, Berry Plastics will continue to take the necessary, proactive steps to remain competitive and a leader
in plastics packaging through a relentless focus on building and strengthening our competitive advantages.
I am confident that the people at Berry Plastics will continue to drive our results and achieve our goals.

Jon Rich

Berry Plastics Group, Inc.
Chairman

Chief Executive Officer



STRATEGY

At Berry Plastics, everything we do is driven by our ability to imagine new possibilities, our determination
to deliver the highest quality results and our passion for meaningful improvement, all guided by a corporate

culture that places safety and integrity above all.

LEVERAGE REDUCTION INTERNATIONAL EXPANSION

« Goal to reside in a 2x — 4x range of adjusted EBITDA to net debt « Disciplined approach

« Leverage reduction goal of V2 turn per year « Primarily focused in China

« Replacing higher coupon debt with lower coupon debt « At or above the Company’s average adjusted EBITDA margins
ORGANIC GROWTH ACQUISITION GROWTH

« Leader in plastic packaging — highest growth substrate « Value accretive acquisitions

« Innovation at the interface of rigid and flexible technologies « History of exceeding synergy estimates

« Focused on stable end-markets with favorable long-term « Core competency

growth dynamics




OUR SOLUTIONS

RIGID OPEN TOP
Our Rigid Open Top division primarily consists of containers and drink cups. The largest end uses for our packages
are consumer-oriented end markets such as food and beverage. A sample of our customers include: McDonald’s®,

Starbucks®, Dannon®, ConAgra Foods®, and Unilever™.

RIGID CLOSED TOP

Our Rigid Closed Top division primarily consists of closures, overcaps, bottles, prescription containers, and tubes.

The largest end uses for our packages are consumer-oriented end markets such as food and beverage, healthcare,

personal care, and household chemicals. A sample of our customers include: McCormick®, Pepsico®, Coca-Cola®,
Clorox®, and Kraft®.

ENGINEERED MATERIALS

Our Engineered Materials division primarily consists of tapes and adhesives, PE-based film products and can
liners, and pipeline corrosion protection solutions. The largest end uses for our solutions are food and beverage
packaging, oil and gas, building and construction, specialty, and retail end markets. A sample of our customers

include: The Home Depot®, Kraft®, Nestlé®, Pepsico®, and Walmart®.

FLEXIBLE PACKAGING

Our Flexible Packaging division primarily consists of films, bags, and pouches. The largest end uses for our flexible
packaging products are consumer-oriented end markets such as food and beverage, medical, and personal care. A
sample of our customers include: Kraft®, Kimberly-Clark®, ConAgra Foods®, Mondelez™, and Proctor & Gamble™.




DIRECTORS & EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

Pictured L to R: J. Foster, E. Bayh, R. Seminara, D. Heller, J. Rich, I. Kesner, R. Rolfe, R. Steele,
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NON-GAAP FINANCIAL MEASURES

Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted Free Cash Flow, as presented in this document, are supplemental financial
measures that are not required by, or presented in accordance with, generally accepted accounting principles in
the United States (“GAAP”). Reconciliations of such measures to GAAP financial measures are provided below.
Investors are urged to consider carefully the comparable GAAP measures and the reconciliations to those measures

provided. For further information, see page 21 of the accompanying Form 10-K.

FISCAL

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
U.S. GAAP Operating Income $124 $42 $325 $386 $316
Add: depreciation and amortization 317 344 355 341 358
Add: restructuring and impairment 41 221 31 14 30
Add: business optimization and other expense 59 49 60 34 81
Add: pro forma acquisitions 15 55 6 2 18
Add: unrealized cost savings 58 39 26 13 27
Adjusted EBITDA $614 $750 $803 $790 $830

FISCAL

2013 2014
Cash Flow from operating activities $464 $530
Additions to property, plant, and equipment, net 221 (196)
Tax receivable agreement payment (5) (32)

Adjusted Free Cash Flow $238 $302
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

(Mark One)
[X] Annual report pursuant to Section 13 or 15(thhe Securities Exchange Act of 1934

for the fiscal year ended September 27, 2014
or
[] Transition Report Pursuant to Section 13 did)5f the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

Commission File Number 001-35672
BERRY PLASTICS GROUP, INC.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its chrarte

Delaware 20-5234618
(State or other jurisdiction (IRS employer
of incorporation or organization) identification number)
101 Oakley Street
Evansville, Indiana 47710
(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip code)

Registrant’s telephone number, including area cq@&2) 424-2904

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b)efct:

Title of Each Class Name of Each Exchange on Which Registered
Common Stock, $0.01 par value per share New YakkIExchange

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a vkelbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 40%®@d¢urities Act. Yes [X] No[ ]
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuigef to file reports pursuant to Section 13 ortiSacl5(d) of the Act. Yes[ [No[X]

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant:hék) filed all reports required to be filed by 8ettl3 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934 during the preceding 12 months (or such shpetod that the registrant was required to filetsreports), and (2) have been subject to such
filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes [Xd [ ]

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant hasnitted electronically and posted on its corpovdeb site, if any, every Interactive Data File
required to be submitted and posted pursuant te #08 of Regulation S-T (§232.405 of this chaptar)ng the preceding 12 months (or for such
shorter period that the registrant was requiresibomit and post such files). Yes[X] No[ ]

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquilets pursuant to ltem 405 of Regulation S-K i$ cantained herein, and will not be contained to
the best of registrant’s knowledge, in definitivexy or information statements incorporated bynesiee in Part Il of this Form 10-K or any
amendment to this Form 10-K. [ ]

Indicate by check mark whether the registranti&ge accelerated filer, accelerated filer, or aooelerated filer. See definition of “accelerditenl
and large accelerated filer” in Rule 12b-2 of tixetiange Act. (Check one):
Large accelerated filer [ X ] Asberated filer [ ] Non-acceledhféer [ ] Small reporting company [ ]

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantssell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the B&éesiExchange Act of 1934).

Yes[ ]No[X]

The aggregate market value of the common stodkeofegistrant held by non-affiliates was approxetye$2.1 billion as of March 28, 2014, the last
business day of the registrant’s most recently deteg second fiscal quarter. The aggregate mashat was computed using the $22.46 closing
price per share for such stock on the New YorkISExa@hange on such date. The calculation inclstiages of the registrant's common stock held
by current executive officers, directors and affdis whose ownership exceeded 5% as of such date.

As of November 24, 2014, there were approximat&8:2 million shares of the registrant's common lstmatstanding.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Portions of Berry Plastics Group, Inc.’s Proxy &taent for its 2015 Annual Meeting of Stockholdesiacorporated by reference into Part Il of
this Annual Report on Form 10-K.



CAUTIONARY STATEMENT CONCERNING FORWARD-LOOKING STAEMENTS

This Form 10-K includes “forward-looking statemémtéthin the meaning of Section 27A of the SecestiAct of 1933 and
Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 19834mended, with respect to our financial conditiesults of operations
and business and our expectations or beliefs coincefuture events. The forward-looking statemémtkide, in particular,
statements about our plans, strategies and prespeder the heading "Management’s Discussion aradlysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations”. You canfifieforward-looking statements because they contairds such as
“believes,” “expects,” “may,” “will,” “should,” “wauld,” “could,” “seeks,” “approximately,” “intends,plans,” “estimates,”
“outlook,” “anticipates” or “looking forward” or snilar expressions that relate to our strategy, ptarintentions. All
statements we make relating to our estimated asjdqted earnings, margins, costs, expenditureh, ftass, growth rates
and financial results or to our expectations reiggrtlture industry trends are forward-looking staents. In addition, we,
through our senior management, from time to timkerarward-looking public statements concerningexpected future
operations and performance and other developm@hisse forward-looking statements are subjecsis@nd uncertainties
that may change at any time, and, therefore, duahiesults may differ materially from those that expected. We derive
many of our forward-looking statements from ourragiag budgets and forecasts, which are based maory detailed
assumptions. While we believe that our assumptioaseasonable, we caution that it is very diffitupredict the impact
of known factors, and it is impossible for us tticpate all factors that could affect our actwedults. All forward-looking
statements are based upon information availahis t; the date of this Form 10-K.

”ou ” o ” ” ”ou ” o ” o

All forward-looking information and subsequent weit and oral forward-looking statements attribugdblus, or to persons
acting on our behalf, are expressly qualified &irtentirety by the cautionary statements. Sonthefactors that we believe
could affect our results include:

» risks associated with our substantial indebtedardslebt service;

« changes in prices and availability of resin anétpthw materials and our ability to pass on chaigesv material
prices on a timely basis;

« performance of our business and future operatisigtse

»  risks related to our acquisition strategy and irgign of acquired businesses;

» reliance on unpatented know-how and trade secrets;

* increases in the cost of compliance with laws aggilations, including environmental, safety, prdiucand product
laws and regulations;

»  risks related to disruptions in the overall econ@ng the financial markets that may adversely irnpacbusiness;

» catastrophic loss of one of our key manufacturawiifies, natural disasters, and other unplannesiniess
interruptions;

»  risks of competition, including foreign competition our existing and future markets;

» general business and economic conditions, partigudla economic downturn;

»  risks that our restructuring programs may entabtgr implementation costs or result in lower sastngs than
anticipated;

» the ability of our insurance to cover fully our eotial exposures; and

» the other factors discussed in the section titRidk Factors.”

We caution readers that the foregoing list of ingoairfactors may not contain all of the materiatdes that are important to
you. In addition, in light of these risks and unamties, the matters referred to in the forwaroking statements contained
in this Form 10-K may not in fact occur. Accordingnvestors should not place undue reliance osdtstatements. We
undertake no obligation to publicly update or re\asy forward-looking statement as a result of imf@rmation, future
events or otherwise, except as otherwise requiydavin
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Item 1. BUSINESS
(In millions of dollars, except as otherwise noted)
General

Berry Plastics Group, Inc. (“Berry” or the “Compéhig a leading provider of value-added plasticsiamer packaging and
engineered materials with a track record of deliagehigh-quality customized solutions to our custosn Representative
examples of our products include drink cups, thaibeontainers, bottles, specialty closures, pipson vials, specialty
films, adhesives and corrosion protection materisde sell our solutions predominantly into consworgented end-
markets, such as food and beverage, healthcangesasohal care.

We believe that we have created one of the laggesiuict libraries in our industry, allowing us te & comprehensive
solution provider to our customers. Our custorgerssist of a diverse mix of leading global, natipr@d-sized regional and
local specialty businesses. The size and scoperafustomer network allows us to introduce nevdpots we develop or
acquire to a vast audience that is familiar withlmand. In fiscal 2014, no single customer regméed more than
approximately 2% of net sales and our top ten cwuste represented 17% of net sales. We believeanufacturing
processes and our ability to leverage our scaledoce expenses on items, such as raw materialfippais as a low-cost
manufacturer relative to our competitors.

We organize our business into four operating divisi Rigid Open Top, Rigid Closed Top, (which tbgetmake up our
Rigid Packaging business), Engineered Material$ Fexible Packaging. Additional financial infortizan about our
business segments is provided in “Management'siBigan and Analysis of Financial Condition and Resf Operations”
and the “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statenjentsich are included elsewhere in this Form 10-K.

Recent Acquisitions
Graphic Flexible Packaging LLC’s Flexible Plast@sd Films

At the beginning of fiscal 2014, the Company acepiiGraphic Flexible Packaging LLC's flexible plastand films business
(“Graphic Plastics”) for a purchase price of $61liom, net of cash acquired. Graphic Plasticspsaducer of wraps, films,
pouches, and bags for the food, medical, indusp@bkonal care, and pet food markets. The Graflagtics business is
operated in our Flexible Packaging segment. Tanfie the purchase, the Company used existing ifiguid

Qingdao P&B Co., Ltd

In January 2014, the Company acquired the comtgpifiterest (75%) of Qingdao P&B Co., Ltd (“P&B9rfa purchase
price of $35 million, net of cash acquired. P&Bizss thermoform, injection, and automated assgmianufacturing
processes to produce products for multiple ma&tsss China as well as globally, most predomipaeiving the food and
personal care markets. P&B is operated in theilfilefeackaging segment. To finance the purcheseCbompany used
existing liquidity.

Rexam Healthcare Containers and Closures

In June 2014, the Company acquired Rexam’s Hea#tf@antainers and Closures business (“C&C”) fouglpase price of
$130 million, net of cash acquired. The C&C businproduces bottles, closures and specialty predicpharmaceutical
and over-the-counter applications. Facilities fedan the United States are operated in the Rigpded Top segment, and
locations outside the United States are operat#tkifrlexible Packaging segment. To finance thehase, the Company
used existing liquidity.

Recent Developments

2014 Cost Reduction Plan

In November 2013, the Company initiated a costetdu plan designed to deliver approximately $2tioni of cost savings
and improved equipment utilization. This plan resaiin several plant rationalizations. As a resfithese plant
rationalizations the Company has incurred overr@ion of costs during fiscal 2014 associated wihility consolidation,
including severance and termination benefits, atbsts associated with exiting facilities and naeskcasset impairment
charges.

Term Loan Refinancing



In January 2014, the Company entered into an inenéshassumption agreement to increase the comntitmeder the
Company’s existing term loan credit agreement h§ 28 billion. The Company borrowed loans in anraggte principal
amount equal to the full amount of the commitmemtsuch date. The incremental term loan bearesttat LIBOR plus
2.75% per annum with a LIBOR floor of 1.00%, masuireJanuary 2021 and is subject to customary &atan. The
proceeds from the incremental term loan, in addlitipexisting liquidity, were used to satisfy thestanding term loan
facility that was to mature in April 2015. The Cpamy recognized a $2 million loss on extinguishnoémtebt related to this
refinancing.

5%% Second Priority Senior Secured Notes

In May 2014, the Company issued $500 million of 5%&éond priority senior secured notes due 2022rdst on the 5%:%
second priority senior secured notes is due semiadly on May 15 and November 15. Proceeds framgbuance, in
addition to existing liquidity, were used to satishd discharge all of the outstanding 9%2% secoiodty senior secured
notes. The Company recognized a $33 million l@sextinguishment of debt related to this debt issaa

Secondary Public Offerings

In February 2014, June 2014 and August 2014, cefiaids affiliated with Apollo Global Management,C (“Apollo”)
sold 9 million shares in a secondary public offgriar proceeds of $205 million, 10 million sharasai secondary public
offering for proceeds of $237 million and 14.7 ioill shares in a secondary public offering for pestseof $360 million,
respectively. The Company received no proceedsramuared fees of approximately $1 million relatedhese offerings.
Following these offerings, Apollo no longer had @ity ownership in the Company.

Interest Rate Swap

In March 2014, the Company entered into an intesstswap transaction to manage cash flow vaitipb#sociated with $1
billion of outstanding variable rate term loan ddifte agreement swapped the greater of a threehrmariable LIBOR
contract or 1.00% for a fixed three-year rate 682, with an effective date in February 2016 arplraton in February
2019.

Product Overview
Rigid Packaging

Our Rigid Packaging business primarily consistsasftainers, foodservice items, closures, overdagties, prescription
containers, and tubes. The largest end uses fqramltages are consumer-oriented end markets sfobdand beverage,
retail mass marketers, healthcare, personal cdrb@msehold chemical. Many of our products areufsatured from
proprietary molds that we develop and own, whichbefeve would result in significant costs to oustomers to switch to a
different supplier. In addition to a complete prodline, we have sophisticated decorating capegsiland in-house graphic
arts and tooling departments, which allow us tegrate ourselves into, and, we believe, add samifivalue to, our
customers’ packaging design processes. Our priomanpetitors include Airlite, Letica, PolytaineSlgan, Aptar Group,
and Reynolds. These competitors individually adynpete on certain of our products, whereas we thféeentire selection
of rigid products described below.

Containers. We manufacture a collection of nationally brandedtainer products and also seek to develop ciztdm
container products for niche applications by leg&rg our state-of-the-art design, decoration amglgic arts capabilities.
We believe this mix allows us to both achieve digant economies of scale, while also maintainingtiractive portfolio of
specialty products. Our container capacities rdraye four ounces to five gallons and are offereslarious styles with
accompanying lids, bails and handles, some of wihielproduce, as well as a wide array of decoraipigpns. We have
long-standing supply relationships with many of tlaéion’s leading food and consumer products coiegan

Foodservice.We believe that we are one of the largest prosidélarge size thermoformed polypropylene (“P&iy
injection-molded plastic drink cups in the UnitedtBs. We produce plastic cups that range infsire 12 to 64 ounces.
Primary markets for our plastic drink cups are Ksiervice and family dining restaurants, convergestores, stadiums and
retail stores. Many of our cups are decorateenadis promotional items, and we believe we haepatation in the industry
for innovative, state-of-the-art graphics.

Closures and Overcapsd/Ve believe we are a leading producer of closanelsovercaps across several of our product lines,
including continuous-thread and child-resistansates, as well as aerosol overcaps. We curregltlgus closures into
numerous end markets, including household, chepfiealthcare, food/beverage and personal caraddition to traditional
closures, we are a provider of a wide selectiocusfom closure solutions including fitments andypltor medical
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applications, cups and spouts for liquid laundrgdgent, and dropper bulb assemblies for medichpansonal care
applications. Further, we believe that we ardehding domestic producer of injection-molded agrosercaps. Our
aerosol overcaps are used in a wide variety ofurors goods including spray paints, household argbpal care products,
insecticides and numerous other commercial anduooaisproducts. We believe our technical expeaisemanufacturing
capabilities provide us a low-cost position that hbowed us to become a leading provider of highlity closures and
overcaps to a diverse set of leading companiesbéeve our manufacturing advantage is drivenumypmsition on the
forefront of various technologies, including theekt in single- and bi-injection processes, pre@peoduction of colors,
automation and vision technology and proprietackiay technology that minimizes freight cost andet@use space. A
majority of our overcaps and closures are manufadtfrom proprietary molds, which we design, depebnd own. In
addition to these molds, we utilize state-of-thdiaing, assembly, and decorating equipment tcaenh the value and
performance of our products in the market.

Bottles and Prescription Container©ur bottle and prescription container businetaget markets similar to our closure
business. We believe, based on management esjrtieiewe have a leadership position in varioosl fand beverage,
vitamin and nutritional markets. Additionally, welieve we are a leading supplier in the presaiiptiontainer market,
supplying a complete line of amber containers Wwith one-piece and two-piece child-resistant cksuiVe offer an
extensive line of stock polyethylene (“PE”) andymthylene terephthalate (“PET”) bottles for themiin and nutritional
markets. Our design capabilities, along with imengineering strength give us the ability to peta on customized
designs to provide desired differentiation fronditianal packages. We also offer our customersideed bottles with hot
stamping, silk screening and labeling.

Tubes. We offer a complete line of extruded and lamirtabes in a wide variety of sizes. We believe tatre one of the
largest suppliers of extruded plastic squeeze tnbiee United States. Our focus and investmeetsrede to ensure that we
are able to meet the increasing trend towards Biegaeter tubes with high-end decoration. We ts@weral proprietary
designs in this market that combine tube and ctothat we believe are viewed as very innovativé boappearance and
functionality. The majority of our tubes are soldhe personal care market, focusing on prodilasécial/cold creams,
shampoos, conditioners, bath/shower gels, lotsuscare, hair gels, and anti-aging creams. Wesal§our tubes into the
pharmaceutical and household chemical marketsbéheve that our ability to provide creative packagsigns, combined
with a complementary line of closures, makes ueteped supplier for many customers in our tangetkets.

Engineered Materials

Our Engineered Materials business primarily coagi§pipeline corrosion protection solutions, taged adhesives, PE-
based film products and can liners. Our primampgetitors include AEP, Canusa, Intertape, Sigma3hd The
Engineered Materials business primarily includesftfiowing product groups:

Corrosion Protection ProductsWe believe we are a leading global producer tf@mrosion products to infrastructure,
rehabilitation and new pipeline projects throughbetworld. We believe our products deliver surgperformance across
all climates and terrains for the purpose of sgalioupling, and rehabilitation and corrosion pette of pipelines.
Products include heat-shrinkable coatings, siregielmulti-layer sleeves, pipeline coating tapesdarsystems for cathodic
protection, visco-elastic, and epoxy coatings. sEhgroducts are used in oil, gas, and water s@gwulyconstruction
applications. Our customers primarily include caators managing discrete construction projectsratdhe world as well
as distributors and applicators.

Tape ProductsWe believe we are a leading North American mactufar of cloth and foil tape products. Other tape
products include high-quality, high-performancetmof splicing and laminating tapes, flame-retardapes, vinyl-coated
and carton sealing tapes, electrical, double-fatti, masking, mounting, OEM, and medical and sfitgydapes. These
products are sold under the NatianaNashua®, and Polyken® brands in the United Stafepe products are sold
primarily through distributors and directly to emskrs and are used predominantly in industrial, By&utomotive,
construction, and retail market applications. ddition to serving our core tape end markets, Wielmwe are also a
leading producer of tapes in the niche aerospacstruiction and medical end markets. We beliesedbr success in
serving these additional markets is principally ttua combination of technical and manufacturingestise leveraged in
favor of customized applications.

Retail Bags.We manufacture and sell a diversified portfolid®&-based film products to end users in the retailkets.
These products are sold under leading brands suRifies® and Film-Gard®. Our products includepicloths and retail
trash bags. These products are sold primarilytiitavholesale outlets, hardware stores and hontersepaint stores, and
mass merchandisers.

PVC Films. We believe, based on management estimates, ¢hatera world leader in PVC films offering a bready of
PVC meat film. Our products are used primarilwtap fresh meats, poultry, and produce for supeeetapplications. In
addition, we offer a line of boxed products fordas®ervice and retail sales. We service many olieididing supermarket
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chains, club stores, and wholesalers. We believare a leading innovator and specialize in lighterge sustainable
solutions like our recent Revolution™ product loféering.

Institutional Can Liners.We sell trash-can liners and food bags for officestaurants, schools, hospitals, hotels,
municipalities, and manufacturing facilities. Wsocesell products under the Big City®, Hospi-TuffRlas-Tuff®, Rhino-
X®, and Steel-Flex® brands.

Stretch and Shrink FilmsWe produce both hand and machine-wrap streteis #ind custom shrink films, which are used to
prepare products and packages for storage andrsfpipp/e sell stretch and shrink film products tiwerse mix of end
users under the MaxTech®, PalleTech® and OptiMit@nls.

Flexible Packaging

Our Flexible Packaging division consists of highriea, multilayer film products as well as finishBeixible packages such
as pouches and includes various immaterial intemmedtoperations. The largest end uses for ouitlle products are
consumer-oriented end markets such as food anddgeyemedical, and personal care. Our primary etitops include
Printpak, Clopay, Tredegar, and Bemis. The Flexitdckaging division primarily includes the follogiproduct groups:

Personal Care FilmsWe believe we are a major supplier of componedtackaging films used for personal care hygiene
applications predominantly sold in North America dratin America. The end use applications inclddposable baby
diapers, feminine care, adult incontinence, hokpital tissue and towel products. Our Lifetimé&ofutions™ approach
promotes an innovation pipeline that seeks to mtegooth product and equipment design into leaelduge customer and
consumer solutions.

Food and Consumer FilmsNe are a converter of printed bags, pouchesralstbck. Our manufacturing base includes
integrated extrusion that combines with printiragminating, bagmaking, Innolok®, and laser-scoreseding processes.
We believe we are a leading supplier of printed firoducts for the fresh bakery, tortilla, and éwzegetable markets with
brands such as SteamQuick® Film, Freshview™ bagkBélboard™. We also manufacture barrier filnsed for cereal,
cookie, cracker and dry mix packages that aredicddtly to food manufactures.

Converter Films.We manufacture specialty coated and laminatedugts for a wide variety of packaging applicatiass
well as a wide range of highly specialized, madertter film products ranging from mono layer to xtoeded films having
up to nine layers, lamination films sold primatityflexible packaging converters and used for geelbd stock, stand-up
pouches, pillow pouches, and other flexible padgkgfprmats. The key end markets and applicationsdr products
include healthcare, industrial and military pouchielf wrap, multi-wall bags, and fiber drum packag We also
manufacture films for specialized industrial apafiens ranging from lamination film for carpet pauglto films used in
solar panel construction.

International. We manufacture products predominately servingytbleal food and personal care markets. Our
manufacturing base includes a variety of technelgsed to produce a wide range of products.

Marketing and Sales

We reach our large and diversified customer baseigin our direct field sales force of dedicatedgssionals and the
strategic use of distributors. Our field salesdoiction and support staff meet with customersderstand their needs and
improve our product offerings and services. Ouatesenables us to dedicate certain sales and rimgyleftorts to particular
products, customers or geographic regions, whelicapfe, which enables us to develop expertisewleabelieve is valued
by our customers. In addition, because we sem@@n customers across segments, we have the abiéfficiently utilize
our sales and marketing resources to minimize ca4ighly skilled customer service representatsgsport the national
field sales force. In addition, inside sales reprgatives, marketing managers, and sales/marlestamitives oversee the
marketing and sales efforts. Manufacturing andresgging personnel work closely with field salesspanel and customer
service representatives to satisfy customers’ néedagh the production of high-quality, value-adigeeoducts and on-time
deliveries.

We believe that we have differentiated ourselvesfcompetitors by building a reputation for higtalijty products,
customer service and innovation. Our sales teanitore customer service in an effort to ensure wWeatemain the primary
supplier for our key accounts. This strategy negguiis to develop and maintain strong relationshigisour customers,
including end users as well as distributors andiedars. We have a technical sales team withfiggni knowledge of our
products and processes, particularly in specialigeducts. This knowledge enables our sales amkiatirag team to work
closely with our research and development organizand our customers to co-develop products amduiations to meet
specific performance requirements. This partnprahproach enables us to further expand our rekdtips with our existing
customer base, develop relationships with new ouste and increase sales of new products.
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Research, Product Development and Design

We believe our technology base and research arelapexment support are among the best in the plgstickaging industry.
Using three-dimensional computer-aided design @ogies, our full-time product designers develapowvative product
designs and models for the packaging market. Wesicaulate the molding environment by running pélggtems for
injection-molding, thermoform, compression blow dioy machines and blown and cast film machinesdeearch and
development of new products. Production moldgteer designed and outsourced for production byuarcompanies with
which we have extensive experience and establigiaiibnships or built by our in-house tooling digin located in
Evansville, Indiana. Our engineers oversee thel+hollding process from start to finish. Many ofr @ustomers work in
partnership with our technical representativeseteetbp new, more competitive products. We havewecdd our
relationships with these customers by providingtémhnical service needed to develop products amedbivith our internal
graphic arts support. We also utilize our in-hogisgphic design department to develop color andsstgr new rigid
products. Our design professionals work direcitjwur customers to develop new styles and usguatemngenerated
graphics to enable our customers to visualizeittighied product.

Additionally, at our major technical centers, irdihg our design studios in Evansville, Indianaywadi as facilities in
Franklin, Kentucky and Chippewa Falls, Wisconsie; prototype new ideas, conduct research and dewelapof new
products and processes, and qualify productioesysthat go directly to our facilities and intogwotion. With this
combination of manufacturing simulation and quadiygtems support we are able to improve time ti&ebtand reduce cost.
We spent $32 million, $28 million, and $25 million research and development in fiscal 2014, 208282, respectively.

Sources and Availability of Raw Materials

The most important raw material purchased by piastic resin. Our plastic resin purchasing stryatego conduct business

with only high-quality, dependable suppliers. Vdidwe that we have maintained strong relationshigis our key suppliers
and expect that such relationships will continde the foreseeable future. The resin market i®bajimarket and, based on
our experience, we believe that adequate quantitipistic resins will be available at market pgcbut we can provide no

assurances as to such availability or the pricazdt.

We also purchase various other materials, includatgral and butyl rubber, tackifying resins, cheats and adhesives,
paper and packaging materials, linerboard andToise materials are generally available from abmurof suppliers.

Employees

At the end of fiscal 2014, we employed over 16,80(ployees. Approximately 11% of our employeescakered by
collective bargaining agreements. One of our eleagreements, covering approximately 30 employeas scheduled for
renegotiation in October 2014 and was recentlyreled for three years. There are an additionaldgreements,
representing approximately 60% of the remaininglegges, due for renegotiation in fiscal 2015. Témaining agreements
expire after fiscal 2015. Our relations with enygles under collective bargaining agreements regadisfactory and there
have been no significant work stoppages or othwarldisputes during the past three years.

Patents, Trademarks and Other Intellectual Property

We rely on a combination of patents, trade seangfsatented know-how, trademarks, copyrights ahdrantellectual
property rights, nondisclosure agreements and pifoéective measures to protect our proprietatytsig While we consider
our intellectual property to be important to ousiness in the aggregate, we do not believe thairaiyidual item of our
intellectual property portfolio is material to azurrent business. The remaining duration of oterga ranges from one to
approximately 20 years.

We employ various methods, including confidentyadihd non-disclosure agreements with third paréegloyees and
consultants, to protect our trade secrets and kmom- We have licensed, and may license in thedupatents, trademarks,
trade secrets, and similar proprietary rights @ faom third parties.

Environmental Matters and Government Regulation

Our past and present operations and our past asdmirownership and operations of real propertg@gct to extensive
and changing federal, state, local, and foreigrirenmental laws and regulations pertaining to tisettarge of materials into
the environment, handling and disposition of waaste] cleanup of contaminated soil and ground watestherwise relating
to the protection of the environment. We beliehat tve are in substantial compliance with applieavvironmental laws
and regulations. However, we cannot predict with eertainty that we will not in the future inciaBility with respect to
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noncompliance with environmental laws and reguteti@ontamination of sites formerly or currentlymad or operated by
us (including contamination caused by prior owrsrd operators of such sites) or the off-site digpokregulated materials,
which could be material.

We may from time to time be required to conductediation of releases of regulated materials abwured or operated
facilities. None of our pending remediation prégegre expected to result in material costs. hikg manufacturer, we are
also subject to the possibility that we may receietices of potential liability in connection withaterials that were sent to
third-party recycling, treatment, and/or disposailities under the Federal Comprehensive EnvirontaidResponse,
Compensation and Liability Act of 1980, as amen@€ERCLA”), and comparable state statutes, whichase liability for
investigation and remediation of contamination withregard to fault or the legality of the condilnett contributed to the
contamination, and for damages to natural resourcedility under CERCLA is retroactive, and, undertain
circumstances, liability for the entire cost ofl@aniup can be imposed on any responsible partyard/aot aware that any
such notices are currently pending which are exlett result in material costs.

The Food and Drug Administration (“FDA”) regulatee material content of direct-contact food andygrackages,
including certain packages we manufacture purdoathe Federal Food, Drug and Cosmetics Act. @eofeour products
are also regulated by the Consumer Product Safatyn@ssion (“CPSC”) pursuant to various federal lawsluding the
Consumer Product Safety Act and the Poison PrexeRi@ckaging Act. Both the FDA and the CPSC cquire the
manufacturer of defective products to repurchaseaall such products and may also impose fingepalties on the
manufacturer. Similar laws exist in some statiigscand other countries in which we sell our pictd. In addition, laws
exist in certain states restricting the sale okpging with certain levels of heavy metals, impgdines and penalties for
noncompliance. Although we believe that we use Epgroved resins and pigments in our productsdinettly contact
food and drug products, and we believe our prodaretsn material compliance with all applicableuiegments, we remain
subject to the risk that our products could be tboot to be in compliance with such requirements.

The plastics industry, including us, is subjeattesting and potential federal, state, local andigm legislation designed to
reduce solid waste by requiring, among other thipgstics to be degradable in landfills, minimwwels of recycled
content, various recycling requirements, dispasas fand limits on the use of plastic productgalicular, certain states
have enacted legislation requiring products paakayelastic containers to comply with standardsrided to encourage
recycling and increased use of recycled materialaddition, various consumer and special integesips have lobbied
from time to time for the implementation of thesel @ther similar measures. We believe that thislegn promulgated to
date and such initiatives to date have not hadtarrabadverse effect on us. There can be no asserthat any such future
legislative or regulatory efforts or future inifiss would not have a material adverse effect on us

Available Information

We make available, free of charge, our annual temor Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Qrexut reports on
Form 8-K and amendments, if any, to those repbrtaigh our internet website as soon as practicdtdethey have been
electronically filed with or furnished to the SEQOur internet address is www.berryplastics.come iffiormation contained
on our website is not being incorporated herein.

[tem 1A. RISK FACTORS
Our substantial indebtedness could affect our atyilto meet our obligations and may otherwise redtour activities.

We have a significant amount of indebtedness. fAlseoend of fiscal 2014, we had total indebtediestuding current
portion) of $3,918 million with cash and cash eagiewts totaling $129 million. We would have bebtedo borrow a
further $570 million under the revolving portionair senior secured credit facilities, subjechi $olvency of our lenders
to fund their obligations and our borrowing badewations. We are permitted by the terms of abtdnstruments to incur
substantial additional indebtedness, subject toeskeictions therein. Our inability to generatéfisient cash flow to satisfy
our debt obligations, or to refinance our obligasi@n commercially reasonable terms, would havatenmal adverse effect
on our business, financial condition and resultsparations.

Our substantial indebtedness could have importamteguences. For example, it could:

« limit our ability to borrow money for our workingapital, capital expenditures, debt service requarmnor other
corporate purposes;

e require us to dedicate a substantial portion ofcash flow to payments on our indebtedness, whimhidweduce the
amount of cash flow available to fund working cabitapital expenditures, product development dhdrcorporate
requirements;

* increase our vulnerability to general adverse esonand industry conditions; and

« limit our ability to respond to business opporti@sit including growing our business through actjoiss.
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In addition, the credit agreements and indentuogeming our current indebtedness contain, andwatnye debt instruments
would likely contain, financial and other restngticovenants, which will impose significant opergtand financial
restrictions on us, including restrictions on obitity to, among other things:

e incur or guarantee additional debt;

* pay dividends and make other restricted payments;

*  create or incur certain liens;

* make certain investments;

» engage in sales of assets and subsidiary stock;

* enter into transactions with affiliates;

» transfer all or substantially all of our assetgiter into merger or consolidation transactiond; an
* make capital expenditures.

As a result of these covenants, we will be limitethe manner in which we conduct our business yvenchay be unable to
engage in favorable business activities or findntge operations or capital needs. Furthermofai/@e to comply with
these covenants could result in an event of defahith, if not cured or waived, could have a matexdverse effect on our
business, financial condition, and results of ojemna.

Increases in resin prices or a shortage of availabesin could harm our financial condition and re#ts of operations.

To produce our products, we use large quantitiggastic resins. Plastic resins are subject wegdtuctuations, including
those arising from supply shortages and changgeiprices of natural gas, crude oil and otheioghgmical intermediates
from which resins are produced. Over the pastrakyears, we have at times experienced rapidigasing resin prices. If
rapid increases in resin prices continue, our regemd profitability may be materially and adversdéfected, both in the
short term as we attempt to pass through changhe jprice of resin to customers under currenteageats and in the long
term as we negotiate new agreements or if our e®seek product substitution.

We source plastic resin primarily from major indystuppliers and we have long-standing relatiorsshiith certain of these
suppliers. We may not be able to arrange for atberces of resin in the event of an industry-vgeeeral shortage of resins
used by us, or a shortage or discontinuation d&icetypes of grades of resin purchased from omeave of our suppliers.

In addition, the largest supplier of the Compangtal resin material requirements represented appetely 22% of
purchases during fiscal 2014. Any such shortagemeerially negatively impact our competitive gingi versus
companies that are able to better or more cheaplgs resin.

We may not be able to compete successfully andcostomers may not continue to purchase our products

We face intense competition in the sale of our pat&land compete with multiple companies in eaasuofproduct lines.

We compete on the basis of a number of considesatincluding price, service, quality, product eweristics and the
ability to supply products to customers in a timmignner. Our products also compete with metadsglgaper and other
packaging materials as well as plastic packagin@griaés made through different manufacturing preess Some of these
competitive products are not subject to the impéchanges in resin prices which may have a siganiti and negative
impact on our competitive position versus subgtiprbducts. Our competitors may have financial@hér resources that
are substantially greater than ours and may bertagite than us to withstand higher costs. Intemfgiour success may
depend on our ability to adapt to technologicahgfes, and if we fail to enhance existing produntsdevelop and introduce
new products and new production technologies imaly fashion in response to changing market camditand customer
demands, our competitive position could be matgréaid adversely affected. Furthermore, some otastomers do and
could in the future choose to manufacture the prtedihey require for themselves. Each of our peolitoes faces a different
competitive landscape. Competition could resutiuin products losing market share or our havingduice our prices, either
of which would have a material adverse effect anbmusiness and results of operations and finanoiadlition. In addition,
since we do not have long-term arrangements witlyrofour customers, these competitive factorsacealise our
customers to shift suppliers and/or packaging rizdiguickly.

We may pursue and execute acquisitions, which coadtversely affect our business.

As part of our growth strategy, we plan to consttleracquisition of other companies, assets ardliptdines that either
complement or expand our existing business andeceeanomic value. We cannot assure you that Wiéevable to
consummate any such transactions or that any fatueisitions will be consummated at acceptableprand terms.

We continually evaluate potential acquisition oppoities in the ordinary course of business, iniclgdhose that could be
material in size and scope. Acquisitions involveuenber of special risks, including:



» the diversion of management’s attention and ressuie the assimilation of the acquired companidgfagir employees
and to the management of expanding operations;

» the incorporation of acquired products into ourdoict line;

*  problems associated with maintaining relationshijls employees and customers of acquired businesses

» the increasing demands on our operational systems;

» ability to integrate and implement effective distlee controls and procedures and internal corftvolinancial
reporting within the allowable time frame as petedtby Sarbanes-Oxley Act;

»  possible adverse effects on our reported operegsgts, particularly during the first several ey periods after such
acquisitions are completed; and

» the loss of key employees and the difficulty ofgarting a unified corporate image.

We may become responsible for unexpected lialsilttiat we failed or were unable to discover indiwerse of performing
due diligence in connection with historical acdiosis and any future acquisitions. We have typiaaiquired selling
stockholders to indemnify us against certain unoésd liabilities. However, we cannot assure yai indemnification
rights we have obtained, or will in the future abtavill be enforceable, collectible or sufficiantamount, scope or duration
to fully offset the possible liabilities associatgith the business or property acquired. Any efkthliabilities, individually or
in the aggregate, could have a material adversetash our business, financial condition and resafloperations.

In addition, we may not be able to successfullggrate future acquisitions without substantial sadtlays or other
problems. The costs of such integration could lzeneterial adverse effect on our operating reanitsfinancial condition.
Although we conduct what we believe to be a prutkargl of investigation regarding the businessepurehase, in light of
the circumstances of each transaction, an unaveitiakel of risk remains regarding the actual ctadiof these businesses.
Until we actually assume operating control of sbakinesses and their assets and operations, waohhg able to ascertain
the actual value or understand the potential ligdslof the acquired entities and their operatioRsrthermore, we may not
realize all of the cost savings and synergies weeto achieve from our current strategic inii@si due to a variety of risks,
including, but not limited to, difficulties in inggating shared services with our business, hidteer eéxpected employee
severance or retention costs, higher than expestethead expenses, delays in the anticipated tiofiagtivities related to
our cost-saving plans and other unexpected costeiated with operating our business. If we a@bleto achieve the cost
savings or synergies that we expect to achieve fnonstrategic initiatives, it could adversely affeur business, financial
condition and results of operations.

We may not be successful in protecting our intetlesl property rights, including our unpatented projetary know-how
and trade secrets, or in avoiding claims that wérimged on the intellectual property rights of othe

In addition to relying on patent and trademark tsgkve rely on unpatented proprietary know-how taade secrets, and
employ various methods, including confidentialigreements with employees and consultants, custamedrsuppliers to
protect our know-how and trade secrets. Howekiesd methods and our patents and trademarks maffeorot complete
protection and there can be no assurance thasot#lilénot independently develop the know-how aradié secrets or
develop better production methods than us. Fyriteemay not be able to deter current and formegai@yees, contractors
and other parties from breaching confidentialityeegnents and misappropriating proprietary inforamagind it is possible
that third parties may copy or otherwise obtain @se our information and proprietary technologyhaitt authorization or
otherwise infringe on our intellectual propertyhtigs Additionally, we have licensed, and may lgem the future, patents,
trademarks, trade secrets, and similar proprietghys to third parties. While we attempt to emstinat our intellectual
property and similar proprietary rights are pratedovhen entering into business relationships, farties may take actions
that could materially and adversely affect our tsghr the value of our intellectual property, saniproprietary rights or
reputation. In the future, we may also rely oigdition to enforce our intellectual property rightsd contractual rights, and,
if not successful, we may not be able to proteetmdlue of our intellectual property. Any litigai could be protracted and
costly and could have a material adverse effecsrbusiness and results of operations regardfetsautcome.

Our success depends in part on our ability to nptailicense from third parties, patents, tradémarade secrets and
similar proprietary rights without infringing onetproprietary rights of third parties. Although bieve our intellectual
property rights are sufficient to allow us to cootdour business without incurring liability to tHiparties, our products may
infringe on the intellectual property rights of Bymersons. Furthermore, no assurance can be thisewe will not be

subject to claims asserting the infringement ofitiellectual property rights of third parties segkdamages, the payment of
royalties or licensing fees and/or injunctions aghihe sale of our products. Any such litigationld be protracted and
costly and could have a material adverse effeciusrbusiness, financial condition and results afrapions.

Current and future environmental and other governmial requirements could adversely affect our findatcondition
and our ability to conduct our business.
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Our operations are subject to federal, state, lacal foreign environmental laws and regulatiomas ihpose limitations on
the discharge of pollutants into the air and wastablish standards for the treatment, storageliapdsal of solid and
hazardous waste and require cleanup of contamisdésd While we have not been required histdyicalmake significant
capital expenditures in order to comply with apgdfile environmental laws and regulations, we capregtict with any
certainty our future capital expenditure requiretadrecause of continually changing compliance statsdand
environmental technology. Furthermore, violationsontaminated sites that we do not know abouatu@ing
contamination caused by prior owners and operafosach sites or newly discovered information) daesult in additional
compliance or remediation costs or other liabgitihich could be material. We have limited insgeacoverage for
potential environmental liabilities associated witktoric and current operations and we do notguatie increasing such
coverage in the future. We may also assume signifienvironmental liabilities in connection wittgaisitions. In addition,
federal, state, local, and foreign governmentsccenhct laws or regulations concerning environniemgdters that increase
the cost of producing, or otherwise adversely atfee demand for, plastic products. Legislaticat thould prohibit, tax or
restrict the sale or use of certain types of piastd other containers, and would require diversfcsolid waste such as
packaging materials from disposal in landfills, basn or may be introduced in the U.S. Congreastg kgislatures, and
other legislative bodies. While container legiskathas been adopted in a few jurisdictions, sinfidgislation has been
defeated in public referenda in several stateg] lelections and many state and local legislatggsisns. Although we
believe that the laws promulgated to date havdadta material adverse effect on us, there caw lbssurance that future
legislation or regulation would not have a matesiderse effect on us. Furthermore, a declinemsamer preference for
plastic products due to environmental considerat@muld have a negative effect on our business.

The FDA, regulates the material content of direxitact food and drug packages we manufacture mirsuthe Federal
Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act. Furthermore, sonmmuofproducts are regulated by the CPSC, pursuastrious federal
laws, including the Consumer Product Safety ActttwedPoison Prevention Packaging Act. Both the DA the CPSC
can require the manufacturer of defective prodiactepurchase or recall these products and mayrafsese fines or
penalties on the manufacturer. Similar laws @risbme states, cities and other countries in wivelsell products. In
addition, laws exist in certain states restrictimg sale of packaging with certain levels of heaggals and imposing fines
and penalties for noncompliance. Although we U3A{approved resins and pigments in our productsdinactly contact
food and drug products and we believe our prodaretsn material compliance with all applicable riegjments, we remain
subject to the risk that our products could be éboot to be in compliance with these and otheriremqents. A recall of any
of our products or any fines and penalties impasetnnection with noncompliance could have a ntgradverse effect
on us. See “Business—Environmental Matters ance@wrent Regulation.”

In the event of a catastrophic loss of one of owgykmanufacturing facilities, our business would beversely affected.

While we manufacture our products in a large nurolbeiversified facilities and maintain insuranaering our facilities,
including business interruption insurance, a cadpbic loss of the use of all or a portion of ohewr key manufacturing
facilities due to accident, labor issues, weatbedtions, natural disaster or otherwise, whethertor long-term, could
have a material adverse effect on us.

We depend on information technology systems andasfructure to operate our business, system inadsgies or failures
could harm our business.

We rely on the efficient and uninterrupted operatib complex information technology systems andvoets. These
systems and networks are potentially vulnerabifatnage or interruption from a variety of sourcesluding energy or
telecommunications failures, breakdowns, natusssters, terrorism, war, computer malware or atf@icious intrusions,
and random attacks. To date, system interruptiame been infrequent and have not had a matefp@dhon the business.
However, there can be no assurance that theséseffitirprevent future interruptions that would lesa material adverse
effect on our business

Goodwill and other intangibles represent a signéict amount of our net worth, and a future write-offould result in
lower reported net income and a reduction of ourteorth.

As of the end of our 2014 fiscal year, the net @afiour goodwill and other intangibles was $2,#tlion. We are required
to evaluate goodwill reflected on our balance shdesn circumstances indicate a potential impairyreardat least annually,
under the impairment testing guidelines outlinethenstandard. Future changes in the cost ofatapkpected cash flows,
or other factors may cause our goodwill to be imgzhiresulting in a non-cash charge against restitiperations to write
off goodwill for the amount of impairment. If atfwe write-off is required, the charge could haveaerial adverse effect
on our reported results of operations and net worthe period of any such write-off.
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Disruptions in the overall economy and the finantiamarkets may adversely impact our business.

Our industry is affected by macroeconomic factimmdpding national, regional, and local econominditions, employment
levels, and shifts in consumer spending patteBDistuptions in the overall economy and volatilitythe financial markets
could reduce consumer confidence in the econongatively affecting consumer spending, which cowddharmful to our
financial position and results of operations. Uotsevent, decreased cash flow generated fromusiméss may adversely
affect our financial position and our ability taiour operations. In addition, major macroecoratisruptions involving
the financial markets could adversely affect odlitgtio access the credit markets and availabdityinancing for our
operations.

We had net losses in recent years and we may ngirbitable in the future.

We generated net income in three of our last fs@af years; however, in the other two fiscal yeaesincurred net losses of
over $100 million per year. We may not generatémetme from operations in the future, and contiguiet losses may
limit our ability to execute our strategy. Factoamitributing to our financial performance inclutEn-cash impairment
charges, depreciation/amortization on our longlitgangible and intangible assets, interest expemseir debt obligations as
well as other factors more fully disclosed in “Mgeanent’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Ctholiand Results of
Operations.”

We are a holding company and rely on dividends arder payments, advances and transfers of fundsxrour
subsidiaries to meet our obligations and pay divids.

Berry Plastics Group, Inc. has no direct operatang no significant assets other than ownershi®6%6 of the stock of
Berry Plastics Corporation. Because Berry Plagiicaip, Inc. conducts its operations through itsiliaries, it depends on
those entities for dividends and other paymenggeterate the funds necessary to meet its finaoloiiglations, and to pay
any dividends with respect to our common stockalegd contractual restrictions in the agreemen¥eiqiing current and
future indebtedness of Berry Plastics Group, Irgulssidiaries, as well as the financial conditiod eperating requirements
of Berry Plastics Group, Inc.’s subsidiaries, maytlBerry Plastics Group, Inc.’s ability to obtaitash from its subsidiaries.
The earnings from, or other available assets afyB#&astics Group, Inc.’s subsidiaries may nosbiicient to pay
dividends or make distributions or loans to en&#ay Plastics Group, Inc. to pay dividends goiogvard.

The requirements of having a class of publicly tedl equity securities may strain our resources anstrdct management.

As a company with publicly traded equity securitige are subject to additional reporting requiretmefithe Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, or the Exchange Act and drb&hes-Oxley Act of 2002, which we refer to as'8erbanes-Oxley
Act.” The Sarbanes-Oxley Act requires that we r@@neffective disclosure controls and procedurekiaternal control
over financial reporting. Our independent pubicaintants auditing our financial statements agaired to attest to the
effectiveness of our internal control over finahogporting. In order to continue to maintain #ftectiveness of our
disclosure controls and procedures and interndtalaover financial reporting significant resour@s management
oversight is required.

In addition, the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform &whsumer Protection Act, which we refer to as “Dédank” and which
amended the Sarbanes-Oxley Act and other fedeval lzas created uncertainty for public companied vee cannot predict
with any certainty the requirements of the regatatithat will ultimately be adopted under Dodd-kranhow such
regulations will affect the cost of compliance éocompany with publicly traded common stock. Thetikely to be
continuing uncertainty regarding compliance matbersause the application of these laws and regofativhich are subject
to varying interpretations, may evolve over timenaw guidance is provided by regulatory and goverbiodies. We intend
to invest resources to comply with these evolvavgs and regulations, which will result in increagederal and
administrative expenses and divert management&saind attention from other business concerns.h&umbre, if our
compliance efforts differ from the activities tmagulatory and governing bodies expect or intereltdlambiguities related
to interpretation or practice, we may face legatpedings initiated by such regulatory or govertiadies and our business
may be harmed. In addition, new rules and reguiatimay make it more difficult for us to attractiaatain qualified
directors and officers and will make it more expeam$or us to obtain director and officer liabilitysurance.

Our international sales and operations are subj¢atapplicable laws relating to trade, export corispand foreign corrupt
practices, the violation of which could adverselffexct our operations.

We must comply with all applicable internationalde, export and import laws and regulations ofthited States and other
countries. We are subject to export controls amth@mic sanctions laws and embargoes imposed By.eGovernment.
Changes in trade sanctions laws may restrict osinbss practices, including cessation of businesstees in sanctioned
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countries or with sanctioned entities, and maylt@sunodifications to compliance programs. We als® subject to the
Foreign Corrupt Practices Act and other anti-bsibaws that generally bar bribes or unreasonalfie i foreign
governments or officials. We have implemented s#deds and policies to discourage these practicesibgmployees and
agents. However, our existing safeguards and pelici assure compliance and any future improvemesysprove to be
less than effective and our employees or agentsamgage in conduct for which we might be held rasjte. If employees
violate our policies, we may be subject to reguiaganctions. Violations of these laws or regulaicould result in
sanctions including fines, debarment from expdxtilpges and penalties and could adversely affecbasiness, financial
condition and results of operations.

We may not be able to achieve cost savings asultrebour restructuring efforts and productivity rad cost reduction
initiatives.

From time to time we enter into cost reduction pldasigned to deliver cost savings and improvepeagt utilization. Our
ability to achieve the anticipated cost savings@her benefits from these initiatives within thepected time frame is
subject to many estimates and assumptions. Addltigrthere are many factors which affect our apith achieve savings as
a result of productivity and cost reduction initias, such as difficult economic conditions, insecosts in other areas, the
effects of and costs related to newly acquirediestimistaken assumptions, and the other risbfasket forth herein. In
addition, any actual savings may be balanced brginental costs that were not foreseen at the tfrtteeaestructuring or
cost reduction initiatives. As a result, anticigbsavings may not be achieved on the timetableetksr at all. Additionally,
while we execute these restructuring activitieadbieve these savings, it is possible that ountii® may be diverted from
our ongoing operations which may have a negatiy@@non our ongoing operations.

ltem 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None
ltem 2. PROPERTIES

We lease or own our principal offices and manufatufacilities. We believe that our property aguipment is well-
maintained, in good operating condition and adegfatour present needs. As of the end of fisb&k2the locations of our
principal manufacturing facilities, by country, a®follows: United States—77 locations (44 Rigatkaging, 18
Engineered Materials, 15 Flexible Packaging); Caradl locations (1 Rigid Packaging, 2 Engineered kit 1 Flexible
Packaging); Mexico—®6 locations (3 Rigid Packagih@ngineered Materials, 1 Flexible Packaging);dre® locations (1
Engineered Materials, 1 Flexible Packaging), Ththbidands, Belgium, Germany and Australia (Engieééfaterials);
Brazil, Malaysia, and Singapore (Rigid Packagiagy] China and France (Flexible Packaging). The&uite, Indiana
facility serves as our world headquarters.

We lease our facilities in the following locationBvansville, Indiana; Louisville, Kentucky; Lawiem Kansas; Peosta,
lowa; Phoenix, Arizona; Quad Cities, lowa; Philbpsg, New Jersey; Bloomington, Indiana; Bowling &reKentucky;
Syracuse, New York; Jackson, Tennessee; DanvidafuCky; Pewaukee, Wisconsin; Des Moines, lowayslilkee,
Wisconsin; Schaumburg, lllinois; Anaheim, Calif@nAurora, lllinois; Cranbury, New Jersey; Lathr@galifornia; Hanover,
Maryland; Tacoma, Washington; Baltimore, MarylaAtlanta, Georgia; Mexico City, Mexico; Dunkirk, Neviork;
Goshen, Indiana; Westerlo, Belgium; Johor, Indlajriepantla, Mexico; Washington, New Jersey antli@rCanada.

Item 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We are party to various legal proceedings involvimgfine claims which are incidental to our bustésthough our legal
and financial liability with respect to such prodi®gs cannot be estimated with certainty, we beliéat any ultimate
liability would not be material to the businesgafiicial condition, results of operations or castvé.

Item 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
Not applicable.
PART I
Item 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED ST OCKHOLDER

Our common stock is listed on the New York Stocklange under the symbol “BERY”. The following &Bkts forth, for
the periods indicated, the high and low sales g share of our common stock reported on the W Stock
Exchange.
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Fiscal 2014 Fiscal 2013
High Low High Low

1St QUAIET (@) «oveeeeeeeiee e $2357 $18.12 $16.01 $13.48
2nd quarter................ 24.75 21.88 19.77 16.08
3rd quarter ........ccccuee.. ... 25.84 22.13 24.15 17.02
Ath QUAITET ..o s 26.21 23.80 24.99 19.71

(@) Company began trading on the New York Stock ExcbamgOctober 4, 2012

As of the date of this filing there were approxiedatl29 record holders of the common stock, buestemate the number of
beneficial stockholders to be much higher as a murmbour shares are held by brokers or dealerthér customers in street
name.

During fiscal 2013 and 2014 we did not declareayr any cash dividends on our common stock. Anyréutietermination as
to the declaration and payment of dividends, if, avilf depend on then existing conditions, contmattequirements and
other factors our board of directors may deem eglevThe terms of our senior secured credit fasliand the indentures
governing our notes may restrict our ability to pagh dividends on our common stock. Our debtumstnts contain
covenants that restrict our ability to pay dividemeh our common stock, as well as the ability ofsubsidiaries to pay
dividends to us.

Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer and Aliated Purchasers
There were no shares of our common stock repurdiging fiscal 2014.

Iltem 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Fiscal 2014 Fiscal 2013 Fiscal 2012 Fiscal 2011 Fiscal 2010
Statement of Operations Data:
Net sales $ 4,958 $ 4,647 $ 4,766 $ 4,561 $ 4,257
Cost of goods sold 4,190 3,835 3,984 3,908 3,705
Selling, general and administrative 320 307 317 284 280
Amortization of intangibles 102 105 109 106 107
Restructuring and impairment charges (a) 30 14 31 221 41
Operating income 316 386 325 42 124
Debt extinguishment 35 64 — 68 —
Other income, net ) 7 ()] ()] (27)
Interest expense, net 221 244 328 327 313
Income (loss) before income taxes 67 85 4 (346) (162)
Income tax expense (benefit) 4 28 2 (47) (49)
Consolidated net income (loss) 63 57 2 (299) (113)
Net income attributable to non-controlling interest 1 — — — —
Net income (loss) attributable to the Company $ 62 $ 57 $ 2 $ (299) $ (113)
Comprehensive income (loss) $ 37 $ 86 $ 3 $ (324) $ (112)
Net income (loss) available to Common

Stockholders:

Basic $ 0.53 $ 0.50 $ 0.02 $ (3.55) $ (1.34)
Diluted 0.51 0.48 0.02 (3.55) (1.34)
Balance Sheet Data (at period end):
Cash and cash equivalents $ 129 $ 142 $ 87 $ 42 $ 148
Property, plant and equipment, net 1,364 1,266 1,216 1,250 1,146
Total assets 5,268 5,135 5,106 5,217 5,344
Long-term debt obligations, less current portion 3,860 3,875 4,431 4,581 4,397
Total liabilities 5,369 5,331 5,558 5,668 5,474
Stockholders’ equity (deficit) (114) (196) (475) (467) (141)
Cash Flow and other Financial Data:
Net cash from operating activities $ 530 $ 464 $ 479 $ 327 $ 112
Net cash from investing activities (422) (245) (255) (523) (852)
Net cash from financing activities (119) (164) (179) 20 878

(@) Includes a goodwill impairment charge of $165 miilin fiscal 2011

ltem 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS
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You should read the following discussion in cogijiom with the consolidated financial statementBefry Plastics Group,
Inc. and its subsidiaries and the accompanyingsitereto, which information is included elsewhegeein. This
discussion contains forward-looking statementsiamdlves numerous risks and uncertainties, inclgdbut not limited to,
those described in the “Risk Factors” section. @uatual results may differ materially from thosetzoned in any forward-
looking statements.

Overview

Berry Plastics Group, Inc. (“Berry” or the “Compéahig a leading provider of value-added plasticsuomer packaging and
engineered materials with a track record of deligehigh-quality customized solutions to our custosn Representative
examples of our products include drink cups, thaibeontainers, bottles, specialty closures, pipson vials, specialty
films, adhesives and corrosion protection materise sell our solutions predominantly into conswor@ented end-
markets, such as food and beverage, healthcangeasohal care.

We believe that we have created one of the lapgesiuct libraries in our industry, allowing us te & comprehensive
solution provider to our customers. Our custoroerssist of a diverse mix of leading global, natlpnad-sized regional and
local specialty businesses. The size and scoperafustomer network allow us to introduce new poislwe develop or
acquire to a vast audience that is familiar witlg e believe partial to, our brand. In fiscal 2040 single customer
represented more than approximately 2% of net sal@®ur top ten customers represented 17% oalest. sWe believe our
manufacturing processes and our ability to levemgescale to reduce expenses on items, such asagavials, position us
as a low-cost manufacturer relative to our competit For example, we believe based on managersiémiag¢es that we are
one of the largest global purchasers of plastinsaeshich gives us scaled purchasing savings.

Executive Summary

Business.We operate in the following four segments: RiQjgen Top, Rigid Closed Top (together our Rigid Raakg
business), Engineered Materials, and Flexible Raoga The Rigid Packaging business sells primadigtainers,
foodservice items, closures, overcaps, bottlescpiion containers, and tubes. Our Engineeretkiidéds segment

primarily sells pipeline corrosion protection saduass, tapes and adhesives, PE-based film prodndtsan liners. The
Flexible Packaging segment primarily sells highriearmultilayer film products as well as finishééeiible packages such as
printed pouches.

Raw Material TrendsOur primary raw material is plastic resin. Pobgylene and polyethylene account for approximately
90% of our plastic resin purchases based on thedsgourchased. Plastic resins are subject to fiuicteations, including
those arising from supply shortages and changieiprices of natural gas, crude oil and otheiogh&gmical intermediates
from which resins are produced. The average inglpsices, as published in Chem Data, per pouné asifollows by fiscal

year:

Polyethylene Butene Film Polypropylene
2014 2013 2012 2014 2013 2012
Ist QUANer.....cceeeeeeieeeeee e, $.82 $.69 $.68 $.89 $.76 $.79
2Nd qQUANET .....eeeiieeeriee e .85 74 .76 .95 .96 .88
3rd quArer ....ceveeeeecee e, .86 a7 72 91 .84 .85
Ath QUATTET ... .87 .79 .68 .92 .89 71

Due to differences in the timing of passing throuegin cost changes to our customers on escaletestchlator programs,
segments are negatively impacted in the shorttéren plastic resin costs increase and are positivglacted when plastic
resin costs decrease. This timing lag in passir@ugh raw material cost changes could affect esults as plastic resin
costs fluctuate.

Outlook. The Company is impacted by general economic ehgsirial growth, plastic resin availability andicaflability,
and general industrial production. Our businessiwth geographic and end market diversity, whecluces the effect of
any one of these factors on our overall performar@er results are affected by our ability to psssugh raw material cost
changes to our customers, improve manufacturindyativity and adapt to volume changes of our custsmWe seek to
improve our overall profitability by implementingst reduction programs associated with our manufiagy, selling and
general and administrative expenses.

Recent Developments

2014 Cost Reduction Plan
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In November 2013, the Company initiated a costcetdu plan designed to deliver approximately $2lioni of cost savings
and improved equipment utilization. This plan resiin several plant rationalizations. As a resfithese plant
rationalizations the Company has incurred overdiion of costs during fiscal 2014 associated vi#hility consolidation,
including severance and termination benefits, atbets associated with exiting facilities and naskcasset impairment
charges.

Term Loan Refinancing

In January 2014, the Company entered into an irenéhassumption agreement to increase the commntraeder the
Company’s existing term loan credit agreement h§ 28 billion. The Company borrowed loans in anraggte principal
amount equal to the full amount of the commitmemisuch date. The incremental term loan bearssttat LIBOR plus
2.75% per annum with a LIBOR floor of 1.00%, masuire January 2021 and is subject to customary @atian. The
proceeds from the incremental term loan, in addlitivexisting liquidity, were used to satisfy thestanding term loan
facility that was to mature in April 2015. The Cpamy recognized a $2 million loss on extinguishnedrdebt related to this
refinancing.

5% Second Priority Senior Secured Notes

In May 2014, the Company issued $500 million of 5%é&éond priority senior secured notes due 2022rdst on the 5%:%
second priority senior secured notes is due semiadly on May 15 and November 15. Proceeds framgbuance, in
addition to existing liquidity, were used to satishd discharge all of the outstanding 9%2% secoiodty senior secured
notes. The Company recognized a $33 million l@sextinguishment of debt related to this debt issaa

Secondary Public Offerings

In February 2014, June 2014 and August 2014, cefiaids affiliated with Apollo Global Management,C (“Apollo”)
sold 9 million shares in a secondary public offgriar proceeds of $205 million, 10 million sharasai secondary public
offering for proceeds of $237 million and 14.7 mifl shares in a secondary public offering for peatseof $360 million,
respectively. The Company received no proceedsrandred fees of approximately $1 million relatedhese offerings.
Following these offerings, Apollo no longer had aguity ownership in the Company.

Interest Rate Swap

In March 2014, the Company entered into an intestetswap transaction to manage cash flow vaitiabsociated with $1
billion of outstanding variable rate term loan déifite agreement swapped the greater of a threehmarigble LIBOR
contract or 1.00% for a fixed three-year rate 682, with an effective date in February 2016 argretion in February
2019.

Recent Acquisitions

We have a long history of acquiring and integratingipanies. We maintain an opportunistic acqaisiitrategy, which is
focused on improving our long-term financial penfi@ance, enhancing our market positions and expamdingroduct lines
or, in some cases, providing us with a new or cemphtary product line. In our acquisitions, wekgeeobtain businesses
for attractive post-synergy multiples, creating.eafor our stockholders from synergy realizatienglaging the acquired
products across our customer base, creating nefompte for future growth, and assuming best prastftom the businesses
we acquire.

The Company has included the expected benefitsqpfigition integrations within our unrealized sygies, which are in turn
recognized in earnings after an acquisition has baby integrated. While the expected benefitseamings is estimated at
the commencement of each transaction, once theixeof the plan and integration occur, we areegealty unable to
accurately estimate or track what the ultimatectffave been due to system integrations and maowsmoactivities to
multiple facilities. As historical business comdttions have not allowed us to accurately sepagalezed synergies
compared to what was initially identified, we meastine synergy realization based on the overathseg profitability post
integration. In connection with our acquisitiong have in the past and may in the future incurggsarelated to reductions
and rationalizations.

We also include the expected impact of our restring plans within our unrealized synergies, whaoh in turn recognized
in earnings after the restructuring plans are cetedl While the expected benefits on earningstimated at the
commencement of each plan, due to the nature ohéters we are generally unable to accuratelynasi or track what the
ultimate effects have been due to movements ofitiesi to multiple facilities.

16



Graphic Flexible Packaging LLC’s Flexible Plast@sd Films

In September 2013, the Company acquired GraphiéfiéePackaging LLC's flexible plastics and filmaginess (“Graphic
Plastics”) for a purchase price of $61 million, oEtash acquired. Graphic Plastics is a prodoferaps, films, pouches,
and bags for the food, medical, industrial, persoaee, and pet food markets. The Graphic Plabtisiness is operated in
the Flexible Packaging segment. To finance thehase, the Company used existing liquidity.

Qingdao P&B Co., Ltd

In January 2014, the Company acquired the comtgpifiterest (75%) of Qingdao P&B Co., Ltd (“P&B9rfa purchase
price of $35 million, net of cash acquired. P&Bizgs thermoform, injection, and automated assgmtanufacturing
processes to produce products for multiple maatsss China as well as globally, most predomipativing the food and
personal care markets. P&B is operated in theilbllefeackaging segment. To finance the purchhseCbmpany used
existing liquidity.

Rexam Healthcare Containers and Closures

In June 2014, the Company acquired Rexam’'s Hea#il€antainers and Closures business (“C&C”) fourcipase price of
$130 million, net of cash acquired. The C&C businproduces bottles, closures and specialty predioicpharmaceutical
and over-the-counter applications. Facilities feddn the United States are operated in the Ritpded Top segment, and
locations outside the United States are operat#tkifrlexible Packaging segment. To finance thehase, the Company
used existing liquidity.

Discussion of Results of Operations for Fiscal 20X@ompared to Fiscal 2013

Net Sales Net sales increased from $4,647 million in fig@i13 to $4,958 million in fiscal 2014. This iease is primarily
attributed to net sales from businesses acquirtikitast twelve months of 4% and selling priceeases of 4% due to
higher resin prices shown above partially offsevblyyme declines. The following discussion in thigtion provides a
comparison of net sales by business segment.

Fiscal Year
2014 2013 $ Change % Change
Net sales:
(240 (o @] o= I o] o T $ 1,110 $ 1127 $ (17) (2%)
Rigid Closed TOP.....cccceveeriieenienne 1,469 1,387 82 6%
Rigid Packaging . $ 2,579 $ 2514 $ 65 3%
Engineered Materials..............cccvee vt ommcenen 1,455 1,397 58 4%
Flexible Packaging..........ccccoovveniiiiineenenins, 924 736 188 26%
Total Net sales .......cccovevveeeieiverceneeen, $ 4,958 $ 4647 $ 311 7%

Net sales in the Rigid Open Top segment decreased$1,127 million in fiscal 2013 to $1,110 milliamfiscal 2014 due to
base volume declines of 5% and product realignwieh¥ partially offset by net selling price increaof 4%. The volume
decline was primarily attributed to softness imtheformed drink cups and container product offesinblet sales in the
Rigid Closed Top segment increased from $1,387amilh fiscal 2013 to $1,469 million in fiscal 2044 a result of net
selling price increases of 2% and C&C acquisitiolume of 4%. The Engineered Materials segmensalet increased
from $1,397 million in fiscal 2013 to $1,455 milfian fiscal 2014 as a result of net selling priveréases of 4% and base
volume growth of 1% patrtially offset by exited uess of 1%. The Flexible Packaging segment nes gatreased from
$736 million in fiscal 2013 to $924 million in fiat2014 as a result of businesses acquired irathéelve months of 22%,
product realignment of 1% and net selling priceeases of 5% partially offset by a 2% volume dectittributed to soft
customer demand.

Operating Income Operating income decreased from $386 million (8%et sales) in fiscal 2013 to $316 million (6% of
net sales) in fiscal 2014. This decrease is piiynattributed to $57 million increase in busin@segration expense, $27
million of raw material and freight cost inflatiam excess of net selling price increases, $19anilfrom base volume
declines described above and a $2 million incremdepreciation and amortization expense partifset by $7 million
benefit from businesses acquired in the last twelwaths, $8 million decline in selling, general autninistrative expenses
and a $20 million improvement in manufacturing@éicies. The following discussion in this sectiwavides a comparison
of operating income by business segment.
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Fiscal Year

2014 2013 $Change % Change
Operating income:
Rigid Open TOP ..coveevveeeeceeeee e, $ 34 $ 123 $ (89) (72%)
Rigid Closed TOP....coocvriviieiree s s 132 130 2 2%
Rigid Packaging........cccccevveeveeeer s cmmmnss $ 166 $ 253 $ (87) (34%)
Engineered Materials..............cccoeriommeenee 125 116 9 8%
Flexible Packaging .........ccccccvevveeiiiienininenne 25 17 8 47%
Total operating income........................ $ 316 $ 386 $ (70) (18%)

Operating income for the Rigid Open Top segmentedesed from $123 million (11% of net sales) indis2013 to $34
million (3% of net sales) in fiscal 2014. This desse is primarily attributed to $18 million frorade volume declines, $10
million decline in operating performance in mantifiging, $48 million increase in business integragxpense, $1 million
increase in selling, general and administrativeeazps and a $12 million decline in the relationsifipet selling price to raw
material and freight costs. Operating incomelierRigid Closed Top segment increased from $13mi{9% of net sales)
in fiscal 2013 to $132 million (9% of net salesfistal 2014. The increase is attributed to a $itiom decline in the
relationship of net selling price to raw materiasts, $1 million attributed to negative product pfi® million increase in
business integration expenses and $1 million lasa businesses acquired in the last twelve morfthstdoy $1 million
decrease in depreciation and amortization, a $iomimprovement in operating performance in maotufang and a $5
million improvement in selling, general and adntirsisve expenses. Operating income for the EngatbMaterials
segment increased from $116 million (8% of netxatefiscal 2013 to $125 million (9% of net sal@sjiscal 2014. This
increase is primarily attributed to a $19 milliongrovement in manufacturing operating performaganillion decline in
restructuring and business integration expensesa &ddmillion decline in selling, general and adsinative expenses
partially offset by $14 million of raw material ¢asflation in excess of net selling prices, $2limil from exited business
and a $5 million increase in depreciation and aizatibn expense. Operating income for the Flexftdekaging segment
increased from $17 million (2% of net sales) itdis2013 to $25 million (3% of net sales) in fisell4. This increase is
primarily attributed to $10 million benefit from dimesses acquired in the last twelve months, $®mgain in the
relationship of net selling price to raw materia$ts, $4 million improvement in operating perforcein manufacturing and
a $2 million decline in depreciation and amortizatexpense partially offset by $13 million increasbusiness integration
expense.

Debt Extinguishmenbebt extinguishment decreased from $64 milliorisndl 2013 to $35 million in fiscal 2014. The
decrease is primarily attributed to the varioust @gtinguishment costs that resulted from our im&etal term loan
restructuring and use of the proceeds from oualrpublic offering in fiscal 2013 compared to tebt extinguishment costs
related to the discharge of the outstanding 9%2%rskpriority senior secured notes in fiscal 2014.

Other Income.Other income remained flat at $7 million in fise813 and fiscal 2014 primarily due to the chaingihe fair
value of derivative instruments in fiscal 2013 effby gains recognized on asset disposals andjastraent to the tax
receivable agreement obligation in fiscal 2014.

Interest Expenselnterest expense decreased from $244 millioisgaf 2013 to $221 million in fiscal 2014 primarég the
result of the various debt extinguishments andhaeftings completed in the last twenty four months.

Income Tax ExpenséVe recorded an income tax expense of $4 millidistal 2014, compared to $28 million in fiscal
2013. The effective tax rate is impacted by theatire impact of discrete items and certain intéamal entities for which a
full valuation allowance is recognized and $20iolof federal and state research and developrarmtrédits recognized in
fiscal 2014.

Discussion of Results of Operations for Fiscal 20X3ompared to Fiscal 2012

Net Sales Net sales decreased from $4,766 million in fi2€d.2 to $4,647 million in fiscal 2013. This dease is primarily
attributed to lower selling prices of 1% and a weéudecline of 2% related to soft customer demasak-gver-year adverse
change in weather and reductions in raw materiatiecd partially offset by acquisition volume retate Stopaqg and Prime
Label and volume gains in certain of our produwdi. The following discussion in this section fles a comparison of net
sales by business segment.
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Fiscal Year

2013 2012 $ Change % Change
Net sales:
Rigid Open TOP ...cooveeveereeieceeete e $ 1,127 $ 1,229 $ (102) (8%)
Rigid Closed TOP ....coovveeiiieeiiee e e 1,387 1,438 (51) (4%)
Rigid Packaging.........cccovevvevurevees mmmenenne $ 2,514 $ 2,667 $ (153) (6%)
Engineered Materials..............ccceee v ommcenen 1,397 1,362 35 3%
Flexible Packaging..........ccccoovvrniiiinveenennnes, 736 737 Q) —
Total net sales ........cccceevveeeeeecveeeee, $ 4,647 $ 4,766 $ (119) (2%)

Net sales in the Rigid Open Top business decrdesedb1,229 million in fiscal 2012 to $1,127 milfion fiscal 2013 as a
result of net selling price decreases of 3%, ameldecline of 2% and product realignment of 3%e \Iblume decline is
primarily related to soft customer demand and ye@ryear adverse change in weather. Net satbg iRigid Closed Top
business decreased from $1,438 million in fiscdl2® $1,387 million in fiscal 2013 as a resulhef selling price decreases
of 2% and a volume decline of 2%. The volume dedis primarily attributed to general market sa$gand a reduction in
raw material content. The Engineered Material$rimgs net sales increased from $1,362 millionsicai 2012 to $1,397
million in fiscal 2013. Product realignment of 3@t selling price increases of 1% and acquisiimome related to Stopaq
were partially offset by 2% volume declines atttédzlito soft customer demand. Net sales in thabfeRackaging business
decreased from $737 million in fiscal 2012 to $W3bion in fiscal 2013 as a result of a 2% voluneekhe attributed to
factors discussed above partially offset by actiaisivolume related to our Prime Label acquisition.

Operating Income. Operating income increased from $325 million (GRAet sales) in fiscal 2012 to $386 million (8%net
sales) in fiscal 2013. This increase is primaatlyibuted to $5 million from the relationship ddtrselling price to raw
material costs, $12 million decrease in depreciagigpense excluding the impact from acquisitioBandllion decrease in
amortization expense excluding the impact from &itipns, $8 million decrease in selling, generad administrative
expenses, $30 million decrease in business integr&t3 million from acquisitions and a $11 millidecrease in non-cash
impairment charges related to exited businesséialpaoffset by $1 million decline in operatingfhgrmance in
manufacturing and $15 million from sales volumelides described above. The following discussiothis section
provides a comparison of operating income by bgsisegment.

Fiscal Year
2013 2012 $Change % Change
Operating income:

Rigid Open TOP .occvevveveeee e vemmemmeee e, 123 $ 159 $ (36) (23%)
Rigid Closed Top......ccccceerveeneen. 130 95 35 37%

Rigid Packaging 253 $ 254 $ (1) 1%
Engineered Materials..............ccevvuvvimeeee 116 70 46 66%
Flexible Packaging .........cccooeeeveeriniienennene 17 1 16 —

Total operating income........................ $ 386 $ 325 $ 61 19%

Operating income for the Rigid Open Top businessazsed from $159 million (13% of net sales) indi2012 to $123
million (11% of net sales) in fiscal 2013. Thicdease is primarily attributed to a $8 million deelin the relationship of net
selling price to raw material costs, $7 millionrfresales volume declines described above, $11 milexline in operating
performance in manufacturing, $4 million increaseedling, general and administrative expenses amilgnattributed to
costs associated with new product innovation, $bomiincrease in business integration expensesfardillion increase in
depreciation and amortization expense. Operatic@me for the Rigid Closed Top business increésed $95 million (7%
of net sales) in fiscal 2012 to $130 million (9%net sales) in fiscal 2013. This increase is prilsnattributed to a $24
million decline in business integration expensdsyfilion improvement in the relationship of nellisg price to raw
material costs, $6 million reduction of depreciatamd amortization expense, $2 million of improepérating performance
in manufacturing and $6 million decrease in sellueneral and administrative expenses partiallsedf4 million from sales
volume declines described above. Operating indomie Engineered Materials business increased $60 million (5%
of net sales) in fiscal 2012 to $116 million (8%nef sales) in fiscal 2013. This increase is prilpnattributed to a $11
million decrease in non-cash impairment chargegeélto exited businesses, $3 million from acqaisst, $9 million
improvement in the relationship of net selling prio raw material costs, $9 million of improved @iimg performance in
manufacturing, $7 million decrease in selling, gahand administrative expenses, $5 million de@@aslepreciation and
amortization expense excluding the impact from &itipns and a $5 million decrease in businesgnatéon expenses
partially offset by $3 million from sales volumeatines described above. Operating income for tagitble Packaging
business improved from $1 million in fiscal 2012tb7 million (2% of net sales) in fiscal 2013. §hmprovement is
primarily attributed to a $6 million reduction ofisiness integration expense, $10 million reduatiodepreciation and
amortization expense and a $3 million improvemerhe relationship of net selling price to raw miatecosts partially
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offset by $1 million increase of selling, genenatl@dministrative expenses, $1 million declineperating performance in
manufacturing and $1 million from sales volume thed described above.

Debt ExtinguishmentDebt extinguishment was $64 million during fisc@ll3 as a result of loss on extinguishment of debt
attributed to $37 million of call premium and peiee, $19 million of deferred financing fees andn§ilion of debt discount
related to the debt extinguishment that resultechfour incremental term loan capital and the usbeproceeds from our
initial public offering.

Other Income, NeOther income was $7 million in fiscal 2013 anddis2012, respectively. These gains are attribtatede
fair value adjustment for our interest rate swaps.

Interest Expense, Netnterest expense decreased from $328 milliorsgaf 2012 to $244 million in fiscal 2013 primardg
the result of the interest savings that resultethfour incremental term loan restructure andahiublic offering, which
proceeds were used to pay off indebtedness.

Income Tax Expenséiscal 2013, we recorded an income tax expensa®fdllion or an effective tax rate of 33%
compared to an income tax expense of $2 millicanoeffective tax rate of 50% in fiscal 2012. THedive tax rate is
impacted by the relative impact of discrete itemd eertain international entities for which a fedlluation allowance is
recognized.

Income Tax Matters

The Company had unused United States federal apgptass carryforwards to offset future taxableoime of $601 million
as of fiscal 2014. As of fiscal year-end 2014,@wenpany had state and foreign net operating lasgforwards of $803
million and $106 million, respectively, which wile available to offset future taxable income. df msed, the federal net
operating loss carryforwards will expire in futyears beginning 2025 through 2031. AMT credityfarwvards totaling $9
million are available to the Company indefinitetyreduce future years’ federal income taxes. Téie set operating loss
carryforwards will expire in future years beginning2015 through 2033. The Company has $18 mikiod $4 million of
federal and state Research and Development taits;nedpectively, that will expire in future yedssginning 2027 through
2034.

The net operating losses are subject to an anmitdtion under guidance from the Internal Reve@oée, however, all of
the Company'’s federal net operating loss carryfaieahould be available for use within the nex fpears. As part of the
effective tax rate calculation, if we determinetthaeferred tax asset arising from temporary wiffees is not likely to be
utilized, we will establish a valuation allowanaamst that asset to record it at its expectedzadde value. The Company
has not provided a valuation allowance on its eééfal net operating loss carryforwards in the édh$tates because it has
determined that future reversals of its temporaxgable differences will occur in the same periaus @e of the same nature
as the temporary differences giving rise to theefl tax assets. Our valuation allowance agdéfstred tax assets was
$56 million and $59 million at the end of fiscalZ20and 2013, respectively, related to certain fpraind state deferred tax
assets.

In connection with the initial public offering, tt@mpany entered into an income tax receivablecageat that provides for
the payment to pre-initial public offering stocktiets, option holders and holders of our stock aggtien rights, 85% of the
amount of cash savings, if any, in U.S. federakifm, state and local income tax that are actuellized (or are deemed to
be realized in the case of a change of contrad)rasult of the utilization of our and our subgidisl net operating losses
attributable to periods prior to the initial pubdiffering. Based on the Company's assumptiongusirious items, including
valuation analysis and current tax law, the Compangrded an obligation of $313 million upon contiple of the initial
public offering, which was recognized as a reductibPaid-in capital on the Consolidated BalanceeBh The Company
made payments of $32 million and $5 million in 62014 and 2013, respectively. In addition, a @8on was paid in the
first quarter of fiscal 2015. The balance atehd of fiscal 2014 was $273 million.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Senior Secured Credit Facility

We have senior secured credit facilities consistin$2.5 billion of term loans and a $650 millicssat based revolving line
of credit (“Credit Facility”). $1.1 billion of théerm loans mature in January 2021, the remaining illion of term loans
mature in February 2020 and the revolving linerefit matures in June 2016, subject to certainitiond. The availability
under the revolving line of credit is the lesse$650 million or based on a defined borrowing bakizh is calculated based
on available accounts receivable and inventorye rEwolving line of credit allows up to $130 mitiof letters of credit to be
issued instead of borrowings under the revolving 6f credit. At the end of fiscal 2014, the Comphad no outstanding
balance on the revolving credit facility, $37 naifti of outstanding letters of credit and a $43 omllborrowing base reserve,
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resulting in unused borrowing capacity of $570imnlunder the revolving line of credit. The Comparas in compliance
with all covenants at the end of fiscal 2014.

We are obligated to sustain a minimum fixed chamesrage ratio of 1.0 to 1.0 under the revolviregirfacility (tested
guarterly) at any time when the aggregate unuseacity under the revolving credit facility is ledsn 10% of the lesser of
the revolving credit facility commitments and thaowing base (and for 10 business days followigdate upon which
availability exceeds such threshold) or duringabetinuation of an event of default. Our fixed rfeacoverage ratio, as
defined in the revolving credit facility, is caletd based on a numerator consisting of adjustdé@ilEBless pro forma
adjustments, income taxes paid in cash and capiednditures, and a denominator consisting of sdbaddrincipal
payments in respect of indebtedness for borrowetkyanterest expense and certain distributionsthéend of fiscal
2014, the Company had unused borrowing capact#p @0 million under the revolving credit facility duthus was not
subject to the minimum fixed charge coverage raienant. Our fixed charge ratio was 2.2 to 1t@eend of fiscal 2014.

Despite not having financial maintenance covenantsgebt agreements contain certain negative emisn The failure to
comply with these negative covenants could restrictability to incur additional indebtedness, effecquisitions, enter into
certain significant business combinations, makgiligions or redeem indebtedness. The term laailitf contains a
negative covenant first lien secured leverage mtie@nant of 4.0 to 1.0 on a pro forma basis forogosed transaction, such
as an acquisition or incurrence of additional fiest debt. Our first lien secured leverage ratas 3.0 to 1.0 at the end of
fiscal 2014.

A key financial metric utilized in the calculatiofi the first lien leverage ratio is Adjusted EBITA defined in the
Company’s senior secured credit facilities. THefang table reconciles (i) our Adjusted EBITDA ¢perating income and
(i) our Adjusted Free Cash Flow to cash flow froperating activities, in each case, for fiscal 2@8fd the quarterly period
ended September 27, 2014:

Quarterly Period Ended

Fiscal 2014 September 27, 2014

Adjusted EBITDA ......oooiiecee e mmmee et $ 830 $ 213
Depreciation and amortization ...............oeeeeveeesveesneeennns (358) (97)
Business optimization and other expease..........ccccovcveernnee. (81) (18)
Restructuring and impairment...............comeme e veeesveesnveesnns (30) 2
Pro forma acquisitions (18) —

Unrealized cost savings (27) ?3)
Operating INCOME ........cccviveieirieieeemeeeme e $ 316 $ 93

Cash flow from operating activities .........coeceeeerveerivieennennn $ 530 $ 160
Net additions to property, plant and equipment................. (196) (29)
Payments of tax receivable agreement..... . coveeenieeen (32) —

Adjusted free cash flow ..........ccceev v eveevceeci e $ 302 $ 131

Cash flow from investing activities..........cceecevveriiiee e, (422) (30)
Cash flow from financing activities ..........ccccceevieeviveennenn, (119) (45)

@ Includes business optimization and integration egpe and non-cash charges

Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted Free Cash Flow, as@néed in this document, are supplemental finanégsures that are
not required by, or presented in accordance wiheally accepted accounting principles in the éthBtates (“GAAP”).
Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted Free Cash Flow are®AAP financial measures and should not be corsitlas an
alternative to operating or net income or cash $léimm operating activities, in each case deterchineaccordance with
GAAP. We define “Adjusted EBITDA” as operating ame before depreciation and amortization, and icertatructuring
and business optimization charges and as adjusteshfealized cost reductions and acquired busisescluding
unrealized synergies, which are more particulagfingd in our credit documents and the indentuoe®igning our notes.
Adjusted EBITDA is used by our lenders for debtermant compliance purposes and by our managementas several
measures to evaluate management performance. ivitietermination of appropriate adjustments irctileulation of
Adjusted EBITDA is subject to interpretation unttee terms of the Credit Facility, management bekahe adjustments
described above are in accordance with the coveirattie Credit Facility. Adjusted EBITDA elimirest certain charges
that we believe do not reflect operations and upither operational performance. Although we use Atgd EBITDA as a
financial measure to assess the performance diumimness, the use of Adjusted EBITDA has impotiaritations,
including that (1) Adjusted EBITDA does not reprgsieinds available for dividends, reinvestmenttbieo discretionary
uses, or account for expenses and charges; (25tdjiEBITDA does not reflect cash outlays for @agkpenditures or
contractual commitments; (3) Adjusted EBITDA does reflect changes in, or cash requirements forking capital; (4)
Adjusted EBITDA does not reflect the interest exggear the cash requirements necessary to serwceshor principal
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payments on indebtedness; (5) Adjusted EBITDA daeseflect income tax expense or the cash negespay income
taxes; (6) Adjusted EBITDA excludes depreciatiod amortization and, although depreciation and &ration are non-
cash charges, the assets being depreciated antizaahovill often have to be replaced in the futaed Adjusted EBITDA
does not reflect cash requirements for such replants; and (7) Adjusted EBITDA does not reflectithpact of earnings or
charges resulting from matters we consider noetmbicative of our ongoing operations.

We define “Adjusted Free Cash Flow” as cash floamfroperating activities less additions to propgatgnt and equipment
and payments of the tax receivable agreement. Wédjisted Free Cash Flow as a measure of liquigitause it assists us
in assessing our company’s ability to fund its glothirough its generation of cash. We believe Amygigree Cash Flow is
useful to an investor in evaluating our liquidigdause Adjusted Free Cash Flow and similar meaatgesgidely used by
investors, securities analysts and other intergsdetibs in our industry to measure a companytgdity without regard to
revenue and expense recognition, which can vargrdépg upon accounting methods. Although we use#id{l Free Cash
Flow as a liquidity measure to assess our abdityenerate cash, the use of Adjusted Free Casht@swnportant
limitations, including that: (1) Adjusted Free Cddbw does not reflect the cash requirements nacgss service principal
payments on our indebtedness; and (2) Adjusted@ash Flow removes the impact of accrual basisietcg on asset
accounts and non-debt liability accounts

These non-GAAP financial measures may be calculiiftetently by other companies, including othemganies in our
industry, limiting their usefulness as comparativeasures. Because of these limitations, you stoaulgider Adjusted
EBITDA and Adjusted Free Cash Flow alongside offezformance measures and liquidity measures, imgumperating
income, various cash flow metrics, net income amdother GAAP results.

Contractual Obligations and Off Balance Sheet Teations

Our contractual cash obligations at the end 0&fi2014 are summarized in the following table wrddes not give any
effect to the tax receivable agreement, includieg$39 million payment made in October 2014, ooiine taxes payable as
we cannot reasonably estimate the timing of futash outflows associated with those commitments.

Payments due by period as of the end of fiscal 201

Total <1 year 1-3years 4-5years >5 years
Long-term debt, excluding capital
leases $3,809 $ 29 $51 $51 $3,678
Capital leases (a) 145 34 46 34 31
Fixed interest rate payments 698 106 211 211 170
Variable interest rate payments (b) 509 91 178 175 65
Operating leases 331 46 82 60 143
Funding of pension and other
postretirement obligations (c) 5 _ 5 e — —
Total contractual cash obligations $5,497 $311 $568 $531 $4,087
(a) Includes anticipated interest of $16 million ovee tife of the capital leases.
(b) Based on applicable interest rates in effect erfisad| 2014.
(c) Pension and other postretirement contributions beea included in the above table for the nexafigear. The amount is the estimated contributiormir defined benefit plans. The

assumptions used by the actuary in calculatingtbiection includes weighted average return oniparassets of approximately 8% for fiscal 2014e €ktimation may vary based on
the actual return on our plan assets. See fosttotie Consolidated Financial Statements ofihisn 10-K for more information on these obligations

Note: As part of the P&B acquisition, the non-eoliing interest holder has a put option, and tbenfany has a call option on the remaining 25%estdn P&B that becomes effective three
years from the date of purchase. Upon executitieoput or call option, the purchase price forréraaining equity interest will be determined basedhe fair value at the date of
execution. Redeemable non-controlling interest$t&smillion as of fiscal 2014 and is not includedhe above table.

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Net cash provided by operating activities incredsem $464 million in fiscal 2013 to $530 million fiscal 2014. The
change is primarily attributed to improved workicapital.

Net cash from operating activities was $464 millionfiscal 2013 compared to $479 million of cakiwk from operating
activities for fiscal 2012. The change is primadttributed to additional working capital usedigtal 2013 partially offset
by improved operating performance and the settléwfesmn interest rate hedge for $16 million.

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities increasech 245 million in fiscal 2013 to $422 million irsfial 2014 primarily as a
result of an increase in acquisition activity rethto C&C, Graphic Plastics and P&B partially offeg lower capital
expenditures.

Net cash used for investing activities was $248ianiffor fiscal 2013 compared to net cash used?&B$illion for fiscal
2012. The change is primarily as a result of die@ acquisition activity partially offset bydneased capital expenditures.
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Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Net cash used in financing activities was $164ionilin fiscal 2013 compared to $119 million in 6€014. The change is
primarily attributed to a decline in long-term rgpeents, net of proceeds from the initial publiceoffig, partially offset by
the $32 million of tax receivable agreement paysient

Net cash used for financing activities was $164ionilfor fiscal 2013 compared to $179 million osbaused for financing
activities for fiscal 2012. This change is prinhaattributed to proceeds from issuance of comntocksand incremental
term loan, which we utilized to repurchase the Héfior Subordinated Notes, Second Priority Seréoufd Floating Rate
Notes, First Priority Senior Secured Floating Rétées, 104% Senior Subordinated and 81/4% First Priority Senior
Secured Notes.

Based on our current level of operations, we beltbat cash flow from operations and available daglether with available
borrowings under our senior secured credit faedlitwill be adequate to meet our short-term liquidéeds over the next
twelve months. We base such belief on historigpbgence and the funds available under the seritrred credit facility.
In addition we believe that we have the businessegy and resources to generate free cash flow dgerations in the long
term. We do not expect this free cash flow touféicient to cover all long-term debt obligationsdeintend to refinance
these obligations prior to maturity. However, ve@mot predict our future results of operations @amdability to meet our
obligations involves numerous risks and uncerténiincluding, but not limited to, those describethe “Risk Factors”
section in this Form 10-K. In particular, increagethe cost of resin which we are unable to ffassigh to our customers
on a timely basis or significant acquisitions cosgderely impact our liquidity. At the end of @014, our cash balance
was $129 million, of which $85 million was domestnd we had unused borrowing capacity of $570anilinder our
revolving line of credit.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

We disclose those accounting policies that we dengo be significant in determining the amountbeautilized for
communicating our consolidated financial positi@sults of operations and cash flows in the ficdero our consolidated
financial statements included elsewhere herein. d@gussion and analysis of our financial conditimd results of
operations are based on our consolidated finasizitgments, which have been prepared in accoraéticaccounting
principles generally accepted in the United Stafidse preparation of financial statements in canftyr with these principles
requires management to make estimates and assomitat affect amounts reported in the financatesbhents and
accompanying notes. Actual results are likelyitfedfrom these estimates, but management doebeligve such
differences will materially affect our financial giion or results of operations. We believe thatfollowing accounting
policies are the most critical because they haggthatest impact on the presentation of our fiahoondition and results of
operations.

Revenue RecognitiorRevenue from the sales of products is recograzéue time title and risks and rewards of owriprsh
pass to the customer (either when the products thacdree-on-board shipping point or destinatiepehding on the
contractual terms), there is persuasive evidenes afrangement, the sales price is fixed andrdetable and collection is
reasonably assured.

Accrued RebatesWe offer various rebates to our customers ithamge for their purchases. These rebate programs a
individually negotiated with our customers and eimt variety of different terms and conditionert@in rebates are
calculated as flat percentages of purchases, wtthikrs include tiered volume incentives. Thesatesbmay be payable
monthly, quarterly, or annually. The calculatidritee accrued rebate balance involves significaamtagement estimates,
especially where the terms of the rebate invokeet! volume levels that require estimates of exgeabnual sales. These
provisions are based on estimates derived fronegtprogram requirements and historical experieiée.use all available
information when calculating these reserves. @arual for customer rebates was $50 million andg8kon as of the end
of fiscal 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Impairments of Long-Lived Assetim accordance with the guidance from the FASBHe impairment or disposal of long-
lived assets we review long-lived assets for impaitt whenever events or changes in circumstandesia the carrying
amount of such assets may not be recoverable. irnmgat losses are recorded on long-lived assetsinsgperations when
indicators of impairment are present and the undisted cash flows estimated to be generated bg #sets are less than
the assets’ carrying amounts. The impairmentitosgeasured by comparing the fair value of thetasses carrying
amount. We recognized non-cash asset impairméangflived assets of $7 million, $5 million andGillion in fiscal
2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Goodwill and Other Indefinite Lived Intangible AsseWe evaluate goodwill using a qualitative assesgrto determine
whether it is more likely than not that the faifueof any reporting unit is less that the carryamgount. If we determine that
the fair value of the reporting unit may be lesmtits carrying amount, we evaluate the goodwithat reporting unit using
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a two-step impairment test. Otherwise, we concthdéno impairment is indicated and we do notgrerfthe two-step
impairment test.

We conduct our business through four operating seggnRigid Open Top, Rigid Closed Top (collectiveigid

Packaging), Engineered Materials and Flexible Rginka For purposes of conducting our annual gobbdwpairment test,
we have determined that we have six reporting uRigid Open Top, Rigid Closed Top, Engineered Malg Flexible
Packaging, Tapes and International. Engineere@ds and Tapes operations comprise the Engindéagetials operating
segment. Flexible Packaging and International cm@phe Flexible Packaging segment. Our Intesnatireporting unit's
goodwill is primarily derived from the current falcyear P&B and C&C acquisitions. We determineat ach of the
components within our respective reporting unitsusth be aggregated and tested at the respectigkdswne reporting unit.
We reached this conclusion because within eacliofeporting units, we have similar products, piiun processes,
markets served or management oversight which alleaie share assets and resources across the camtgolVe regularly
re-align our production equipment and manufactui@gities in order to take advantage of costisgsiopportunities, obtain
synergies and create manufacturing efficienciesaddition, we utilize our research and developroenters, design center,
tool shops, and graphics center which all provieletits to each of the reporting units and workew products that can
benefit multiple components. We also believe thatgoodwill is recoverable from the overall opierad of the unit given
the similarity in production processes, synergiemfleveraging the combined resources, common ratenals, common
research and development, similar margins, managesnersight and similar distribution methodologid@here were no
indicators of impairment in the fourth quarter treduired us to perform a test for the recoverstili goodwill.

In conducting a qualitative assessment, the Compaalyzes a variety of events or factors that méyence the fair value
of the reporting unit, including, but not limiteal the results of prior quantitative tests perforn@tnges in the carrying
amount of the reporting unit; actual and projectpdrating results, primarily focused on revenusvgindrends and earnings;
relevant market data for both the company andeiés pompanies; industry outlooks; macroeconomiditions; liquidity;
changes in key personnel; and the Company’s cotivegtosition. Significant judgment is used tolagse the totality of
these events and factors to make the determinatishether it is more likely than not that the fe@lue of the reporting unit
is less than its carrying value.

During the qualitative assessment process, basadienline in operating results and changes irpkesonnel, the Company
concluded that an impairment test was necessatfiédrigid Open Top reporting unit. We first comgshthe book value of
a reporting unit, including goodwill, with its fairalue. The fair value is estimated based on &ebapproach and a
discounted cash flow analysis, also known as tbene approach, and is reconciled back to the dumarket capitalization
for Berry Plastics to ensure that the implied aariremium is reasonable. Our forecasts includediadl revenue growth of
3-8% through and including the terminal year, wh&cB%, and capital expenditure levels consistettt storical spend.
The fair value of the Rigid Open Top reporting uniteeded its’ carrying value by 25% and thus ¢oeisd step was not
performed. An incremental sustained decline of 4B% in earnings or a significant decline in markeitiples could result
in an impairment charge in the future.

Based on our estimated evaluation, we believetigatalue of each of our reporting units is eitbgual to or higher than last
year as supported by the growth in our overall etackpitalization and total enterprise value. Eafabur reporting units
experienced earnings growth with the exceptiomefRigid Open Top reporting unit. Our Rigid OpepTeporting unit

has seen a decline in the current year relatednte yolume losses, selling price to raw materialides and manufacturing
performance issues associated with facility codatibns. Volume declines in operating performamee been offset by the
development and launch of the Company’s Versatibeyrct which will generate future revenues whicheneot
contemplated in historical forecasts for the rapgrtinit. Further, manufacturing performance igeted to recover in the
future once the facility consolidations are comgleturther, the market multiples for the Rigid @fep peers continue to
be strong and we maintain strong market positiatts @ur product mix which continues to support ttat historical
valuations for this reporting unit are still sulmgtally in excess of the carrying value.

Based on the favorable results of the qualitatsgeasment conducted on the first day of our fiecath quarter for the Rigid
Closed Top, Engineered Materials, Flexible Pacl@diiapes and International reporting units andahrevalues for Rigid
Open Top reporting unit exceeding its’ carryinguea) there was no goodwill impairment charge restid 2014.

Goodwill as of September 27, 2014, by reporting isrés follows:
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Goodwill as of
September 27, 2014

Rigid Open Top.......... $ 681
Rigid Closed Top........ 827
Engineered Films........ 52
Tapes....ccooveeviiieeeennnnn, 19
Flexible Packaging..... 61
International................ 19

$ 1,659

We also performed our annual impairment test fadli 2014 of our indefinite lived intangible assetSich relates to the
“Berry” trade name. The cash flow assumptionswginaates and risks to these cash flows are siital#trose used in our
analysis to determine the fair value of our combhiRégid Packaging businesses. The annual impatrtesndid not result in
any impairment as the fair value exceeded the icgrmalue.

Deferred Taxes and Effective Tax Rat@é¢e estimate the effective tax rates (‘ETR”) asdociated liabilities or assets for
each of our legal entities of ours in accordandh aithoritative guidance. We use tax planningitimize or defer tax
liabilities to future periods. In recording ETRsdarelated liabilities and assets, we rely upoimegées, which are based upon
our interpretation of United States and local taxd as they apply to our legal entities and ouraMeax structure. Audits
by local tax jurisdictions, including the Uniteda&ts Government, could yield different interpretasi from our own and
cause the Company to owe more taxes than origiredlyrded. For interim periods, we accrue ouptaxision at the ETR
that we expect for the full year. As the actualies from our various businesses vary from oumeges earlier in the year,
we adjust the succeeding interim periods’ ETRefiect our best estimate for the year-to-date tesuld for the full year.
As part of the ETR, if we determine that a defeteedasset arising from temporary differences tdikely to be utilized, we
will establish a valuation allowance against trested to record it at its expected realizable valoenultiple foreign
jurisdictions, the Company believes that it wilk generate sufficient future taxable income toizeahe related tax benefits.
The Company has provided a full valuation allowaagainst its foreign net operating losses inclualighin the deferred tax
assets in multiple foreign jurisdictions. The Camyp has not provided a valuation allowance oreiefal net operating
losses in the United States because it has detedrttiat future reversals of its temporary taxaffferénces will occur in the
same periods and are of the same nature as theremgifferences giving rise to the deferred tssets. Changes in our
valuation allowance could also impact our tax resiglie agreement obligation. Our valuation alloveaagainst deferred tax
assets was $56 million and $59 million as of the @fifiscal 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Based on a critical assessment of our accountiligiggand the underlying judgments and uncerisndiffecting the
application of those policies, we believe that camsolidated financial statements provide a meénisgd fair perspective
of the Company and its consolidated subsidiarigss is not to suggest that other risk factors sagbhanges in economic
conditions, changes in material costs, our atititpass through changes in material costs, andsotbeald not materially
adversely impact our consolidated financial positiesults of operations and cash flows in futueouls.

ltem 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MA RKET RISK

Interest Rate Sensitivity

We are exposed to market risk from changes inéstaates primarily through our senior secureditfadilities. Our
senior secured credit facilities are comprised)d$Z.5 billion term loans and (ii) a $650 millisavolving credit facility.
At September 27, 2014, the Company had no outstgrailance on the revolving credit facility. Bosings under our
senior secured credit facilities bear interesguatoption, at either an alternate base rate @dumsted LIBOR rate for a
one-, two-, three- or six month interest periodaaine- or twelve-month period, if available tbralevant lenders, in
each case, plus an applicable margin. The alielvesge rate is the greater of (i) in the case ofeym loans, Credit
Suisse’s prime rate or, in the case of our revgharedit facility, Bank of America's prime rate afiigl one-half of 1.0%
over the weighted average of rates on overnighefedrunds as published by the Federal Reserve &aNkw York.
At September 27, 2014, the LIBOR rate of 0.24% iapple to the term loans was below the LIBOR flobf.00%. A
0.25% change in LIBOR would not have a materialdaotpn our interest expense.

In February 2013, the Company entered into angsteate swap transaction to manage cash flowbititsiaassociated with
$1 hillion of outstanding variable rate term loabt(the "2013 Swap"). The agreement swapped #aegrof a three-month
variable LIBOR contract or 1.00% for a fixed thrgsar rate of 2.355%, with an effective date in N@{6 and expiration in
May 2019. In June 2013, the Company elected te dbis derivative instrument and received $18iomlas a result of this
settlement. The offset is included in Accumulatéter comprehensive income and will be amortizddtierest expense
from May 2016 through May 2019, the original terfittee swap agreement.
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In March 2014, the Company entered into an inteatetswap transaction to manage cash flow vaitiabisociated with $1
billion of outstanding variable rate term loan débe "2014 Swap"). The agreement swaps the grebgethree-month
variable LIBOR contract or 1.00% for a fixed thrgear rate of 2.59%, with an effective date in Faby2016 and expiration
in February 2019. The Company will record charigdair value in Accumulated other comprehensivame.

Resin Cost Sensitivity

We are exposed to market risk from changes inipleestin prices that could impact our results agfraions and financial
condition. Our plastic resin purchasing strategpideal with only high-quality, dependable suggli We believe that we
have maintained strong relationships with theseskgpliers and expect that such relationshipsowittinue into the
foreseeable future. The resin market is a glotzaket and, based on our experience, we believatigguate quantities of
plastic resins will be available at market pridest, we can give you no assurances as to such lalitylar the prices thereof.
If the price of resin increased or decreased byt386uld result in a material change to our cogjadds sold.
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Index to Financial Statement Schedule

All schedules have been omitted because they am@ppticable or not required or because the reduim@rmation is
included in the consolidated financial statementsotes thereto.

Item 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE

None.
Item 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures.

We maintain “disclosure controls and procedures Such term is defined in Rule 13a-15(e) undeEst@hange Act, that are
designed to ensure that information required tdibelosed by us in reports that we file or submier the Exchange Act is
recorded, processed, summarized and reported wlithitime periods specified in SEC rules and foans, that such
information is accumulated and communicated tonsamagement, including our Chief Executive Offiaed &hief

Financial Officer, as appropriate to allow timebctsions regarding required disclosure. In desiyaimd evaluating our
disclosure controls and procedures, managemergnmiaes that disclosure controls and procedurematter how well
conceived and operated, can provide only reasonadii@bsolute, assurance that the objectivesedfiiftlosure controls and
procedures are met. Additionally, in designing ldisere controls and procedures, our managementagaged to apply its
judgment in evaluating the cost-benefit relatiopgfipossible disclosure controls and procedures.

In connection with the preparation of our Form 1@g<of and for the fiscal year ended Septembe2@14, we evaluated the
effectiveness of the design and operation of asldsure controls and procedures as of Septemb@024. Based on this
evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chiefdncial Officer have concluded that the Compadigslosure controls
and procedures were effective as of September4,. 2

Management’s Report on Internal Controls over Finaial Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and taiaing adequate internal control over financigloring. Because of its
inherent limitations, internal control over finaalcieporting may not prevent or detect misstatemeAtso, projection of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods Igatt to the risk that controls may become inadigbeacause of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance Withfolicies or procedures may deteriorate. In ngphiis assessment,
management used the criteria set forth by the Cttewndf Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadwayn@ission (COSO)
in Internal Control — Integrated Framework (199arRework) and has excluded current year acquisi{i@rsphic Plastics,
P&B and C&C). The operations acquired from Grapliitastics, P&B and C&C represented approxima&@yof our
consolidated total assets and 4% of our consotidat¢ sales as of and for the year ended Septe2iib2014.

Based upon its assessment, management concluded tfasSeptember 27, 2014, the Company’s inteaaiols over
financial reporting were effective. In additionnBt & Young LLP as of September 27, 2014, the Camyjs independent
registered public accounting firm, provided ansaigon report on the Company’s internal contr@rdinancial reporting.

Changes in Internal Controls Over Financial Reponiy

There have been no changes in our internal cooweyi financial reporting occurred during the fougtharter of fiscal 2014
that have materially affected, or are reasonakéhfito materially affect, our internal control efamancial reporting.
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Iltem 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
None.

PART IlI

Item 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRA NT

The information required by this Item, with the egtion of the Code of Ethics disclosure belowniiporated herein by
reference to our definitive Proxy Statement toileel in connection with the 2015 Annual Meetingstdckholders.

Code of Ethics

We have a Code of Business Ethics that applie éomgloyees, including our Chief Executive Offiegrd senior financial
officers. These standards are designed to detergdoing and to promote the highest ethical, maral,legal conduct of all
employees. Our Code of Business Ethics can berglutairee of charge, by contacting our corporaselbearters or can be
obtained from the Corporate Governance sectioheoCompany’s internet site.

Item 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this Item is incorpedherein by reference to our definitive Proxy &tant to be filed in
connection with the 2015 Annual Meeting of Stockleos.

Item 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AN D MANAGEMENT AND
RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by this Item, is incorgied herein by reference to our definitive Proxat&nent to be filed in
connection with the 2015 Annual Meeting of Stockleos.

Item 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS AN D DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this Item is incorpedaherein by reference to our definitive Proxyt&teent to be filed in
connection with the 2015 Annual Meeting of Stockleos.

Item 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this Item is incorpeherein by reference to our definitive Proxy &tant to be filed in
connection with the 2015 Annual Meeting of Stockleos.
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PART IV

Item 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

1. Financial Statements

The financial statements listed under ltem Hitge as part of this report.

2. Financial Statement Schedules

Schedules have been omitted because they laee eit applicable or the required information
has been disclosed in the financial statementstesrihereto.

3. Exhibits

The exhibits listed on the Exhibit Index immeslig following the signature page of
this annual report are filed as part of this report
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindgrirm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Berry Plastics Group, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated talsimeets of Berry Plastics Group, Inc. as of &apge 27, 2014 and
September 28, 2013, and the related consolidadézhstnts of income, comprehensive income, changeedkholders'
equity (deficit) and cash flows for each of thesthiyears in the period ended September 27, 20&4eTmancial statements
are the responsibility of the Company's managen@untresponsibility is to express an opinion orséhfinancial statements
based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting Oversigha8dUnited
States). Those standards require that we planenfiohm the audit to obtain reasonable assurancat aideether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. Alit excludes examining, on a test basis, evidenpparting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. Aritalgb includes assessing the accounting prireipded and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaldlérgyerall financial statement presentation. \&léelbe that our audits
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referedliove present fairly, in all material respetts,donsolidated financial
position of Berry Plastics Group, Inc. at Septen#t¥r2014 and September 28 2013, and the consalidesults of its
operations and its cash flows for each of the tiiezes in the period ended September 27, 2014nfoomity with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stdedd the Public Company Accounting Oversight Ba@inited States),
Berry Plastics Group, Inc.’s internal control ofieancial reporting as of September 27, 2014, basettiteria established in

Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued byGoenmittee of Sponsoring Organizations of the TwegdCommission
(1992 framework)"and our report dated November 24, 2014 expressaedagualified opinion thereon.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP

Indianapolis, Indiana
November 24, 2014
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindgrirm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders

Berry Plastics Group, Inc.

We have audited Berry Plastics Group, Inc.’s irdeaontrol over financial reporting as of Septen®&r2014, based on
criteria established in Internal Control—Integrakegdmework issued by the Committee of Sponsorirgp@izations of the
Treadway Commission (1992 framework) (the COS@uiaj. Berry Plastics Group Inc.’s managementspaasible for
maintaining effective internal control over finamaieporting, and for its assessment of the effentss of internal control
over financial reporting included in the accompagyManagement’s Report on Internal Controls oveaRtial Reporting.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion ondbepany’s internal control over financial reportivased on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the statgdof the Public Company Accounting OversightrBdanited
States). Those standards require that we planenfickm the audit to obtain reasonable assuranagt aldwether effective
internal control over financial reporting was mained in all material respects. Our audit includbthining an
understanding of internal control over financigloging, assessing the risk that a material weakegsts, testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectivenésgdernal control based on the assessed riskparfdrming such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the dtanoes. We believe that our audit provides a redide basis for our
opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed to provide reasonableaasguregarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the prepaoat of financial statements for external purposeadcordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company’s intlecoatrol over financial reporting includes thos#igies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records thatasonable detail, accurately and fairly wfthe transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)igeoreasonable assurance that transactions ameleelcas necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in adance with generally accepted accounting princigled that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made ordgéordance with authorizations of management aedtdis of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurancediaggrevention or timely detection of unauthorizeduisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could laaveterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal coh@iver financial reporting may not prevent or deteisstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectivenessutmife periods are subject to the risk that contrdy become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degfreompliance with the policies or procedures uhetgriorate.

In our opinion, Berry Plastics Group, Imaintained, in all material respects, effectivelinal control over financial
reporting as of September 27, 2014, based on tI&3CeDiteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stdadd the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@mited States),
the 2014 consolidated financial statements of Belagtics Group, Inc. and our report dated Noverabhe2014 expressed
an unqualified opinion thereon.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP

Indianapolis, Indiana
November 24, 2014
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Berry Plastics Group, Inc.

Consolidated Balance Sheets
(in millions of dollars, except share data)

September 27, 2014 September 28, 2013

Assets
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 129 $ 142
Accounts receivable, net 491 449
Inventories 604 575
Deferred income taxes 166 139
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 42 32
Total current assets 1,432 1,337
Property, plant and equipment, net 1,364 1,266
Goodwill, intangible assets and deferred costs, net 2,471 2,520
Other assets 1 12
Total assets $ 5,268 $ 5,135

Liabilities and stockholders' equity (deficit)
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable $ 395 % 337

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 314 276

Current portion of long-term debt 58 71
Total current liabilities 767 684
Long-term debt, less current portion 3,860 3,875
Deferred income taxes 386 385
Other long-term liabilities 356 387
Total liabilities 5,369 5,331
Commitments and contingencies
Redeemable Non-controlling interest 13 -

Stockholders' equity (deficit):

Common StOCk(.“B0.0l par value; 400,000,000 shares authoriZEt/929,870 shares issued and
117,929,386 shares outstanding as of Septemb202%; 115,895,927 shares issued and 115,825,443

shares outstanding as of September 28, 2013) 1 1
Additional paid-in capital 367 322
Non-controlling interest 3 3
Accumulated deficit (442) (504)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (43) (18)
Total stockholders' equity (deficit) (114) (196)
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity (deficit $ 5,268 $ 5,135

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Berry Plastics Group, Inc.

Consolidated

Statements of Income

(in millions of dollars, except per share data)

Fiscal years ended

September 27, 2014  September 28, 2013September 29, 2012

Net saes $ 4958 % 4647 % 4,766
Costs and expenses:

Cost of goods sold 4,190 3,835 3,984

Selling, general and administrative 320 307 317

Amortization of intangibles 102 105 109

Restructuring and impairment charges 30 14 31
Operating income 316 386 325
Debt extinguishment 35 64 -
Other income, net @) (7) (7)
Interest expense, net 221 244 328
Income before income taxes 67 85 4
Income tax expense 4 28 2
Consolidated net income 63 57 2
Net inccame attributable to non-controlling interests 1 - -
Net income attributable to the Comp $ 62 % 57 & 2
Net income per shal

Basic (see footnote 14) $ 0.53 $ 050 $ 0.02

Diluted (see footnote 14) $ 0.51 $ 048 $ 0.02

Berry Plastics Group, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

(inm

Consolidated net income
Currency translation
Interest rate hedges
Defined benefit pension and retiree health bepédits

Provision for income taxes related to other
comprehensive income items

Comprehensive income
Comprehensive income attributable to non-contrgllin
interests

Comprehensive income attributable to the Company

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

illions of dollars)
$ 63 $ 57 $ 2
(16) 5) 6
3) 20 4
(11) 34 (14)
5 (20) 5
38 86 3
1 - -
$ 37 $ 86 $ 3
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Berry Plastics Group, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockbers' Equity (Deficit)

(in millions of dollars)

Accumulated

Balance at October 1, 2011

Stock compensation expense

Interest rate hedge, net of tax

Fair value adjustment of redeemable stock
Net income attributable to the Company

Currency translation

Defined benefit pension and retiree health
benefit plans, net of tax

Balance at September 29, 2012

Stock compensation expense

Repayment of note receivable

Proceeds from issuance of common stock
Termination of redeemable shares
Proceeds from initial public offering
Obligation under tax receivable agreement
Interest rate hedge, net of tax

Net income attributable to the Company

Currency translation

Defined benefit pension and retiree health
benefit plans, net of tax

Derivative amortization, net of tax

Balance at September 28, 2013

Stock compensation expense

Proceeds from issuance of common stock
Obligation under tax receivable agreement
Interest rate hedge, net of tax

Net income attributable to the Company

Currency translation

Defined benefit pension and retiree health
benefit plans, net of tax

Balance at September 27, 2014 $

Additional Receivable- Other
Paid-in Common Comprehensive  Accumulated
Capital Loss Deficit

149 $ (48) (563) (467)

2 - - 2

- 3 - 3

) (13 - - (13)

- - 2 2

- 6 - 6

- (8 - ()]
$31 (a7) (561) (475)

16 - - 16

- - - 2

27 - - 27

23 - - 23

438 - - 438
Y313 - - (313)

- 10 - 10

- - 57 57

- ®) - ®)

- 21 - 21

- 3 - 3
$22 (18) (504) (196)

15 - - 15
17 - - 17
13 - - 13
- @ - @

- - 62 62

- (16) - (16)

- ) - )
367$ (43) $ (442) (114)

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Berry Plastics Group, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(in millions of dollars)

Fiscal years ended
September 28, 2013 September 29, 2012

September 27, 2014

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:

Consolidated net income $ 63 $ 57 $ 2
Net income attributable to n-controlling interests 1 -

Net income attributable to the Comp $ 62 $ 57 $ 2
Adjustments to reconcile net cash from operatiniyiies:

Depreciation 256 236 246
Amortization of intangibles 102 105 109
Nor-cash interest expense 7 14 24
Debt extinguishment 35 64 -
Settlement of interest rate hedge - 16 -
Stock compensation expense 15 16 2
Deferred income tax 4 22 1
Impairment of long-lived assets 7 6 20
Other non-cash items (©)] (6) 3
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable, net 5 3 95
Inventories 19 (43) 37
Prepaid expenses and other assets 1) 15 7
Accounts payable and other liabilities 30 (41) (53)
Net cash from operating activit 530 464 479
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:

Additions to property, plant and equipment (215) (239) (230)
Proceeds from sale of assets 19 18 30
Acquisitions of business, net of cash acquired (226) (24) (55)
Net cash from investing activiti (422) (245) (255)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities:

Proceeds from long-term borrowings 1,627 1,391 2
Repayment of long-term borrowings (1,687) (1,978) (175)
Proceeds from issuance of common stock 17 27 -
Purchases of common stock - - (6)
Payment of tax receivable agreement (32) (5) -
Proceeds from initial public offering - 438 -
Repayment of notes receivable - 2 -
Debt financing costs (44 (39) -
Net cash from financing activiti (119) (164) (179)
Effect of currency translation on cash 2 - -
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equi (13) 55 45
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 142 87 42
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 129 $ 142 $ 87

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Berry Plastics Group, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(in millions of dollars, except as otherwise noted)

1. Basis of Presentation and Summary of Significamccounting Policies
Background

Berry Plastics Group, Inc. (“Berry” or the “Compéhig a leading provider of value-added plasticsuomer packaging and
engineered materials with a track record of deliagehigh-quality customized solutions to our custosn Representative
examples of our products include drink cups, thaibeontainers, bottles, specialty closures, pipson vials, specialty
films, adhesives and corrosion protection materisde sell our solutions predominantly into conswom@ented end-
markets, such as food and beverage, healthcangeasohal care.

Basis of Presentation

In October 2012, the Company completed an initidlip offering. The proceeds, net of transactiesst of $438 million
and cash from operations were used to repurchd&feriidlion of 11% Senior Subordinated Notes. Inmection with the
initial public offering, the Company entered intoiacome tax receivable agreement that providethé®opayment to pre-
initial public offering stockholders, option holdesnd holders of our stock appreciation rights, 8%e amount of cash
savings, if any, in U.S. federal, foreign, statd ktal income tax that are actually realized ¢erdeemed to be realized in
the case of a change of control) as a result afitifization of net operating losses of the Compangt its subsidiaries
attributable to periods prior to the initial pubditfering.

In February 2014, June 2014 and August 2014, cefiaids affiliated with Apollo Global Management,C (“Apollo”)
sold 9 million shares in a secondary public offgriar proceeds of $205 million, 10 million sharasai secondary public
offering for proceeds of $237 million and 14.7 mifl shares in a secondary public offering for peatseof $360 million,
respectively. The Company received no proceedsrandred fees of approximately $1 million relatedhese offerings.
Following these offerings, Apollo no longer had aguity ownership in the Company.

Periods presented in these financial statementgliadiscal periods ending September 27, 2014dfi2014”), September
28, 2013 (*fiscal 2013"), and September 29, 2018cal 2012"). Berry, through its wholly-owned sidtiaries operates in
four primary segments: Rigid Open Top, Rigid Ctb3ep, Engineered Materials, and Flexible Packagifige Company’s
customers are located principally throughout théddnStates, without significant concentration ity ane region or with
any one customer. The Company performs perioéitevaluations of its customers’ financial coiwtitand generally
does not require collateral. The Company’s figealr is based on fifty-two week periods. The Camygdaas evaluated
subsequent events through the date the finaneigiséents were issued.

The consolidated financial statements include tdoeants of Berry and its subsidiaries, all of whintiudes our wholly
owned and majority owned subsidiaries. Intercomgatpunts and transactions have been eliminatahisolidation.
Where our ownership of consolidated subsidiaridssis than 100% the non-controlling interests eflected in Non-
controlling interest and Redeemable non-controlilintgrests.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue from the sales of products is recognizéitbatme title and risks and rewards of ownerglaigs to the customer,
there is persuasive evidence of an arrangemergatas price is fixed and determinable and cotleds reasonably assured.
Provisions for certain rebates, sales incentivadgetpromotions, coupons, product returns and aligsdo customers are
accounted for as reductions in gross sales toeaatinet sales. In accordance with the RevenuedgRéion standards of the
Accounting Standards Codification (“Codification” ®SC”), the Company provides for these itemseaturctions of

revenue at the later of the date of the sale oddite the incentive is offered. These provisiogrsbased on estimates derived
from current program requirements and historicakeeience.

Shipping, handling, purchasing, receiving, inspegtivarehousing, and other costs of distributienpresented in Cost of
goods sold in the Consolidated Statements of Incohhe Company classifies amounts charged to #mers for shipping
and handling in Net sales in the Consolidated Btatts of Income.

Purchases of Raw Materials and Concentration of Ris

The largest supplier of the Company’s total resatamal requirements represented approximately @2ptirchases in fiscal
2014. The Company uses a variety of suppliersdetiits resin requirements.
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Research and Development

Research and development costs are expensed vaueresth The Company incurred research and developm
expenditures of $32 million, $28 million, and $28lion in fiscal 2014, 2013, and 2012, respectively

Stock-Based Compensation

The compensation guidance of the FASB requirestigatompensation cost relating to share-based graytnansactions be
recognized in financial statements based on atigentair value models. The share-based compemsetist is measured
based on the fair value of the equity or liabilitgtruments issued. The Company’s share-basedaation plan is more
fully described in Note 12. The Company recoraedl tstock compensation expense of $15 million, ®ilbon, and $2
million for fiscal 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectjvel

In August 2013, the Company recorded an $8 mikitmek compensation charge related to certain reatlifns to the Berry
Plastics Group Inc. 2006 Equity Incentive Plan tmedBerry Plastics Group, Inc. 2012 Long-Term IrisenPlan
(collectively, the "Plans"), and amended outstagdion-qualified stock option agreements to refech modifications. The
modifications, include (i) accelerated vesting lbfiavested options upon an employee's death ongreent disability (i) in
the event of an employee's qualified retirementfinaation of the normal vesting period applicabléhe retiree's unvested
options, as well as an extension of the exercigeg® the end of the original ten-year term & thtiree's vested options
and (iii) all unvested options and stock appreafatights that were subject to performance-basstingecriteria as of
January 1, 2013 (excluding certain IRR performaresed options) were modified to time-based vesting.

The Company utilizes the Black-Scholes option vidmamodel for estimating the fair value of thectoptions. The model
allows for the use of a range of assumptions. Eegevolatilities utilized in the Black-Scholes nebdre based on implied
volatilities from traded stocks of peer compang&imilarly, the dividend yield is based on histoliegperience and the
estimate of future dividend yields. The risk-freterest rate is derived from the U.S. Treasuridyearve in effect at the
time of grant. The Company’s options have a ter gentractual life. For purposes of the valuatiwodel in fiscal 2014
and fiscal 2013, the Company used the simplifiethotkfor determining the granted options expedtexs! The fair value
for options granted has been estimated at theofigint using a Black-Scholes model, with thediwihg weighted average
assumptions:

Fiscal year
2014 2013 2012
Risk-free interest rate 1.3% 0.6 % 0.6-09%
Dividend yield 0.0% 0.0 % 0.0 %
Volatility factor .33 .38 .38
Expected option life 7 years 7 years 5 years

Foreign Currency

For the non-U.S. subsidiaries that account in atfanal currency other than U.S. Dollars, assetsliabilities are translated
into U.S. Dollars using period-end exchange ragales and expenses are translated at the avexdgmnge rates in effect
during the period. Foreign currency translatiomgand losses are included as a component of Adetea other
comprehensive income (loss) within stockholdersiitgg Gains and losses resulting from foreign ency transactions, the
amounts of which are not material in any periodented are included in the Consolidated Statenoéftsome.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

All highly liquid investments purchased with a nritfuof three months or less from the time of pash are considered to be
cash equivalents.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The Company’s accounts receivable and related atioesfor doubtful accounts are analyzed in deted quarterly basis
and all significant customers with delinquent ba&mare reviewed to determine future collectabilithe determinations are
based on legal issues (such as bankruptcy stpagt)history, current financial and credit agereports, and the experience
of the credit representatives. Reserves are egtatllin the quarter in which the Company makeslétermination that the
account is deemed uncollectible. The Company miasedditional reserves based on its historicdldedt experience.
The following table summarizes the activity foic$2014, 2013 and 2012 for the allowance for dolibtcounts:
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2014 2013 2012

Allowance for doubtful accounts, beginning $ 3 $ 3 $ 4
Bad debt expense - 1 1
Write-offs against allowance - (@H)] 2
Allowance for doubtful accounts, ending $ 3 $ 3 $ 3
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or etzakd are valued using the first-in, first-outhoet. Management
periodically reviews inventory balances, using mt@nd future expected sales to identify slow-mgwnd/or obsolete items.
The cost of spare parts inventory is charged toufis@turing overhead expense when incurred. Weuatabur reserve for
inventory obsolescence on a quarterly basis andwedmventory on-hand to determine future salabilitVe base our
determinations on the age of the inventory ancitperience of our personnel. We reserve inverttatwe deem to be not
salable in the quarter in which we make the deteatiin. We believe, based on past history angbolicies and
procedures, that our net inventory is salable emmary as of fiscal 2014 and 2013 was:

Inventories: 2014 2013
Finished goods $ 353 $ 335
Raw materials 251 240

$ 604 $ 575

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at &spreciation is computed primarily by the straitiie- method over the
estimated useful lives of the assets ranging frértro25 years for buildings and improvements, twQ years for
machinery, equipment, and tooling and over the tgfrthe agreement for capital leases. Leasehqgidowements are
depreciated over the shorter of the useful lifthefimprovement or the lease term. Repairs andter@nce costs are
charged to expense as incurred. The Company lizgitanterest of $6 million, $5 million, and $5Ikan in fiscal 2014,
2013, and 2012, respectively. Property, planteqmdpment as of fiscal 2014 and 2013 was:

Property, plant and equipment: 2014 2013
Land, buildings and improvements $ 363 $ 302
Equipment and construction in progress 2509 2241

2,872 2,543
Less accumulated depreciation (1,508) (1,277)
$ 1,364 $ 1,266

Long-lived Assets

Long-lived assets, including property, plant andipepent and definite lived intangible assets avéereed for impairment at
the product line level in accordance with the Prgp&lant and Equipment standard of the ASC whentacts and
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount nodye recoverable. Specifically, this processlives comparing an
asset’s carrying value to the estimated undiscountere cash flows the asset is expected to genevar its remaining life.
If this process were to result in the conclusiat the carrying value of a long-lived asset wowdtllve recoverable, a write-
down of the asset to fair value would be recortiediigh a charge to operations. Fair value is oetexd based upon
discounted cash flows or appraisals as appropriaiag-lived assets that are held for sale arertegat the lower of the
assets’ carrying amount or fair value less coséga® to the assets’ disposition. We recorded impnt charges totaling $7
million, $5 million, and $20 million to write-dowiong-lived assets to their net realizable valuablaing fiscal years 2014,
2013, and 2012 respectively.

Goodwill

The Company follows the principles provided by @modwill and Other Intangibles standard of the AGGodwill is not
amortized but rather tested annually for impairm&he Company performs their annual impairmentdaghe first day of
the fourth quarter in each respective fiscal yddre Company has recognized cumulative chargegofaidwill impairment
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of $165 million which occurred in fiscal 2011. Fmrrposes of conducting our annual goodwill impaintrtest, the
Company determined that we have six reporting u@ipen Top, Rigid Closed Top, Engineered FilmsxiBle Packaging,
International and Tapes. Tapes and Engineereds Eiimprise the Engineered Materials operating segnigexible
Packaging and International comprise the FlexillekBging segment. Our International reporting'sigivodwill primarily
derived from the current year P&B and C&C acquisis. We determined that each of the componenitsnwur respective
reporting units should be aggregated. We readfisg¢dnclusion because within each of our repouini¢s, we have similar
products, management oversight, production prosesse markets served which allow us to share assdtsesources
across the product lines. We regularly re-aligngyaduction equipment and manufacturing facilitiesrder to take
advantage of cost savings opportunities, obtaiergyes and create manufacturing efficiencies. dufiteon, we utilize our
research and development centers, design ceraeshops, and graphics center which all provideeliento each of the
reporting units and work on new products that aaronly benefit one product line, but can benefittiple product lines.
We also believe that the goodwill is recoverabderfthe overall operations of the unit given theilgirity in production
processes, synergies from leveraging the combigalirces, common raw materials, common researctiematbpment,
similar margins and similar distribution methodaésg In fiscal 2014, the Company applied the ¢giale assessment to
determine whether it is more likely than not thnet fair value of the reporting unit may be lessittiee carrying amount.
Based on our review of prior quantitative testsnges in the carrying values, operating resulisyaet market data and
other factors we determined that no impairmentiwdisated for the Rigid Closed Top, Engineered Eijliiexible
Packaging, International and Tapes reporting umise to the decline in operating income in theidR@pen Top reporting
unit during fiscal 2014, we completed step 1 ofithpairment test which indicated no impairment &ds In fiscal 2013, the
Company applied the qualitative assessment tordeterwhether it is more likely than not that thie f@alue of the reporting
unit may be less than the carrying amount. BagsenLo review of prior quantitative tests, changethé carrying values,
operating results, relevant market data and otiwtorfs we determined that no impairment was ineécahd we did not
perform a two-step impairment test. In fiscal 20die completed step 1 of the impairment test lfidha reporting units and
no impairment was indicated.

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwillépgortable segment are as follows:

Rigid Open Rigid Closed Engineered Flexible

Top Top Materials Packaging Total
Balance as of fiscal 2012 $ 681 $ 832 $ 73 $ 40 $ 1,626
Foreign currency translation adjustment - 1) 1 - -
Acquisitions(divestitures), net - - (1) 9 8
Balance as of fiscal 2013 $ 681 $ 831 $ 73 $ 49 $ 1634
Foreign currency translation adjustment - 2 2 - 4)
Acquisitions(realignment), net - (2) - 31 29
Balance as of fiscal 2014 $ 681 $ 827 $ 71 $ 80 $ 1,659

Deferred Financing Fees

Deferred financing fees are being amortized ta@steexpense using the effective interest methed thve lives of the
respective debt agreements.

Intangible Assets

Customer relationships are being amortized usingcaelerated amortization method which correspuriithsthe customer
attrition rates used in the initial valuation oétimtangibles over the estimated life of the retahips which range from 11 to
20 years. Trademarks that are expected to remaige, which are indefinite lived intangible assats required to be
reviewed for impairment annually. Technology irgilafes are being amortized using the straightitirethod over the
estimated life of the technology which is 11 yedrizense intangibles are being amortized usingtraght-line method
over the life of the license which is 10 yearsteRtintangibles are being amortized using thegéttdine method over the
shorter of the estimated life of the technologther patent expiration date ranging from 10 to 2&rgewith a weighted-
average life of 15 years. The Company evaluatesaimaining useful life of intangible assets ordgulic basis to
determine whether events and circumstances wanavision to the remaining useful life. We contgdethe annual
impairment test of our indefinite lived tradenaraes noted no impairment. The Company recordedraiibn impairment
charge related to the exit of certain operatiorfistal 2013.
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Customer Other Accumulated

Relationships  Trademarks Intangibles Amortization Total
Balance as of fiscal 2012 $ 1,153 $289 $ 99 $ (584) $ 957
Adjustment for income taxes ©) Q) 5 2 5)
Foreign currency translation adjustment - - 2 - 2
Write-off of fully amortized intangibles - (5) ) 6 -
Amortization expense - - - (105) (105)
Impairment of intangibles (21) 1) - 17 ) (5
Acquisition intangibles 9 1 2 - 12
Balance as of fiscal 2013 $ 1,134 $283 $ 107 $ (668) $ 856
Adjustment for income taxes 2) - Q) - 3
Foreign currency translation adjustment 3) 1) 2 4 (2)
Amortization expense - - - (102) (102)
Acquisition intangibles 38 - 5 - 43
Balance as of fiscal 2014 $ 1,167 $ 282 $ 109 $ (766) $ 792

Insurable Liabilities

The Company records liabilities for the self-ingup®rtion of workers’ compensation, health, progdgeneral and auto
liabilities. The determination of these liabilgiand related expenses is dependent on claimsexper For most of these
liabilities, claims incurred but not yet reported astimated based upon historical claims expegienc

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes under thet asd liability approach, which requires the regtign of deferred tax
assets and liabilities for the expected futurectansequence of events that have been recognitiee @ompany’s financial
statements or income tax returns. Income taxeseaognized during the period in which the undadyiransactions are
recorded. Deferred taxes, with the exception ofdeductible goodwill, are provided for temporaiffeslences between
amounts of assets and liabilities as recordedrantial reporting purposes and such amounts asurezhby tax laws. |If
the Company determines that a deferred tax assitgafrom temporary differences is not likely te btilized, the Company
will establish a valuation allowance against ttested to record it at its expected realizable valtlee Company recognizes
uncertain tax positions when it is more likely thaot that the tax position will be sustained uprangination by relevant
taxing authorities, based on the technical mefite@position. The amount recognized is measusdtealargest amount of
benefit that is greater than 50% likely of beinglimed upon ultimate settlement. The Company'satiffe tax rate is
dependent on many factors including: the impaenaicted tax laws in jurisdictions in which the Qamy operates; the
amount of earnings by jurisdiction, due to varyiag rates in each country; and the Company’s ghdiutilize foreign tax
credits related to foreign taxes paid on foreigmiegs that will be remitted to the United States.

Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Comprehensive income (loss) is comprised of netnme(loss) and other comprehensive income (Id3f)er
comprehensive losses include net unrealized gailesses resulting from currency translations ofifgn subsidiaries,
changes in the value of our derivative instrumant$ adjustments to the pension liability.

The accumulated balances related to each compohetiter comprehensive income (loss) were as falamounts below
are net of taxes):

Defined Benefit

Currency Pension and Retiree  Interest Rat Accumulated Other
Translation Health Benefit Plans Hedges Comprehensive Loss
Balance as cfiscal 20:1 $ (21) $ (21) $ (6) $ (48)
Other comprehensive income (loss) 6 (14) 4 4
Tax expense (benefit) - 6 Q) 5
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Balance as of fiscal 2012 $ (15) $ (29) $ (3) $ (47)

Other comprehensive income (loss) (5) 34 20 49
Tax benefit - (13) @) (20)
Balance as of fiscal 23 $ (20) $ (8) $ 1C $ (18)
Other comprehensive loss (16) (11) 3 (30)
Tax expense - 4 1 5

Balance as of fiscal 2014 $ (36) $ (15) $ 8 $ (43)

Accrued Rebates

The Company offers various rebates to customeedbas purchases. These rebate programs are indiyichegotiated
with customers and contain a variety of differemirts and conditions. Certain rebates are calclbstdlat percentages of
purchases, while others included tiered volumeritices. These rebates may be payable monthlyteglyaror annually.
The calculation of the accrued rebate balance wegosignificant management estimates, especiakyeve terms of the
rebate involve tiered volume levels that requitévestes of expected annual sales. These provisi@Based on estimates
derived from current program requirements and ticgtbexperience. The accrual for customer rebates$50 million and
$55 million at the end of fiscal 2014 and 2013peesively and is included in Accrued expenses dhdracurrent

liabilities.

Pension

Pension benefit costs include assumptions foridwdnt rate, retirement age, and expected retuplam assets. Retiree
medical plan costs include assumptions for theodistrate, retirement age, and health-care-cosd ti@tes. Periodically, the
Company evaluates the discount rate and the expeatten on plan assets in its defined benefitipereand retiree health
benefit plans. In evaluating these assumptioesCitmpany considers many factors, including aruetiain of the discount
rates, expected return on plan assets and théituee#t-cost trend rates of other companies; histbaissumptions compared
with actual results; an analysis of current madeetditions and asset allocations; and the vievesluisers.

Net Income Per Share

The Company calculates basic net income per shaedon the weighted-average number of outstacdimgnon shares.
The Company calculates diluted net income per dbased on the weighted-average number of outsiguedimmon shares
plus the effect of dilutive securities.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in aonity with U.S. generally accepted accounting giptes requires
management to make extensive use of estimatessanthptions that affect the reported amount of aisset liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities thied-eported amounts of sales and expenses. |Aetudts could differ
materially from these estimates. Changes in etgiraxre recorded in results of operations in thiegéhat the event or
circumstances giving rise to such changes occur.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting StandardsrBdssued a final standard on revenue recognitioider the new
standard, an entity should recognize revenue ticidie transfer of promised goods or servicegiamers in an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the ergitgects to be entitled in exchange for those goodsrvices. In order to do
S0, an entity would follow the five-step processifoscope transactions: 1) identify the contraith\a customer, 2) identify
the separate performance obligations in the canBadetermine the transaction price, 4) allothéstransaction price to the
separate performance obligations in the contradt 53 recognize revenue when (or as) the entitgfist a performance
obligation. For public entities, the provisionstioé new standard are effective for annual repogigrgpds beginning after
December 15, 2016 and early adoption is not pexchitin entity can apply the new revenue standardspectively to each
prior reporting period presented or retrospectivatp the cumulative effect of initially applyingé standard recognized at
the date of initial application in retained earinghe Company is currently assessing the impatietconsolidated
financial statements.

In July 2013, the FASB issued Accounting Standahodate No. 2013-11: Income Taxes (Topic 740), Ptasien of an
Unrecognized Tax Benefit When a Net Operating l@ssyforward, a Similar Tax Loss, or a Tax Credirn@forward
Exists (a consensus of the FASB Emerging Issuds Farse) (“ASU 2013-11"). An entity is requireal present
unrecognized tax benefits as a decrease in a retop loss, similar tax loss or tax credit casryfard if certain criteria are
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met. The determination of whether a deferred taetds available is based on the unrecognizeddagftt and the deferred
tax asset that exists at the reporting date arslipres disallowance of the tax position at the tempdate. The guidance
will eliminate the diversity in practice in the pemtation of unrecognized tax benefits but will alegr the way in which
entities assess deferred tax assets for realizafiie adoption of ASU 2013-11 did not have andotpn the Company’'s
consolidated financial statements.

2. Acquisitions
Graphic Flexible Packaging LLC’s Flexible Plast@sd Films

In September 2013, the Company acquired GraphiéfiéePackaging LLC's flexible plastics and filmaginess (“Graphic
Plastics”) for a purchase price of $61 million, oEtash acquired. Graphic Plastics is a prodoferaps, films, pouches,
and bags for the food, medical, industrial, persoaee, and pet food markets. The Graphic Plabtisiness is operated in
the Company’s Flexible Packaging segment. To fimdhe purchase, the Company used existing liquidihe Graphic
Plastics acquisition has been accounted for uhdgpirchase method of accounting, and accorditigdypurchase price has
been allocated to the identifiable assets anditiabibased on estimated fair values at the attguigdate. The acquired
assets and assumed liabilities consisted of worbdmital of $8 million, property and equipment aB3nillion, intangible
assets of $25 million, goodwill of $14 million anther long-term liabilities of $4 million. The Cqany expects goodwill to
be deductible for tax purposes.

Qingdao P&B Co., Ltd

In January 2014, the Company acquired the comtgpifiterest (75%) of Qingdao P&B Co., Ltd (“P&B9rfa purchase
price of $35 million, net of cash acquired. P&Bizgs thermoform, injection, and automated assgmtanufacturing
processes to produce products for multiple maatsss China as well as globally, most predomipativing the food and
personal care markets. P&B is operated in theilbllefeackaging segment. To finance the purchhseCbmpany used
existing liquidity. The P&B acquisition has beataunted for under the purchase method of accayrdimd accordingly,
the purchase price has been allocated to the fidétei assets and liabilities based on estimatedddues at the acquisition
date. As part of the P&B acquisition, the non-oolfihg interest holder has a put option, and tkenBany has a call option
on the remaining 25% interest in P&B that beconfifextve three years from the date of purchaseorlgxecution of the
put or call option, the purchase price for the ri@mg equity interest will be determined basedmnfair value at the date of
execution. The non-controlling interest of P&Beasorded in Redeemable non-controlling interestvaitide carried at fair
value with adjustments in the fair value being rded in Additional paid-in capital. The acquires$ets and assumed
liabilities consisted of working capital of $9 noth, property and equipment of $24 million, intdrgiassets of $11 million,
goodwill of $10 million, other long-term liabiliteeof $4 million and Redeemable non-controllingriese of $13 million. The
Company has not finalized the tax allocation of fhirchase price allocation as of fiscal 2014.

Rexam Healthcare Containers and Closures

In June 2014, the Company acquired Rexam’s Hea#tt@antainers and Closures business (“C&C”) fouglpase price of
$130 million, net of cash acquired. The C&C busiproduces bottles, closures and specialty prediicpharmaceutical
and over-the-counter applications. Facilities fedan the United States are operated in the Rigpded Top segment, and
locations outside the United States are operat#kifrlexible Packaging segment. To finance thehase, the Company
used existing liquidity. The C&C acquisition haeh accounted for under the purchase method ofiatiog, and
accordingly, the purchase price has been allo¢atdw identifiable assets and liabilities base@stimated fair values at the
acquisition date. The acquired assets and asslimbéities consisted of working capital of $32 hah, property and
equipment of $84 million, non-current deferred baxefit of $4 million, intangible assets of $7 moifl, goodwill of $6

million and other long-term liabilities of $3 mdin. The Company has not finalized the purchase jatlocation to the fair
values of fixed assets, intangibles, deferred iretares and is reviewing the working capital aeglas of fiscal 2014. The
Company expects domestic goodwill to be deductdn¢ax purposes.

3. Long-Term Debt

Term Loan Refinancing

In January 2014, the Company entered into an irenéhassumption agreement to increase the commntraeder the
Company’s existing term loan credit agreement b 28 billion. The Company borrowed loans in anraggte principal
amount equal to the full amount of the commitmemisuch date. The incremental term loan bearssttat LIBOR plus
2.75% per annum with a LIBOR floor of 1.00%, masuire January 2021 and is subject to customary @atian. The
proceeds from the incremental term loan, in addlitivexisting liquidity, were used to satisfy thestanding term loan
facility that was to mature in April 2015. The Cpamy recognized a $2 million loss on extinguishnedmebt related to this
refinancing.
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5v:% Second Priority Senior Secured Notes

In May 2014, the Company issued $500 million of 5%&éond priority senior secured notes due 2022rest on the 5%:%
second priority senior secured notes is due semialy on May 15 and November 15. Proceeds framsbuance, in
addition to existing liquidity, were used to satishd discharge all of the outstanding 9%2% secaoiodity senior secured
notes. The Company recognized a $33 million losextinguishment of debt related to this debt issaa

Senior Unsecured Term Loan

In June 2014, the Company used existing liquiditgatisfy the Company’s outstanding senior unselciamen loan. The net
cash impact of the discharge was $18 million asBrillel LLC, a non-guarantor subsidiary, had paseld assignments of
approximately 98% of the total outstanding seniwacured term loan in prior years.

Long-term debt consists of the following as of disgear-end 2014 and 2013:

Maturity Date 2014 2013
Term loan February 2020 1,383 1,397
Term loan January 2021 1,122 1,125
Revolving line of credit June 2016 - -
9%,% Second Priority Notes January 2021 800 800
5',% Second Priority Notes May 2022 500 -
Retired debt - 518
Debt discount, net (20) 8)
Capital leases and other Various 133 114
3,918 3,946
Less current portion of long-term debt (58) (71)

$ 3,860 $ 3,875

Berry Plastics Corporation Senior Secured Creditify

Our wholly owned subsidiary Berry Plastics Corpior@s senior secured credit facilities consist f3billion of term loans
and a $650 million asset-based revolving line eflitr(“Credit Facility”). In January 2014, the Cpamy entered into an
incremental assumption agreement to increase thenéments under the existing term loan credit agesg by $1.125
billion. The Company borrowed loans in an aggregaincipal amount equal to the full amount of ¢tbenmitments on such
date. The proceeds from the incremental term lioeexdition to existing liquidity, were used tdisgy the outstanding term
loan facility that was to mature in April 2015. el€ompany recognized a $2 million loss on extirtguisnt of debt and
recorded $9 million of debt discount related ts @hebt refinancing. The $1.1 billion of the tewart matures in January
2021, $1.4 billion of the term loan matures in faloy 2020 and the revolving line of credit maturedune 2016, subject to
certain conditions. The availability under thealeing line of credit is the lesser of $650 milliona defined borrowing base
which is calculated based on available accountsvalle and inventory.

The borrowings under the senior secured crediitfasibear interest at a rate equal to an apgkcatfargin plus, as
determined at the Company’s option, either (a)selvate determined by reference to the higher)ahélprime rate of
Credit Suisse, Cayman Islands Branch, as admitivgragent, in the case of the term loan facilitydank of America, N.A.,
as administrative agent, in the case of the remgleredit facility and (2) the U.S. federal fundterplus 1/2 of 1% or (b)
LIBOR determined by reference to the costs of fuodgurodollar deposits in dollars in the Londoterbank market for the
interest period relevant to such borrowing Bank @lisnce for certain additional costs. The applieabargin for LIBOR
rate borrowings under the revolving credit faciliange from 1.75% to 2.25%, term loan maturingaimudry 2021 is 2.75%
annum with a LIBOR floor of 1.00% and the term l@aaturing in February 2020 is 2.50% per annum &ithBOR floor

of 1.00%.

In addition to paying interest on outstanding gpatunder the senior secured credit facilities, @ompany is required to
pay a commitment fee to the lenders under the vingtredit facilities in respect of the unutilizedmmitments thereunder
at a rate equal to 0.375% to 0.50% per annum dépgend the average daily available unused borrowaygacity. The
Company also pays a customary letter of creditifetyding a fronting fee of 0.125% per annum & $ftated amount of
each outstanding letter of credit, and customaeyeagfees.
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The term loan facility requires minimum quarterhjnpipal payments of $6 million, with the remainiagnount payable upon
maturity. The Company may voluntarily repay outdiag loans under the senior secured credit feslat any time without
premium or penalty, other than customary “breakagsts with respect to eurodollar loans. The sesgoured credit
facilities contain various restrictive covenantatfamong other things and subject to specifieégians, prohibit the
Company from prepaying other indebtedness, andatast ability to incur indebtedness or liens,kaanvestments or
declare or pay any dividends. All obligations unithe senior secured credit facilities are uncamiitlly guaranteed by the
Company and, subject to certain exceptions, eatted€ompany’s existing and future direct and extidomestic
subsidiaries. The guarantees of those obligatimsecured by substantially all of the Companysetssas well as those of
each domestic subsidiary guarantor.

We are obligated to sustain a minimum fixed chamesrage ratio of 1.0 to 1.0 under the revolvirggirfacility (tested
quarterly) at any time when the aggregate unugeacity under the revolving credit facility is lebsn 10% of the lesser of
the revolving credit facility commitments and th@owing base (and for 10 business days followlrgdate upon which
availability exceeds such threshold) or duringabetinuation of an event of default. Our fixed rgeacoverage ratio, as
defined in the revolving credit facility, is calattd based on a numerator consisting of adjusté@ilEBless pro forma
adjustments, income taxes paid in cash and capipenditures, and a denominator consisting of sdbdgrincipal
payments in respect of indebtedness for borrowetkmanterest expense and certain distributiost. the end of fiscal
2014, the Company had unused borrowing capact#p@d million under the revolving credit facility duthus was not
subject to the minimum fixed charge coverage m@aieenant. Our fixed charge ratio was 2.2 to 11@eaend of fiscal

2014.

Despite not having financial maintenance covenantisgdebt agreements contain certain negative em¢en The failure to
comply with these negative covenants could restrictability to incur additional indebtedness, effacquisitions, enter into
certain significant business combinations, makeiligions or redeem indebtedness. The term laettitf contains a
negative covenant first lien secured leverage ratieenant of 4.0 to 1.0 on a pro forma basis farogosed transaction, such
as an acquisition or incurrence of additional fiest debt. Our first lien secured leverage ratas 3.0 to 1.0 at the end of
fiscal 2014.

Future maturities of long-term debt as of fiscalryend 2014 are as follows:

Fiscal Year Maturities

2015 $ 58
2016 49
2017 42
2018 42
2019 40
Thereafter 3,707
$3,938

Interest paid was $214 million, $245 million, ar2B8 million in fiscal 2014, 2013, and 2012, resjpety.
4. Financial Instruments and Fair Value Measuremerg

As part of the overall risk management, the Compes®g derivative instruments to reduce exposwhbdnges in interest
rates attributed to the Company’s floating-raterdaeings. For those derivative instruments thatdesignated and qualify as
hedging instruments, the Company must designatiedtiging instrument, based upon the exposure Ibeidged, as a fair
value hedge, cash flow hedge, or a hedge of amestment in a foreign operation. To the extedgiey relationships are
found to be effective, as determined by FASB guigachanges in fair value of the derivatives afeebby changes in the
fair value of the related hedged item are recotdestcumulated other comprehensive loss. Managebaistves hedge
effectiveness is evaluated properly in preparaticthe financial statements.

Cash Flow Hedging Strategy

For derivative instruments that are designatedqaradify as cash flow hedges, the effective portibthe gain or loss on the
derivative instrument is reported as a componeAicofimulated other comprehensive loss and rededsifto earnings in
the same line item associated with the forecastedaction and in the same period or periods duvhigh the hedged
transaction affects earnings.
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In November 2010, the Company entered into tworsépanterest rate swap transactions to managefloaskhariability
associated with $1 billion of the outstanding Vialgarate term loan debt (the “2010 Swaps”). Thst igreement had a
notional amount of $500 million and became effextivNovember 2010. The agreement swaps threehmariable

LIBOR contracts for a fixed three year rate of @8% and expired in November 2013. The second agmeehad a notional
amount of $500 million and became effective in Delser 2010. The agreement swaps three month vatlis#BDR
contracts for a fixed three year rate of 1.0235%expired in November 2013. In August 2011, thenGany began

utilizing 1-month LIBOR contracts for the underlgisenior secured credit facility. The Companyardje in interest rate
selection caused the Company to lose hedge acnguottiboth of the interest rate swaps. The Compesyrded changes in
fair value in the Consolidated Statement of Incaimeé amortized the previously recorded unrealizesids of $1 million to
Interest expense through the end of the respesira@ agreements.

In February 2013, the Company entered into anesteate swap transaction to protect $1 billioowstanding variable rate
term loan debt from future interest rate volatilithe agreement swapped the greater of a threehmmariable LIBOR
contract or 1.00% for a fixed three-year rate 868%, with an effective date in May 2016 and exjirain May 2019. In
June 2013, the Company elected to settle thisatervinstrument and received $16 million as altesuhis settlement.
The offset is included in Accumulated other compretive loss and Deferred income taxes and wilhberized to Interest
expense from May 2016 through May 2019, the origran of the swap agreement.

In March 2014, the Company entered into an intestetswap transaction to manage cash flow vaitipbisociated with $1
billion of outstanding variable rate term loan débe "2014 Swap"). The agreement swaps the grebgethree-month
variable LIBOR contract or 1.00% for a fixed thrgear rate of 2.59%, with an effective date in Faby(2016 and expiration
in February 2019. The Company records changesrindlue in Accumulated other comprehensive income

Liability Derivatives

Balance Sheet Location 2014 2013
Interest rate swaps — 2014 Swaps Other long-tedilities $ 3 $ -
Interest rate swaps — 2010 Swaps Other long-tailities $ - $ 1

The effect of the derivative instruments on the €tdidated Statement of Income are as follows:

Statement oflncome Location 2014 2013
Interest rate swaps — 2010 Swaps Other expengar(@)c $ R $ (6)
Interest expense $ _ $ 4

The Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures segatitite ASC defines fair value as the price thatilddoe received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an dgdgansaction between market participants antleasurement date, and
establishes a framework for measuring fair vallieis section also establishes a three-level hibyaficevel 1, 2, or 3) for
fair value measurements based upon the obseryatfilinputs to the valuation of an asset or liapidis of the measurement
date. This section also requires the consideratidine counterparty’s or the Company’s nonperforcearisk when
assessing fair value.

The Company’s interest rate swap fair values weterthined using Level 2 inputs as other significdrgervable inputs
were not available.

The Company’s financial instruments consist pritgarf cash and cash equivalents, long-term detsyest rate swap
agreements and capital lease obligations. Thedhie of our long-term indebtedness exceeded taloie by $86 million
and $164 million as of fiscal 2014 and fiscal 20&3pectively. The Company’s long-term debt falues were determined
using Level 2 inputs as other significant obsemaigbuts were not available.

Non-recurring Fair Value Measurements

The Company has certain assets that are measdedwatiue on a non-recurring basis under theuastances and events
described in Note 1 and Note 10. The assets @usted to fair value only when the carrying valegseed the fair

values. The categorization of the framework useatice the assets is considered a Level 3, dtieetsubjective nature of
the unobservable inputs used to determine thedhie (see Note 1 and 10 for additional discussion)
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Included in the following table are the major catégs of assets measured at fair value on a namrieg basis along with

the impairment loss recognized on the fair valuasueement for the year then ended.

As of the end of fiscal 2014

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Quoted Prices in ActiveSignificant Othe

Markets for Identical Observable Significant

Assets or Liabilities Inputs Unobservable Inputs Total Impairment Loss
Indefinite-lived trademarks ~ $ - $ - $ 207 $ 207 $ -
Goodwiill - - 1,659 1,659 -
Definite lived intangibles - - 585 585 -
Property, plant, and equipment - - 1,364 1,364
Total $ - $ - $ 3,815 $ 3,815 $

As of the end of fiscal 2013

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Quoted Prices in Active Significant Othe

Markets for Identical Observable Significant

Assets or Liabilities Inputs Unobservable Inputs  Total Impairment Loss
Indefinite-lived trademarks $ - $ - $ 207 $ 207 $ -
Goodwill - - 1,634 1,634 -
Definite lived intangibles - - 649 649 5
Property, plant, and equipment - - 1,266 1,266 -
Total $ - $ - $ 3,756 $ 3,756 $ 5

As of the end of fiscal 2012
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Quoted Prices in Active Significant Othe

Markets for Identical Observable Significant

Assets or Liabilities Inputs Unobservable Inputs  Total Impairment Loss
Indefinite-lived trademarks $ - $ - $ 220 $ 220 $ -
Goodwill - - 1,626 1,626 -
Definite lived intangibles - - 737 737 17
Property, plant, and equipment - - 1,216 1,216 3
Total $ - $ - $ 3,799 $ 3,799 $ 20

Valuation of Goodwill and Indefinite Lived Intangile Assets

ASC Topic 350 requires the Company to test gooduwilimpairment at least annually. The Companydemts the
impairment test on the first day of the fourth éilsquarter, unless indications of impairment ediging an interim period.
When assessing its goodwill for impairment, the @any utilizes a discounted cash flow analysis imlzimation with a
comparable company market approach to determin@ithealue of their reporting units and corrobertie fair values. The
Company utilizes a relief from royalty method tdueatheir indefinite lived trademarks and usesftinecasts that are
consistent with those used in the reporting urdlysis. The Company has six reporting units mollg fliscussed in Note 1.
In fiscal 2014, fiscal 2013 and fiscal 2012 the @amy determined no impairment existed. The Compahyot recognize

any impairment charges on the indefinitive livethimgible assets in any of the years presented.
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Valuation of Property, Plant and Equipment and Defte Lived Intangible Assets

The Company periodically realigns their manufacmioperations which results in facilities beingseld and shut down and
equipment transferred to other facilities or equeptrbeing scrapped or sold. The Company utilippsased values to
corroborate the fair value of the facilities and bélized a scrap value based on prior facilityteddowns to estimate the fair
value of the equipment, which has approximatedtteal value that was received. When impairmaetitators exist, the
Company will also perform an undiscounted cash #malysis to determine the recoverability of thenpany’s long-lived
assets. The Company incurred an impairment ctedrgyé million related to property, plant and equénhin fiscal 2014.
The Company did not incur an impairment chargeedl#o property, plant and equipment in fiscal 20TBe Company
wrote-down their property, plant, and equipmenhwitcarrying value of $1,219 million to its fainwe of $1,216 million,
which resulted in an impairment charge of $3 millduring fiscal 2012. The Company did not incuirapairment charge
on definite long-lived assets in fiscal 2014. TrePany did recognize an impairment charge of $8amibn definite long-
lived assets related to the decision to exit aeftasinesses during fiscal 2013.

5. Goodwill, Intangible Assets and Deferred Costs

The following table sets forth the gross carryingoant and accumulated amortization of the Compagytsiwill, intangible
assets and deferred costs as of the fiscal yea2@tland 2013:

2014 2013 Amortization Period

Deferred financing fees $ 28 $ 48 Respective debt
Accumulated amortization @) (18)
Deferred financing fees, net 20 30
Goodwiill 1,659 1,634 Indefinite lived
Customer relationships 1,167 1,134 11 - 20 years
Trademarks (indefinite lived) 207 207 Indefinite lived
Trademarks (definite lived) 75 76 8-15 years
Other intangibles 109 107 10-20 years
Accumulated amortization (766) (668)
Intangible assets, net 792 856
Total goodwill, intangible assets and deferredsost

$ 2471 $ 2,520

Future amortization expense for definite lived mgidles as of fiscal 2014 for the next five fisgahrs ist93 million, $85
million, $74 million, $56 million and $51 millionaeh year for fiscal years ending 2015, 2016, 22078, and 2019,
respectively.

6. Lease and Other Commitments and Contingencies

The Company leases certain property, plant angewiit under long-term lease agreements. Propdsityt, and equipment
under capital leases are reflected on the Compéayésice sheet as owned. The Company enteredentcapital lease
obligations totaling $45 million, $49 million, ai$¥ million during fiscal 2014, 2013, and 2012, exdjvely, with various
lease expiration dates through 2021. The Comperords amortization of capital leases in Cost afdgasold in the
Consolidated Statement of Income. Assets undernbpg leases are not recorded on the Companyésbalsheet.
Operating leases expire at various dates in theduwtith certain leases containing renewal optioftee Company had
minimum lease payments or contingent rentals ofri#fbn and $16 million and asset retirement oéigns of $7 million
and $6 million as of fiscal 2014 and 2013, respeliti Total rental expense from operating leasas $54 million, $53
million, and $56 million in fiscal 2014, 2013, aR@12, respectively.

Future minimum lease payments for capital leasdshan-cancellable operating leases with initiahtein excess of one
year as of fiscal year-end 2014, are as follows:
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Capital Leases Operating Leases

2015 $ 34 $ 46
2016 27 43
2018 18 33
Thereafter 31 143
145 $ 331
Less: amount representing interest (16)
Present value of net minimum lease payments $ 129

In September 2012, the Company entered into deadeback transaction pursuant to which it soldidehouse facility
located in Lawrence, Kansas. The Company receieegroceeds of $20 million and resulted in the Gamy realizing a
deferred gain of $1 million which will be offsetaigst the future lease payments over the life el¢hse.

The Company is party to various legal proceedingslving routine claims which are incidental tobissiness. Although
the Company'’s legal and financial liability withspeect to such proceedings cannot be estimatectwiithinty, the Company
believes that any ultimate liability would not baterial to its financial position, results of ogeras or cash flows. The
Company has various purchase commitments for rawsriabs, supplies and property and equipment imtadeo the
ordinary conduct of business.

At the end of fiscal 2014, the Company employed d6000 employees. Approximately 11% of our erypds are covered
by collective bargaining agreements. One of cewvexl agreements, covering approximately 30 empipyess scheduled
for renegotiation in October 2014 and was recemttgnded for three years. There are an additfveahgreements,
representing approximately 60% of the remaininglegges, due for renegotiation in fiscal 2015. Témaining agreements
expire after fiscal 2015. Our relations with enygles under collective bargaining agreements regadisfactory and there
have been no significant work stoppages or othwarldisputes during the past three years.

7. Accrued Expenses, Other Current Liabilities andOther Long-Term Liabilities

The following table sets forth the totals included\ccrued expenses and other current liabilitesfdiscal year-end 2014
and 2013.

2014 2013
Employee compensation, payroll and other taxes $ 99 $ 86
Interest 44 45
Rebates 50 55
Restructuring 13 4
Tax receivable agreement obligation 39 32
Other 69 54
$ 314 $ 276

The following table sets forth the totals include®ther long-term liabilities as of fiscal yearee2014 and 2013.

2014 2013
Lease retirement obligation $ 31 $ 29
Sale-lease back deferred gain 30 32
Pension liability 45 43
Tax receivable agreement obligation 234 277
Other 16 13
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$ 356 $ 387

8. Income Taxes

The Company is being taxed at the U.S. corporats ks a C-Corporation and has provided U.S. Fed#tiete and foreign
income taxes.

Significant components of income tax expense feffigtal years ended 2014, 2013 and 2012 arelaw/ol

2014 2013 2012
Current
United States
Federal $ - - $ (3)
State 5 2 -
Non-U.S. 3 4
Current income tax provision 8 6 1
Deferred:
United States
Federal 3 26 3
State (5) (3) 1)
Non-U.S. 2) (@D} )
Deferred income tax expense (benefit) 4) 22 1
Expense for income taxes $ 4 $ 28 $ 2

U.S. income from continuing operations before inedaxes was $58 million, $77 million, and $2 millifor fiscal 2014,
2013, and 2012, respectively. Non-U.S. income feomtinuing operations before income taxes was i#iidm $8 million,
and $2 million for fiscal 2014, 2013, and 2012pesgively.

The reconciliation between U.S. Federal incomedatéhe statutory rate and the Company’s berwfinEome taxes on
continuing operations for fiscal 2014, 2013, antéi2@re as follows:

2014 2013 2012

U.S. Federal income tax expense at the statuttey ra $ 23 $ 29 $ 1
Adjustments to reconcile to the income tax provisio

U.S. State income tax expense, net of valuatiawalhce 5 1) (1)

Research and development credits (20 - -

Permanent differences 2 -

Changes in foreign valuation allowance 1 1

Rate differences between U.S. and foreign (@] 2

APB 23 @) - -

Other 1) 1 (1)
Expense for income taxes $ 4 $ 28 $ 2
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Deferred income taxes result from temporary diffees between the amount of assets and liabilgezgnized for financial
reporting and tax purposes. The components afeéhdeferred income tax liability as of fiscal 2Giatl 2013 are as
follows:

2014 2013
Deferred tax assets:
Allowance for doubtful accounts $ 3 $ 3
Deferred gain on sale-leaseback 13 14
Accrued liabilities and reserves 58 34
Inventories 10 9
Net operating loss carryforward 248 343
Alternative minimum tax (AMT) credit carryforward 9 9
Research and development credit carryforward 22 -
Federal and state tax credits 13 14
Other 9 7
Total deferred tax assets 385 433
Valuation allowance (56) (59)
Total deferred tax assets, net of valuation allagan 329 374
Deferred tax liabilities:

Property, plant and equipment 157 187
Intangible assets 279 300
Debt extinguishment 107 132
Other 6 1

Total deferred tax liabilities 549 620
Net deferred tax liability $ (220) $ (246

In the United States the Company had $601 millioiederal net operating loss carryforwards assifédi 2014, which will

be available to offset future taxable income. Afszal year-end 2014, the Company had state ar&igh net operating loss
carryforwards of $803 million and $106 million, pestively, which will be available to offset futuiexable income. If not
used, the federal net operating loss carryforwaiti€xpire in future years beginning 2025 throl2#81. AMT credit
carryforwards totaling $9 million are availableth® Company indefinitely to reduce future yearslei@l income taxes. The
state net operating loss carryforwards will expiréuture years beginning in 2015 through 2033e Tompany has $18
million and $4 million of federal and state Resbaand Development tax credits, respectively, thithiewpire in future years
beginning 2027 through 2034.

In connection with the initial public offering, tt@mpany entered into an income tax receivablesageat that provides for
the payment to pre-initial public offering stockttets, option holders and holders of our stock ajpgtien rights, 85% of the
amount of cash savings, if any, in U.S. federakifm, state and local income tax that are actuafllized (or are deemed to
be realized in the case of a change of contrad)r@sult of the utilization of our and our subgigisl net operating losses
attributable to periods prior to the initial pubdiffering. Based on the Company's assumptiongusirious items, including
valuation analysis and current tax law, the Compangrded an obligation of $313 million which wasagnized as a
reduction of Paid-in capital on the ConsolidatethBee Sheets. The Company made payments of $8@maihd $5 million
in fiscal 2014 and 2013, respectively. The badamtcthe end of fiscal 2014 was $273 million.

The Company believes that it will not generateisidffit future taxable income to realize the taxdfisin certain foreign
jurisdictions related to the deferred tax assétee Company also has certain state net operatisg$ahat may expire before
they are fully utilized. Therefore, the Companyg peovided a full valuation allowance against dertdi its foreign deferred
tax assets and a valuation allowance against cextdis state deferred tax assets included witiendeferred tax assets.
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Prior changes in ownership have created limitatiorder Sec. 382 of the Internal Revenue Code onamisage of net
operating loss carryforwards. However, all of @@mpany’'s Federal net operating loss carryforwahisild be available for
use within the next five years. As part of theeefifve tax rate calculation, if we determine thdeferred tax asset arising
from temporary differences is not likely to beiagld, we will establish a valuation allowance agaihat asset to record it at
its expected realizable value. The Company hapnoetded a valuation allowance on its federalopatrating loss
carryforwards in the United States because it b&rchined that future reversals of its temporaxgltée differences will
occur in the same periods and are of the sameenaguthe temporary differences giving rise to #ferded tax assets. Our
valuation allowance against deferred tax assetsbd@snillion and $59 million as of fiscal year-e2@14 and 2013,
respectively, related to the foreign and U.S. sipterations. The Company paid cash taxes of $ibmits3 million and $2
million in fiscal 2014, 2013, and 2012, respectjvel

Uncertain Tax Positions

We adopted the provisions of the Income Taxes aranof the Codification. This interpretation cla#f the accounting for
uncertainty in income taxes recognized in an erig&’s financial statements in accordance withanaé provide by FASB
and prescribes a recognition threshold of moreylikean-not to be sustained upon examination. @licyto include
interest and penalties related to gross unrecogézebenefits within our provision for income taxdid not change.

The following table summarizes the activity relatedur gross unrecognized tax benefits from yedrfescal 2013 to year-
end fiscal 2014:

2014 2013
Beginning unrecognized tax benefits $ 14 $ 8
Gross increases — tax positions in prior periods 2
Gross increases — current period tax positions 1 1
Settlements ) 1)
Lapse of statute of limitations ()] -
Ending unrecognized tax benefits $ 14 $ 14

The amount of unrecognized tax benefits that,dbgmized, would affect our effective tax rate wasréllion and $7 million
for fiscal year-end 2014 and 2013.

As of fiscal year-end 2014, we had $2 million aeckfor payment of interest and penalties relatezlitaincertain tax
positions. Our penalties and interest relatechtertain tax positions are included in income tepease.

We and our subsidiaries are routinely examinedanipus taxing authorities. Although we file U.Sdéeal, U.S. state, and
foreign tax returns, our major tax jurisdictiorthie U.S. The IRS has completed an examination 02003, 2010 and 2011
tax years. Our 2004 — 2009, 2012 and 2013 tax yearain subject to examination by the IRS. Theegevarious other on-
going audits in various other jurisdictions tha aot material to our financial statements.

As of the end of fiscal 2014, we had unremittechiegs from foreign subsidiaries including earnitiggt have been or are
intended to be permanently reinvested for contirusedin foreign operations, accordingly, no pransior U.S. federal or
state income taxes has been provided thereoristiibdited, those earnings would result in adddlancome tax expense at
approximately the U.S. statutory rate. Determaratf the amount of unrecognized deferred US inctamdiability is not
practicable due to the complexities associated igthypothetical calculation.

9. Retirement Plan

The Company maintains three defined benefit pengimms which cover certain manufacturing faciliti@he Company also
maintains a retiree health plan, which covers rehealthcare and life insurance benefits for cemetired employees and
their spouses. Each of the three defined benefispand the retiree health plan are frozen plahge Company uses fiscal
year-end as a measurement date for the retirerfzad. p

The Company sponsors two defined contribution KQO®&tirement plans covering substantially all esyples. Contributions
are based upon a fixed dollar amount for employédesparticipate and percentages of employee caottivitis at specified
thresholds. Contribution expense for these plaas$8 million, $7 million, and $7 million for fisc2014, 2013, and 2012,
respectively.
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The projected benefit obligations of the Compamess presented herein are equal to the accumudetefit obligations of
such plans. The tables below exclude the obligatielated to the foreign plans, which carry immiak&alances. The net
amount of liability recognized is included in Otheng-term liabilities on the Consolidated Balasi®ets.

Defined Benefit Pension Plans Retiree Health Plan
2014 2013 2014 2013

Change in Projected Benefit Obligations (PBO)
PBO at beginning of period $ 178 $ 207 $ 2 $ 3
Service cost - - - -
Interest cost 8 7 - -
Actuarial loss (gain) 15 27 - -
Benefits paid 9) 9 - 1)
PBO at end of period $ 192 $ 178 $ 2 $ 2
Change in Fair Value of Plan Assets
Plan assets at beginning of period $ 141 $ 129 $ - $ -
Actual return on plan assets 15 14 - -
Company contributions 7 7 - -
Benefits paid 9) 9) - -
Plan assets at end of period 154 141 - -
Net amount recognized $ (38) $ (37) $ (2) $ @)

At the end of fiscal 2014 the Company had $30 arilbf net unrealized losses recorded in Accumulatieelr
comprehensive loss on the Consolidated Balancetssh&ébe Company expects $2 million to be realindiscal 2015.

The following table presents significant weighte@@age assumptions used to determine benefit dgibligand benefit cost
for the fiscal years ended:

Defined Benefit Pension Plans Retiree Health Plan
(Percents 2014 2013 2014 2013
Weighte-average assumptiol
Discount rate for benefit obligation 4.0 4.5 2.9 3.1
Discount rate for net benefit cost 4.5 3.6 3.1 2.4
Expected return on plan assets for net benefiscost 8.0 8.0 N/A N/A

In evaluating the expected return on plan assetsyBonsidered its historical assumptions compasiddactual results, an
analysis of current market conditions, asset dfiogs, and the views of advisors. The return @m pissets is derived from
target allocations and historical yield by asspetyHealth-care-cost trend rates were assumedresise at an annual rate of
7.0%. A one-percentage-point change in these asshealth care cost trend rates would not havetarimampact on our
postretirement benefit obligation.

In accordance with the guidance from the FASB foplyers’ disclosure about postretirement benddit pssets the table
below discloses fair values of each pension plaatastegory and level within the fair value hielngrin which it falls.
There were no material changes or transfers betlggeh3 assets and the other levels.
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Fiscal 2014 Asset Category Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Cash and cash equivale 7 $ - $ - 7
U.S. large cap comingled equity funds - 47 - 47
U.S. mid cap equity mutual funds 27 - - 27
U.S. small cap equity mutual funds 6 - - 6
International equity mutual funds 10 - - 10
Real estate equity investment funds 3 - - 3
Corporate bond mutual funds 28 - - 28
Corporate bonds - 15 - 15
Guaranteed investment account - - 11 11
Total 81 $ 62 $ 11 154

Fiscal 2013 Asset Category Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Cash and cash equivale 5 $ - $ - 5
U.S. large cap comingled equity funds - 46 - 6 4
U.S. mid cap equity mutual funds 15 - - 15
U.S. small cap equity mutual funds 8 - - 8
International equity mutual funds 12 - - 12
Real estate equity investment funds 4 - - 4
Corporate bond mutual funds 33 - - 33
Corporate bonds - 8 8
Guaranteed investment account - - 10 10
Total 77 $ 54 $ 10 141

The following benefit payments, which reflect exigecfuture service, as appropriate, are expectbd fraid for the fiscal

years ending as follows:

Defined Benefit
Pension Plans

Retiree Health Plan

2015 $

2016
2017
2018
2019
2020-2024

1c $

10
10
10
10
55

Net pension and retiree health benefit expensaded the following components as of fiscal 2014,32and 2012:

Defined Benefit Pension Ple
Service cost

Interest cost
Amortization
Expected return on plan
Net periodic benefit cost

2014 2013 2012
$ - $ - $ -
8 7 8
- 3 2
(11) (10) (8)
$ $ - $ 2
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Our defined benefit pension plan asset allocatisnsf fiscal year-end 2014 and 2013 are as follows:

2014 2013
Asset Category
Equity securities and equity-like instruments 60 % 60 %
Debt securities and debt-like 28 29
Other 12 11
Total 100 % 100 %

The Company’s retirement plan assets are investbdhe objective of providing the plans the apitid fund current and
future benefit payment requirements while minimgzannual Company contributions. The retirementigptzeld $14 million
of the Company’s stock at the end of fiscal 20The Company re-addresses the allocation of itssinwents on a regular
basis.

10. Restructuring and Impairment Charges

The Company announced various restructuring platigei last three fiscal years which included shgttlown facilities in
all four of the Company’s operating segments.

During fiscal 2012, the Company announced the fimerio shut down three facilities one each in &iglosed Top,
Engineered Materials and Flexible Packaging dimsioThe affected Rigid Closed Top, Engineered Nedse and Flexible
Packaging businesses accounted for approximatdlyrifion, $71 million, and $24 million of annuaénsales, with the
majority of the operations transferred to otheilifaes. During the first fiscal quarter the Cormyamade the decision to exit
certain operations in the Engineered Materialss@vi. This decision resulted in non-cash impaitnebarges of $17 million
related to certain customer lists deemed to havantteer value and is recorded in Restructuring iamghirment charges on
the Consolidated Statement of Income. The exipeslaiions were immaterial to the Company and EegéteMaterials
segment.

During fiscal 2013, the Company made the decisioexit certain operations in the Engineered Mateddvision. This
decision resulted in a non-cash impairment chas§&6 million related to certain intangible ass#¢emed to have no further
value recorded in Restructuring and impairmentgdson the Consolidated Statement of Income. Xitedebusinesses
were immaterial to the Company and the Engineeratéihls segment.

During fiscal 2014, the Company initiated a coduion plan designed to deliver meaningful cosirgs and improved
equipment utilization. The Company announcedritention to shut down four facilities, one eaclRigid Open Top, Rigid
Closed Top, Engineered Materials and Flexible Rgiokedivisions. The affected Rigid Open Top, RiGidsed Top,
Engineered Materials, and Flexible Packaging bssi®accounted for approximately $111 million, §lllon, $9 million,
and $28 million of annual net sales, with the nigjaf the operations transferred to other faeibti

The table below sets forth the Company’s estimbtiseototal cost of the restructuring programs sif@12, the portion
recognized through fiscal year-end 2014 and thégooexpected to be recognized in a future period:

Cumulative charges To be Recognized in

Expected Total Costs through Fiscal 2014 Future
Severance and termination ben $ 21 $ 21 $ -
Facility exit costs 24 21 3
Asset impairment 33 33 -
Total $ 78 $ 75 $ 3

The tables below sets forth the significant compsef the restructuring charges recognized fofiffval years ended 2014
2013 and 2012, by segment:

Fiscal Year
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Rigid Open Top
Severance & termination benefits
Facility exit costs and other
Asset impairment

Total

Rigid Closed Top
Severance & termination benefits
Facility exit costs and other
Asset impairment

Total

Engineered Materials
Severance & termination benefits
Facility exit costs and other
Asset impairment

Total

Flexible Packaging
Severance & termination benefits
Facility exit costs and other
Asset impairment

Total

Consolidated
Severance & termination benefits
Facility exit costs and other
Asset impairment

Total

The table below sets forth the activity with reggedhe restructuring accrual as of fiscal 2014 2013:

Balanceas of fisca2012
Charges

Non-cash asset impairment
Cash payments

Balance as of fiscal 2013

Charges

Non-cash asset impairment
Cash payments

Balance as of fiscal 2014

2014 2013 2012
$ 2 $ 1 -
8 - -
3 - -
$ 13 $ 1 -
$ - $ 2 3
2 1 2
- - 4
$ 2 $ 3 9
$ 2 $ 2 4
1 1 2
4 6 16
$ 7 $ 9 22
$ 5 $ - -
3 1 -
$ 8 $ 1 -
$ 9 $ 5 7
14 3 4
7 6 20
$ 30 $ 14 31
Employee Facility
Severance Exit Non-cash
and Benefits Costs charges Total
$ 4 $ 3 $ - 7
5 3 6 14
- - (6) (6)
) 4) - (11)
2 2 - 4
9 14 7 30
- - (7) (1)
(6) ) - (14)
$ 5 $ 8 $ - 13
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11. Related Party Transactions
Management Fee

Prior to the initial public offering, the Companysvcharged a management fee by affiliates of Agolth Graham Partners,
Inc. (“Graham”) for the provision of managementsualting and advisory services provided throughbetyear. The
management fee was the greater of $3 million d%.2f adjusted EBITDA. The management fees assifiad in Selling,
general, and administrative in the Statement ajrime. The management services agreement with AgotddGraham
terminated upon completion of the initial publid¢esing.

Total management fees charged by Apollo and Grakara $9 million in fiscal 2012. The Company paidrillion to
entities affiliated with Apollo and $1 million taéties affiliated with Graham for fiscal 2012. dpnnection with the Rexam
SBC acquisition, Berry management and the spomsoesved a transaction fee of $5 million in fisgall2.

Other Related Party Transactions

In connection with the term loan refinancing endeirgo in January 2014 (see Note 6), the Compaityg@&1 million
underwriting fee to Apollo Global Securities, LL&n affiliate of Apollo that served as a managethefoffering.

In connection with the initial public offering, tt@mpany entered into an income tax receivablesageat ("TRA") that
provides for the payment to pre-initial public offey stockholders, option holders and holders ofstock appreciation
rights, 85% of the amount of cash savings, if amyJ.S. federal, foreign, state and local incomethat are actually realized
(or are deemed to be realized in the case of egehaincontrol) as a result of the utilization of @nd our subsidiaries’ net
operating losses attributable to periods prioh#initial public offering. The Company made $3ifliom of payments
related to the tax receivable agreement in theffesal quarter of 2014, of which Apollo receivg@8 million.

12. Stockholders’ Equity
Equity Incentive Plans

In connection with Apollo’s acquisition of the Coenyy, we adopted an equity incentive plan pursuawhich options to
acquire up to 7,071,337 shares of the Company’staamstock may be granted. Prior to fiscal 2014 plan was amended
to allow for an additional 5,267,500 options togoanted.

In connection with the initial public offering, tt@mpany adopted the Berry Plastics Group, Inc22@hg-Term Incentive
Plan, which authorized the issuance of up to 978¥shares of common stock pursuant to the greexarcise of
nongualified stock options, incentive stock opticsteck appreciation rights, restricted stock rietstd stock units and other
equity-based awards.

In August 2013, the Company recorded an $8 millitmtk compensation charge related to certain neatlns to the Berry
Plastics Group Inc. 2006 Equity Incentive Plan tredBerry Plastics Group, Inc. 2012 Long-Term IrtisenPlan

(collectively, the "Plans"). The modifications inde (i) accelerated vesting of all unvested otiopon an employee's death
or termination by the Company by reason of an eyg@®s permanent disability, (ii) in the event ofeanployee’s qualified
retirement, continuation of the normal vesting @e:@pplicable to the retiree's unvested optionsjadisas an extension of

the exercise period to the end of the originalytear term of the retiree's vested options andd(iijinvested options and
stock appreciation rights that were subject togrerince-based vesting criteria as of January 13 gXcluding certain IRR
performance-based options) were modified to timsedaesting.

The Company recognized total stock-based compensatpense of $15 million, $16 million, and $2 raiil for fiscal 2014,
2013 and 2012. The intrinsic value of options eised in fiscal 2014 was $32 million.

Information related to the equity incentive plashthe fiscal year-end 2014 and 2013 is as falow

2014 2013
Number Weighted Number Weighted
Of Average Of Average
Shares Exercise Shares Exercise
(in thousands) Price (in thousands) Price
Options outstanding, beginning of pel 10,03t % 9.9¢ 10,74. % 7.7¢€
Options granted 2,727 21.02 2,819 16.01
Options exercised (2,137 8.19 (3,333) 7.97
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Options forfeited or cancelled
Options outstanding, end of period

Option price range at end of period $

Options exercisable at end of period

Options available for grant at period end
Weighted average fair value of options granted $
during period

(121

10,50«

3.04-22.9!

5,09¢
5,34¢

7.53

$

15.20
13.1¢

10.14
9.96

B (192)
10,035 $

$ 3.04-17.59

5,182
8,076

$ 6.15

The fair value for options granted has been estithat the date of grant using a Black-Scholes mgeéekrally with the

following weighted average assumptions:

2014 2013 2012
Risk-free interest ra 1.3% .6% .6-.9%
Dividend yield 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Volatility factor .33 .38 0.38
Expected option life 7 years 7 years 5 years
The following table summarizes information abow tiptions outstanding as of fiscal 2014:
Range of Exercis Number Intrinsic Value Weighted Remaining Weighted Number Intrinsic Value Unrecognized Weighted
Prices Outstanding of Outstanding Contractual Life Exercise Price Exercisable of Exercisable Compensation Recognition Period
$3.04 - $22.95 10,504 $122 7 years $13.13 5,098 $81 $20 2 years

13. Segment and Geographic Data

Berry's operations are organized into four repdeiaegments: Rigid Open Top, Rigid Closed Top, Beglied Materials,
and Flexible Packaging. The Company has manufagtand distribution centers in the United Sta@amada, Mexico,
Belgium, France, Australia, Germany, Brazil, Malayindia, China, and the Netherlands. The Nontiefican operation
represents 96% of the Company’s net sales, 94%talflong-lived assets, and 95% of the total asse¢tected information

by reportable segment is presented in the followéige.

Net saes

Rigid Open Top
Rigid Closed Top
Engineered Materials
Flexible Packaging

Total

Operating income
Rigid Open Top
Rigid Closed Top
Engineered Materials
Flexible Packaging

Total

Depreciation and amortization
Rigid Open Top

Rigid Closed Top

Engineered Materials

Flexible Packaging

Total $

Total assets

Rigid Open To $

Rigid Closed Top
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2014 2013 2012
$ 1,110 $ 1,127 $ 1,229
1,469 1,387 1,438
1,455 1,397 1,362
924 736 737
$ 4,958 $ 4,647 $ 4,766
$ 34 $ 123 $ 159
132 130 95
125 116 70
25 17 1
$ 316 $ 386 $ 325
$ 92 $ 90 $ 90
133 129 135
75 71 71
58 51 59
358 $ 341 $ 355
2014 2013
1,808 $ 1,80%
1,966 1,964



Engineered Materials 722 817

Flexible Packaging 772 549
$ 5,268 $ 5,135
Goodwill 2014 2013
Rigid Open To $ 681 $ 681
Rigid Closed Top 827 831
Engineered Materials 71 73
Flexible Packaging 80 49
$ 1,65¢ $ 1,634

14. Net Income Per Share

Basic net income per share is calculated by digidlie net income attributable to common stockhelbgrthe weighted-
average number of common shares outstanding dilméngeriod, without consideration for common stegkivalents.
Diluted net income per share is computed by digdire net income attributable to common stockheltgrthe weighted-
average number of common share equivalents ouistafal the period determined using the treasupgistnethod and the
if-converted method. For purposes of this caltutatstock options are considered to be commork&iquivalents and are
only included in the calculation of diluted netamee per share when their effect is dilutive. Then@any’s redeemable
common stock is included in the weighted-averagebrr of common shares outstanding for calculatagidand diluted
net income per share.

The following tables and discussion provide a rediation of the numerator and denominator of thsib and diluted net
income per share computations. The calculatioombglovides net income on both basic and dilutesistfar fiscal 2014,
2013, and 2012 (in thousands).

2014 2013 2012
Net incomeattributable to the Company $ 62 $ 57 $ 2
Weighted average shares of common stock outstanbasic 116,875 113,486 83,435
Other common stock equivalents 4,646 5,968 3,209
Weighted average shares of common stock outstandiluged 121,521 119,454 86,644
Basic net income per share available to commorekbéaters $ 053 $ 050 $ 0.02
Diluted net income per share available to commanmesiolders $ 051 $ 048 $ 0.02

15. Guarantor and Non-Guarantor Financial Information

Berry Plastics Corporation (“Issuer”) has notestautding which are fully, jointly, severally, andoonditionally guaranteed
by substantially all of Berry’'s domestic subsidksti Separate narrative information or financeteshents of the guarantor
subsidiaries have not been included because teel0886 owned by the parent company and the guarsutisidiaries
unconditionally guarantee such debt on a jointseetral basis. A guarantee of a guarantor ofdabersies will terminate
upon the following customary circumstances: the shthe capital stock of such guarantor if sualle somplies with the
indenture, the designation of such guarantor asmegstricted subsidiary, the defeasance or disel@rthe indenture, as a
result of the holders of certain other indebtedfiessclosing on a pledge of the shares of a guaraabsidiary or if such
guarantor no longer guarantees certain other iedabss of the issuer. The guarantees are aldediag necessary to
prevent them from constituting a fraudulent convegaunder applicable law and guarantees guaragteebordinated debt
are subordinated to certain other of the Compasistss. Presented below is condensed consolidatemgcial information
for the parent, issuer, guarantor subsidiariesramdguarantor subsidiaries. Our issuer and guaréinaincial information
includes all of our domestic operating subsidiames non-guarantor subsidiaries include our foreigbsidiaries and BP
Parallel, LLC. BP Parallel, LLC is the entity tlve¢ established to buyback debt securities of Belagtics Group, Inc. and
Berry Plastics Corporation. Berry Plastics Grdap, uses the equity method to account for its galrip in Berry Plastics
Corporation in the Condensed Consolidating Suppiah&inancial Statements. Berry Plastics Corjpamaises the equity
method to account for its ownership in the guanaaita non-guarantor subsidiaries. All consolidagntries are included in
the eliminations column along with the eliminatimiintercompany balances.
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Condensed Supplemental Consolidated Statements op€rations

Fiscal 2014
Non-
Guarantor Guarantor

Parent Issuer Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations Total
Net sale g - 638 $ 3,904 $ 416 $ - $ 4,958
Cost of goods sold - 557 3,284 349 - 4,190
Selling, general and administrative - 52 232 36 - 320
Amortization of intangibles - 10 84 8 - 102
Restructuring and impairment charges - - 30 - - 30
Operating income - 19 274 23 - 316
Debt extinguishment - 35 - - - 35
Other income, net 3) - 4) - - 7)
Interest expense, net 34 27 176 97) 81 221
Equity in net income of subsidiaries (98) (218) - - 316 -
Income (loss) before income taxes 67 175 102 120 (397) 67
Income tax expense (benefit) 4 44 - 5 (49) 4
Consolidated net income (loss) 63 131 102 115 (348) 63
Net income(loss) attributable to r-controlling interests 1 - - - - 1
Net income(loss) attributable to the Comg. § 62 131 $ 102 $ 115 $  (348) $ 62
Currency translation - - - (16) - (16)
Interest rate hedges - (3) - - - 3)
Defined benefit pension and retiree benefit plans - (11) - - - (11)
Provision for income taxes related to other
comprehensive income items - 5 - - - 5
Comprehensive income (loss) § 62 122 $ 102 $ 99 $  (348) $ 37

Fiscal 2013
Non-
Guarantor Guarantor

Parent Issuer Subsidiaries  Subsidiaries Eliminations Total
Net sale g - 571 $ 3,706 $ 370 $ - $ 4,647
Cost of sales - 506 3,021 308 - 3,835
Selling, general and administrative - 58 314 40 - 412
Restructuring and impairment charges - 1 13 - - 14
Operating income - 6 358 22 - 386
Other income - 56 1 - - 57
Interest expense, net 47 24 201 (120) 92 244
Equity in net income of subsidiaries (132) (297) - - 429 -
Net income (loss) before income ts 85 223 156 142 (521) 85
Income tax expense (benefit) 28 80 - 2 (82) 28
Net income (los: g 57 143 $ 156 $ 140 $ (439 $ 57
Currency translation - - - 5) - 5)
Interest rate hedges - 20 - - - 20
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Defined benefit pension and retiree benefit plans -

Provision for income taxes related to other
comprehensive income items

Comprehensive income (loss)

Net sale

Cost of sales

Selling, general and administrative expenses
Restructuring and impairment charges, net
Operating income (loss)

Other income

Interest expense, net

Equity in net income of subsidiaries

Net income (loss) before income ts
Income tax expense (benefit)

Net income (los:

Currency translation

Interest rate hedges

Defined benefit pension and retiree benefit plans -

Provision for income taxes related to other
comprehensive income items

Comprehensive income (loss)

Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net

Intercompany receivable

Inventorie:

Deferred income taxes

Prepaid expenses and other current
Total current assets

Property, plant and equipment, net
Intangible assets, net

Investment in subsidiaries

Other assets

34 - - - 34
- (20) - - - (20)
§ 57 $ 177 $ 156 $ 135 $  (439) $ 86
Fiscal 2012
Non-
Guarantor Guarantor
Parent Issuer Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations Total
g - $ 579 $ 3,829 $ 358 $ - $ 4,766
- 520 3,151 313 - 3,984
- 62 329 35 - 426
- 1 29 1 - 31
- @) 320 9 - 325
- ) - - - @)
54 39 261 (110) 84 328
(58) ars) - - 231 -
4 137 59 119 (315) 4
46 1 3 (50) 2
§ 2 $ 91 $ 58 $ 116 $ (265) $ 2
- - - 6 - 6
- 4 - - - 4
- (14) - - (14)
- 1) 6 - - 5
§ 2 $ 94 $ 50 $ 122 $ (265) $ 3
Condensed Supplemental Consolidated Balance Sheet
As of fiscal year-end 2014
Non-
Guarantor Guarantor
Parent Issuer Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations Total
$ - $ 70 $ 15 $ 44 $ - $ 129
- 35 377 79 - 491
- 3,343 - 87 (3,430) -
- 51 49€ 57 - 604
166 - - - - 166
- 15 13 14 - 42
166 3,514 901 281 (3,430) 1,432
- 84 1,162 118 - 1,364
- 120 2,226 125 - 2,471
69 1,237 - - (1,306) -
- - 1 - - 1
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Total assets $ 235 $ 4,955 $ 4,290 $ 524 $  (4,736) $ 5,268

Liabilities and equity

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable $ - $ 31 $ 303 $ 61 $ - $ 395
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 35 127 132 20 - 314
Intercompany payable (319) - 3,749 - (3,430) -
Current portion of long-term debt - 54 - 4 - 58
Total current liabilities (284) 212 4,184 85 (3,430) 767
Long-term debt, less current portion - 3,858 - 2 - 3,860
Deferred income taxes 386 - - - - 386
Other long-term liabilities 234 76 42 4 - 356
Total long-term liabilities 620 3,934 42 - 4,602
Total liabilities 336 4,146 4,226 91 (3,430) 5,369
Redeemable non-controlling interests 13 - - - 13
Other equity (deficit) (114) 809 64 433 (1,306) (114)
Total equity (deficit) (114) 809 64 433 (1,306) (114)
Total liabilities and equity (deficit) $ 235 $ 4,955 $ 4,290 $ 524 $  (4,736) $ 5,268

Condensed Supplemental Consolidated Balance Sheet
As of fiscal year-end 2013
Non-
Guarantor Guarantor
Parent Issuer Subsidiaries  Subsidiaries Eliminations Total
Assets

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ - $ 116 $ - $ 26 $ - $ 142
Accounts receivable, net of allowance - 5 371 73 - 449
Intercompany receivable 348 3,448 - 40 (3,836) -
Inventorie! - 53 48z 4C - 57¢
Deferred income taxes 139 - - - - 139
Prepaid expenses and other current - 12 11 19 (10) 32
Total current assets 487 3,634 864 198 (3,846) 1,337
Property, plant and equipment, net - 115 1,079 72 - 1,266
Intangible assets, net 8 139 2,275 106 (8) 2,520
Investment in subsidiaries 760 905 - - (1,665) -
Other assets - 10 2 631 (631) 12
Total assets $ 1255 $ 4,803 $ 4,220 $ 1,007 $ (6,150) $ 5135
Liabilities and equity

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ - $ 9 $ 262 $ 66 $ - $ 337
Accrued and other current liabilities 41 119 112 15 (11) 276
Intercompany payable - - 3,837 - (3,837) -
Long-term debt-current portion - 69 - 2 - 71
Total current liabilities 41 197 4,211 83 (3,848) 684
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Long-term debt
Deferred tax liabilities

Other long-term liabilities

Total long-term liabilities

Total liabilities

Redeemable shares

Other equity (deficit)

Total equity (deficit)

Total liabilities and equity (deficit) $

Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Additions to property, plant, and equipment
Proceeds from sale of assets

Investment in Parent

(Contributions) distributions to/from subsidiaries
Intercompany advances (repayments)
Investment in Issuer debt securities
Acquisition of business, net of cash acquired
Net castfrom investing activities

Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Proceeds from long-term borrowings
Proceeds from initial public offering
Payment of tax receivable agreement
Proceed from issuance of common stock
Repayment of note receivable

Repayment of long-term borrowings
Changes in intercompany balances
Contribution from Parent

Debt financing costs

Net castfrom financing activities

Effect of currency translation on cash

Netchange in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Additions to property, plant, and equipment

740 3,855 - 2 (722) 3,875
385 - - - - 385
285 64 44 4 (10) 387
1,410 3,919 44 6 (732) 4,647
1,451 4,116 4,255 89 (4,580) 5,331
(196) 687 (35) 918 (1,570) (196)
(196) 687 (35) 918 (1,570) (196)
1,255 $ 4,803 $ 4,220 $ 1,007 $ (6,150) $ 5,135
Condensed Supplemental Consolidated Statements oagh Flows
Fiscal 2014
Non-
Guarantor Guarantor
Parent Issuer Subsidiaries  Subsidiaries  Eliminations Total
$ - $ 27 $ 473 $ 30 $ - $ 530
- (6) (200) 9) - (215)
- - 19 - - 19
723 2 - 721 (1,442) -
- 20 - - (20) -
- - (136) (90) - (226)
723 12 (317) 622 (1,462) (422)
- 1,627 - - - 1,627
(32) - - - - (32)
17 - - - - 17
(740) (1,668) - - 721 (1,687)
32 - (141) 89 20 -
- - - (721) 721 -
. (44) - - - (44)
(723) (85) (141) (632) 1,462 (119)
B B - @) - ()
- (46) 15 18 - (23)
- 116 - 26 - 142
$ - $ 70 $ 15 $ 44 $ - $ 129
Fiscal 2013
Non-
Guarantor Guarantor
Parent Issuer Subsidiaries  Subsidiaries  Eliminations Total
$ - $ 11 $ 417 $ 36 $ - $ 464
- ) (218) (24) - (239)
- 1 17 - - 18

Proceeds from disposal of assets
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Investment in Parent

(Contributions) distributions to/from subsidiaries
Intercompany advances (repayments)
Investment in Issuer debt securities
Acquisition of business net of cash acquired
Net castfrom investing activities

Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Proceeds from long-term debt

IPO proceeds

Payment of TRA

Proceed from issuance of common stock
Repayment of note receivable

Repayment of long-term debt

Changes in intercompany balances
Contribution from Parent

Deferred financing costs

Net castrom financing activities

Netchange in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Cash Flow from Investing Activities

Additions to property, plant, and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of assets

Investment in Parent

(Contributions) distributions to/from subsidiaries
Intercompany advances (repayments)
Investment in Issuer debt securities

Acquisition of business net of cash acquired

Net castrom investing activities
Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Proceeds from long-term debt
Equity contributions

Repayment of long-term debt
Changes in intercompany balances
Contribution from Parent

Deferred financing costs

Net cash fror financing activities

Netchange in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

16. Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

- - - (21) 21 -
(462) 441 - - 21 -
- 210 - - (210) -
- - (24) - - (24)
(462) 645 (225) (35) (168) (245)
- 1,391 - - - 1,391
438 - - - - 438
©) ®) - - 5 ©)
27 - - - - 27
2 2 - - ) 2
- (1,955) - 2) (21) (1,978)
- - (192) (15) 207 -
- - - 21 (21) -
- (39) - - - (39)
462 (606) (192) 4 168 (164)
- 50 - 5 - 55
- 66 - 21 - 87
$ - $ 116 $ - $ 26 $ - $ 142
Fiscal 2012
Non-
Guarantor Guarantor
Parent Issuer Subsidiaries  Subsidiaries Eliminations Total
$ - $ (22 $ 504 $ (©)) $ - $ 479
- 9) (209) (12) - (230)
- - 30 - - 30
- - - @) 4 -
16 (20) - - 4 -
- 258 - - (258) -
- - 7 (62) - (55)
16 229 (172) (78) (250) (255)
- - - 2 - 2
- (6) - - - (6)
(16) (155) - - @) (175)
- - (337) 79 258 -
- - - 4 @) -
(16) (161) (337) 85 250 (179)
- 46 (5) 4 - 45
- 20 5 17 - 42
$ - $ 66 $ - $ 21 $ - $ 87
The following table contains selected unauditedtgu financial data for fiscal years 2014 and 201
2014 2013
Second Third Fourth First Second Third Fourth

First
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Net sale $ 1,140 $ 1,210 $ 1,298 $ 1310 $ 1072 $ 1,150 $ 1,221 $ 1,204
Cost of sales 964 1,023 1,089 1,114 895 936 998 1,006
Gross profit 176 187 209 196 177 214 223 198
Net income (los:
attributable to the Company$ 6 $ 12 15 $ 29 $ (10) 8 1 3 40 $ 26
Net income (los:
attributable to the Company
per share:
Basic 0.0t 0.1C 0.1: 0.2t (0.09 0.01 0.35 0.2
Diluted 0.0t 0.1¢C 0.1Z 0.2¢ (0.09 0.01 0.3t 0.22

17. Subsequent Events

In the first fiscal quarter of 2015, the Companydma voluntary principal payment on the term loB®1®0 million.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1df(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this
report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigtiereunto duly authorized, on the 24th day ofeyiaber, 2014.

BERRY PLASTICS GROUP, INC.

By__/s/ Jonathan D. Rich
Jonathan D. Rich
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &g Act of 1934, this report has been signed éydtowing persons on
behalf of the registrant and in the capacities@nthe dates indicated:

Signature Title Date

Chairman of the Board of Directors, Chief Execut®ficer and
/s/ Jonathan D. Rich Director (Principal Executive Officer) November 24, 2014
Jonathan D. Rich

November 24, 2014

/s/ Mark W. Miles Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial Offige
Mark W. Miles

November 24, 2014
/s/ James M. Till Executive Vice President and Controller (Princidetounting Officer)
James M. Till
/s/ B. Evan Bayh Director November 24, 2014
B. Evan Bayh
/s/ Jonathan F. Foster Director November 24, 2014
Jonathan F. Foster
/s/ David B. Heller Director November 24, 2014
David B. Heller
/s/ Idalene F. Kesner Director November 24, 2014

Idalene F. Kesner

/s/ Carl J. Rickertsen Director November 24, 2014

Carl J. Rickertsen

/s/ Ronald S. Rolfe Director November 24, 2014

Ronald S. Rolfe

/s/ Robert V. Seminara Director November 24, 2014

Robert V. Seminara

/s/ Robert A. Steele Director November 24, 2014

Robert A. Steele
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Exhibit No.

[Description of Exhibit]

31

3.2

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

10.1

10.2

10.3

Amended and Restated Certificate of Berry Plagiezip, Inc. (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 3.1 to the Company's Form 10-K filed on Batber 27, 2012).

Amended and Restated Bylaws of Berry Plastics Grimap (incorporated herein by reference to Ext8hit
to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filedJanuary 29, 2014).

Indenture, by and among Berry Plastics Corporagach Subsidiary of Berry Plastics Corporation fified
therein and U.S. Bank National Association, as fBeigelating to 9.75% second priority senior sedur
notes due 2021, dated November 19, 2010 (incogmblarein by reference to Exhibit 4.03 to Berrystia
Corporation’s (File No. 03-7570¢-01) Current Report on Forn-K filed on November 19, 201!

Supplemental Indenture, dated as of December 2, &0ibng Berry Plastics Group, Inc., Berry Plastics
Corporation, and U.S. Bank National Associatiortrastee, with respect to the indenture, dated as o
November 19, 2010, respecting BePlastics Corporation’s 9.75% Second Priority SeSiecured Notes
due 2021 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit Dd.the Company’'s Current Report on Form 8-K fited
December 6, 2012).

Additional Secured Creditor Consent, by and betwgemy Plastics Corporation, each Subsidiary ofBer
Plastics Corporation signatory thereto and U.SkBéattional Association, as Authorized Representagind
Collateral Agent, relating to 9.75% second priosignior secured notes due 2021, dated Novemb&018,
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4@8eérry Plastics Corporation’s (File No. 033-757-
Current Report on Form-K filed on November 19, 201!

Registration Rights Agreement, by and between Belagtics Corporatiorgach Subsidiary of Berry Plast
Corporation identified therein and Credit Suisseusites (USA) LLC, as representatives of the #hiti
Purchasers, relating to 9.75% second priority sesgoured notes due 2021, dated November 19, 2010
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4@Beérry Plastics Corporation’s (File No. 033-757-
Current Report on Form-K filed on November 19, 201!

Indenture, dated May 12, 2014, by and among Bdasties Corporation, the guarantors party theratb a
U.S. Bank National Association, as Trustee, regatiinthe 5.50% second priority senior secured riites
2022 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhildtaf the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-Kdfite
May 13, 2014).

U.S. $400,000,000 Amended and Restated Credit Awee dated as of April 3, 2007, by and among
Covalence Specialty Materials Corp., Berry PlagBosup, Inc., certain domestic subsidiaries pédrgydto
from time to time, Bank of America, N.A., as colled| agent and administrative agent, the lendetg pa
thereto from time to time, and the financial ingt@ns party thereto (incorporated herein by refeego
Exhibit 10.1(a) to Berry Plastics Corporation’sléfo. 033-75706-01) Current Report on Form 8-Edibn
April 10, 2007)

Amendment, dated as of June 28, 2011, to U.S. §80M00 Amended and Restated Credit Agreement date
as of April 3, 2007, by and among Covalence Spigdidhterials Corp., Berry Plastics Group, Inc. taer
domestic subsidiaries party thereto from timenwetiBank of America, N.A., as collateral agent and
administrative agent, the lenders party theretmfiilme to time, and the financial institutions pattereto,
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 1a@Berry Plastics Corporation’s (File No. 033-7571

Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on December 19,0

U.S. $1,200,000,000 Second Amended and Restatelit Bgreement, dated as of April 3, 2007, by and
among Covalence Specialty Materials Corp., Beragtls Group, Inc., Credit Suisse, Cayman Islands
Branch, as collateral and administrative agentlethders party thereto from time to time, and ttieo
financial institutions party thereto (incorporategtein by reference to Exhibit 10.1(b) to Berrystzs
Corporation’s (File No. 033-75706-01) Current Reor Form 8-K filed on April 10, 2007).
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104 Amended and Restated Intercreditor Agreement, dyaamong Berry Plastics Group, Inc., Covalence
Specialty Materials Corp., certain subsidiariesiified as parties thereto, Bank of America, N.Ad &redit
Suisse, Cayman Islands Branch as first lien agantsWells Fargo Bank, N.A., as trustee (incormatétereil
by reference to Exhibit 10.1(d) to Berry Plastiegration’s (File No. 033-75706-01) Current Repmort
Form 8-K filed on April 10, 2007).

10.5 U.S. $1,400,000,000 Incremental Assumption Agreéntited as of February 8, 2013, by and amongyBerr
Plastics Group, Inc., Berry Plastics Corporatiod e@rtain of its subsidiaries referenced thereth@redit
Suisse AG, Cayman Islands Branch (incorporatedrbsereference to Exhibit 10.29 to the Registrant’
Registration Statement on Form S-1 (Reg. No. 33348) filed on April 4, 2013).

105 A. U.S. $1,125,000,000 Incremental Assumption Agreéntiated as of January 6, 2014, by and among Berry
Plastics Group, Inc., Berry Plastics Corporatiod e@rtain of its subsidiaries referenced thereth@redit
Suisse AG, Cayman Islands Branch as an incrementallender, and Credit Suisse AG, Cayman Islands
Branch as administrative agents for the lendergetig credit agreement referenced therein (incatpd
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Compsugrm 10-Q filed on January 31, 2014).

10.6 Management Agreement, among Berry Plastics Cotiparderry Plastics Group, Inc., Apollo Management
VI, L.P., and Graham Partners, Inc., dated as pfesgber 20, 2006 (incorporated herein by referémce
Exhibit 10.7 to Berry Plastics Corporation’s Regibn Statement Form S-4 (Reg. No. 333-13838&)l fiin
November 2, 200¢

10.7 Termination Agreement, by and among Covalence Sipgdilaterials Holding Corp., Covalence Specialty
Materials Corp., and Apollo Management V, L.P.edats of April 3, 2007 (incorporated herein by refee
to Exhibit 10.7 to Berry Plastics Corporation’s Bégition Statement Form S-4 (Reg. No. 333-1426R2)
on May 4, 2007

10.8t 2006 Equity Incentive Plan (incorporated hereimdfgrence to Exhibit 10.8 to Berry Plastics Corfioras
Registration Statement Forr-4 (Reg. No. 33-138380) filed on November 2, 20C

10.9t Amendment No. 2 to the Berry Plastics Group, 12806 Equity Incentive Plan (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.9 to the Company’s FornKlfled on December 11, 2013).

10.10t Omnibus amendment to awards granted under the Bé&syics Group, Inc., 2006 Long-Term IncentivePla
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 1ad.the Company’s Form 10-K filed on December 11,30

10.11t Form of Performance-Based Stock Option AgreemeBeeofy Plastics Group, Inc. (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.9 to Berry Plastics Corgiores Registration Statement Form S-4 (Reg. N&-33
138380) filed on November 2, 2006).

10.12t Form of Accreting Stock Option Agreement of Bertgdtics Group, Inc. (incorporated herein by refeecto
Exhibit 10.10 to Berry Plastics Corporation’s Régison Statement Form S-4 (Reg. No. 3B8B380) filed or
November 2, 200€

10.13t Form of Time-Based Stock Option Agreement of B&fgstics Group, Inc. (incorporated herein by refege
to Exhibit 10.11 to Berry Plastics Corporation’sjigération Statement Form S-4 (Reg. No. 333-1388k@)
on November 2, 200¢

10.141 Form of Performance-Based Stock Appreciation Rigigieement of Berry Plastics Group, Inc. (incorpeda
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.12 to Berry RtasCorporation’s Registration Statement Form &g
No. 33:-138380) filed on November 2, 2006).

10.15t Employment Agreement, dated November 22, 1999, dmtvBerry Plastics Corporation and G. Adam Un!
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 1@2Berry Plastics Corporation’s (File No. 033-75708H
Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the SEC onrsta22, 2006).

10.16t Amendment No. 1 to Employment Agreement, dated Ninex 22, 1999, between Berry Plastics Corporation
and G. Adam Unfried, dated November 23, 2004 (ma@ted herein by reference to Exhibit 10.24 ofrer
Plastics Corporation’s (File No. 033-75706-01) Aankeport on Form 10-K filed with the SEC on Mag&sh
2006).
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10.17t

10.18%

10.19t

10.20t

10.21

10.22t

10.23t

10.24t

10.25t

10.26t

10.27t

10.28t

10.29t

10.30t

10.31t

10.32t

Amendment No. 2 to Employment Agreement, dated November 22, 1999, between Berry Plastics Corporation
and G. Adam Unfried, dated March 10, 2006 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.25 of Berry
Plastics Corporation’s (File No. 033-75706-01) Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the SEC on March 22,
2006)

Amendment No. 3 to Employment Agreement, dated November 22, 1999, between Berry Plastics Corporation
and G. Adam Unfried, dated September 20, 2006 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.19 to Berry
Plastics Corporation’s Registration Statement Form S-4 (Reg. No. 333-138380) filed on November 2, 2006).

Employment Agreement, dated April 3, 2007, between Berry Plastics Corporation and Thomas E. Salmon
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.20 of Berry Plastics Corporation’s (File No. 033-75706-01)
Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the SEC on December 16, 2008).

Employment Agreement, dated October 1, 2010, between the Berry Plastics Corporation and Jonathan Rich
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of Berry Plastics Corporation’s (File No. 033-75706-01)
Current Report on Form-K filed on October 6, 201(

Form of common stock certificate of Berry Plastics Group, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.27 of
Amendment No. 5 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-180294) filed on
September 19, 2012).

Income Tax Receivable Agreement, dated as of November 29, 2012, by and among Berry Plastics Group, Inc.
and Apollo Management Fund VI, L.P. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.25 to the Company’s
Form 10-K filed on December 27, 2012).

Berry Plastics Group, Inc. Executive Bonus Plan (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.26 to the
Company’s Form 10-K filed on December 27, 2012).

Berry Plastics Group, Inc. 2012 Long-Term Incentive Plan (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.27
to the Company’s Form 10-K filed on December 27, 2012).

Amendment No. 1 to the Berry Plastics Group, Inc. 2012 Long-Term Incentive Plan (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.31 to the Company’s Form 10-K filed on December 11, 2013).

Omnibus amendment to awards granted under the Berry Plastics Group, Inc., 2012 Long-Term Incentive Plan
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.32 to the Company’s Form 10-K filed on December 11, 2013).

Amendment No. 1 to the Amended and Restated Stockholders Agreement, by and among Berry Plastics
Group, Inc., and the stockholders of the Corporation listed on schedule A thereto, dated as of October 2, 2012
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.28 to the Company’s Form 10-K filed on December 27, 2012).

Employment Agreement, dated January 1, 2002, between the Berry Plastics Corporation and Curtis Begle
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Form 10-Q filed on January 31, 2014).

Amendment No. 1 to Employment Agreement, dated as of September 13, 2006, by and between the Berry
Plastics Corporation and Curtis Begle (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company's
Form 10-Q filed on January 31, 2014).

Amendment No. 2 to Employment Agreement, dated December 31, 2008, by and between the Berry Plastics
Corporation and Curtis Begle (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s Form 10-Q
filed on January 31, 2014).

Amendment No. 3 to Employment Agreement, dated August 1, 2010, by and between the Berry Plastics
Corporation and Curtis L. Begle (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Company’s Form 10-
Q filed on January 31, 2014).

Amendment No. 4 to Employment Agreement, dated December 16, 2011, by and between the Berry Plastics
Corporation and Curtis L. Begle (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the Company’s Form 10-
Q filed on January 31, 2014).
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12.1*

21.1*

23.1*

31.1*

31.2*

32.1*

32.2*

101.*

Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges.

Subsidiaries of the Registrant.

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of the Chief Executive Officer
Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of the Chief Financial Officer
Section 1350 Certification of the Chief Executive Off

Section 1350 Certification of the Chief FinanciafiCHr

Interactive Data Files

Filed herewith.
t  Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.
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STOCKHOLDER INFORMATION

CORPORATE HEADQUARTERS
Berry Plastics Group, Inc.
101 Oakley Street
Evansville, Indiana 47710
812.424.2904

www.berryplastics.com

INVESTOR RELATIONS CONTACT
Dustin Stilwell
812.306.2964
ir@berryplastics.com

ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
Our annual meeting of shareholders will be held on March 4, 2015, at 10:00 a.m. Central Time, at the
Tropicana Executive Conference Center, 450 NW Riverside Dr., Evansville, Indiana 47708

REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER AGENT
Computershare
211 Quality Circle, Suite 210
College Station, TX 77845
(800) 962-4284

INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
Ernst and Young LLP

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
You can access financial and other information about Berry Plastics Group, Inc. at ir.berryplastics.com,

including press releases, Forms 10-K, 10-Q, and 8-K as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission;
and information on Corporate Governance such as charters of Board Committees, our Code of Business
Ethics and Corporate Governance Guidelines. You can also request that any of these materials be mailed to

you at no charge by writing us as the address above.

BERY
NYSE

Please visit our website at

SERRY

PLASTICS

www.berryplastics.com to view our 2014

Corporate Social Responsibility Report.


http://berryplastics.com
http://www.berryplastics.com/about-us/our-responsibilities
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